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AREH
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FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MF I RE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023
20204F 20214F 20224F 20234
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARKEFIT ARETT ARBTT AR%®T:R
REVENUE ['ON 980,643 1,172,182 1,194,209 1,371,805
Gross profit E A 330,180 374,167 361,664 417,399
PROFIT BEFORE TAX i A0 F 61,180 59,445 35,421 30,633
Income tax credit/(expense) FTissiise (B8A) (6,970) (4,267) (20) 587
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRE 54,210 55,178 35,401 31,220
Attributable to: HEER
Earnings per Share attributable to HBRAAEIHEEB AW
Owners of the Company B &R 54,210 55,178 35,401 31,220
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARET) 0.67 0.67 0.11 0.09
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2020 2021 2022 2023
2020%F 20214F 20224F 20234
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 1,674,443 1,889,224 2,026,436 2,301,269
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE 500,649 669,909 636,054 846,502
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE 801,919 818,594 903,435 1,117,290
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE 689,612 876,479 859,594 953,692
NET ASSETS EEFE 683,561 864,060 899,461 1,076,789
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to SBINANEHEE AW
Owners of the Company T w 683,561 864,060 899,461 1,076,789
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER®mE

. Hou Zekuan
R (E-4)
JJ ‘ { Executive Director and the Chairman of the Board
= |l HTEERESE
L

Dear all Shareholders,

I'would like to present the annual report of the Group for the fiscal year 2023
to all Shareholders on behalf of the Board of FOLANGSI CO., LTD.

“Only the most solid base delivers everlasting power, on which we made
achievements in technology innovation and achieved today’s success,

and it will lead us towards new era.”

In 2023, the diligent and brave individuals at FOLANGSI continued to forge
ahead amidst adversity, courageously charting a new course for the Company

through grit and determination.

In terms of capital operations, the Company was successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on November 10, 2023. This
marked our entry into the international capital market, gaining the financial

backing necessary to drive our development forward.
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In terms of operational results, the Company achieved double-digit growth
in performance for the whole year of 2023, and the size of the Company’s
intralogistics equipment fleet under management as of December 31, 2023
exceeded 45,000 units.

In terms of technological innovation, the Company has always adhered to
innovation-driven development. Our innovative park business was promoted

nationwide and was successfully established in regions such as Wuxi.

In 2023, the profound accumulation of FOLANGSI enables us to grow

flourishingly and achieve new milestones in our development journey.

“New starting point, new journey.”

2024 marks a new beginning for the Company. We will capitalize fully on
our post-listing brand influence and remain steadfast in our commitment
to the strategy of “building a leading PRC high-dimensional and shared
ecological platform for B2B industrial and intralogistics equipment”. We will
take active measures to expand our core business of intralogistics equipment
subscription services, and meanwhile, we will also strengthen our organic
growth forces, and concentrate our efforts to innovate business models, to
accelerate improvements in both our operational performance and market

share, thereby further consolidating our leading position in the industry.

While focusing on our business expansion, we will also strive to enhance
our ‘online + offline” service capabilities and equipment remanufacturing
technical process and other core competencies, so as to continuously build

competitive barriers for enterprises.

Additionally, we will strengthen our layout in distribution channels and
business expansion by empowering service network, diversifying service

offerings, and internationalization:

Empowering service network: Our offline service network serves as the
foundation for our efficient customer service response. In 2024, based on
its existing service network, the Company will further enrich our offline
service outlets through the expansion mode of organic growth, mergers
and acquisitions, park business, and empowering partnerships, gradually

advancing towards our goal of 1,000 offline service outlets.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

Diversifying service offerings: To continuously increase our market share
in the intralogistics equipment market and leverage our scale advantage,
we will continue to expand other intralogistics equipment or industrial
equipment subscription services while focusing on our solid service base for
transport equipment such as Forklifts, aiming at providing customers with

more comprehensive solutions.

Internationalization: We plan to establish an offline marketing network in
countries with good business environment and friendly policies, and will
take the first step in achieving the global layout of the Company's offline
outlets under the model of “goods before services’, which will also lay a solid

foundation for future advancement of “service globalization” of the Company.

While developing its businesses, the Company will always take “improving
asset utilization and saving social resources” as our mission, continuously
optimize the supply, allocation and full lifecycle management of assets, drive
the efficiency, quality and power reform in both upstream and downstream,
advocate sustainable development and sharing economy, and continue to

practice social value.
Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere greetings to all employees of FOLANGSI who have made tremendous
efforts and great contributions to the Company’s development over the
past year! | also would like to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt
gratitude and best wishes to government departments at all levels, the
Shareholders, customers, suppliers, and partners who have long supported
and cared for the development of FOLANGSI!

Hou Zekuan

Executive Director and the Chairman of the Board

Guangzhou City, the PRC, March 20, 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET OVERVIEW

According to CIC, the intralogistics equipment solution market in China is
still in the early-stage development. Compared with developed countries
and regions, such as the United States, the penetration rate of intralogistics
equipment solutions in China is relatively low. The estimated penetration
rate of intralogistics equipment solutions in the United States reached 54.6%
in 2022, while the penetration rate of intralogistics equipment solutions
in China was approximately 3.5% in 2018 and approximately 3.7% in 2022,
indicating huge growth potential for the intralogistics equipment solution
market in China. The penetration rate of intralogistics equipment solutions in

China is expected to increase to 5.9% in 2027.

The intralogistics equipment solution market in China has experienced rapid
growth over the past years. The intralogistics equipment solution market in
China is expected to further increase to RMB34.9 billion in 2027 as driven
by the development of manufacturing and logistics industries and the
increasing demands for cost reduction and efficiency improvement. China's
logistics and manufacturing industries have developed rapidly and will
continue to grow in the future. China’s manufacturing industry added value
and the total cost of social logistics are expected to increase to RMB47.4
trillion and RMB22.9 trillion by 2027. The development of manufacturing and
logistics industries has created a strong demand for intralogistics equipment,
which further boosts the growth of the intralogistics equipment solution
market. Meanwhile, enterprises are paying more attention to cost reduction
and cutting down one-time purchase expenditures, as well as improving
utilization rate and operational efficiency during the course of business
development. As intralogistics equipment solutions effectively help with
cost reduction regarding intralogistics equipment utilization and efficiency
improvement in intralogistics equipment management, they are expected
be more widely adopted by enterprises. According to CIC, intralogistics
equipment solutions can help enterprises reduce operating costs by
approximately 20% throughout the equipment’s lifecycle compared to

traditional intralogistics equipment procurement mode.

Forklifts are not only essential tools in the logistics and manufacturing
industry, but also key drivers for socio-economic development. With
reference to the expected growth in the intralogistics equipment solution
market, industry players shall also strive to strengthen the healthy and
sustainable development of the industry, improve the core competitiveness
of the industry with the aim of achieving efficient development of the

industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

GROUP OVERVIEW

We are a leading intralogistics equipment solution provider in China. We
take “improving asset utilization and saving social resources” as our mission.
Focusing on intralogistics equipment subscription services, we strive to
provide enterprises with one-stop solutions for intralogistics equipment
utilization and management. We have an established presence in the
industry, providing services that span the entire lifecycle of intralogistics
equipment, including equipment subscription, repair and maintenance,
and disposal. As at December 31, 2023, we had 67 offline service outlets
in 47 cities throughout China, managing over 45,000 units of intralogistics
equipment. As a result of our steady business expansion, coupled with
various improvements in our operational capacity and sphere, we have
achieved exceptional financial success in 2023. Our adjusted net profit

recorded a strong increase, which has almost doubled.

Intralogistics equipment utilization and management present inherent
challenges, including high purchase and maintenance costs, a need for
specialized expertise, and significant management complexity. However, it
is not easy for enterprises to have satisfying services from traditional service
providers which only provide equipment with limited maintenance services,
as most enterprises are not experts in intralogistics equipment, and may
need assistance in monitoring, checking and maintaining, and operating
such equipment. Our customers are offered with different subscription
arrangements in terms of equipment portfolio, equipment operation
guidance, scheduled maintenance and repair, and real-time operation
monitoring, which help customers to save costs related to fixed asset

procurement and maintenance afterwards.

On November 10, 2023, we successfully listed our Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, signifying our entry into the international
capital market and gaining the financial backing necessary to propel our
development forward. We are committed to leveraging these resources in
seizing new business opportunities and fostering the growth of our Company
in all aspects. We hope to bring the business to greater heights and our

Shareholders will, of course, be witnessing this journey together with us.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Our Business Model and Service Offerings

Our intralogistics equipment solutions comprise the following three business

segments during the Reporting Period:

Intralogistics Equipment Subscription Services: We provide
intralogistics equipment to customers for their usage with value-added
services, including but not limited to, equipment selection, on-site
operation training, general and necessary maintenance and repair, and
real-time monitoring of equipment status and operation through our
Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform. In managing
this business segment, we charge customers services fees mainly based
on types and configurations of equipment selected, duration they use
the subscribed intralogistics equipment, and customization of related

services (if applicable).

Maintenance and Repair Services: In this business segment, we
generate revenue from providing on-site maintenance and repair
services to customers for their intralogistics equipment. We charge fees
either on project basis for one-off repair services, or based on service
plans where we charge fees on monthly basis for certain contract period

covering equipment specified in the relevant agreement.

Sales of Intralogistics Equipment and Parts: We sell new and used
intralogistics equipment to enterprises in China; and intralogistics
equipment parts to enterprises in China and abroad. We conduct sales
through our own sales team directly to end customers. We had a broad
range of customers, such as manufacturers, logistics companies, and
trading companies, with intralogistics need, including movement of

heavy goods and material in indoor and limited outdoor spaces.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

In 2023, our innovative park business was promoted nationwide and
was successfully established in regions such as Wuxi. As the intralogistics
equipment solution market expands, we will continuously seek to further
distinguish ourselves from other industry players in future by progressively
optimizing the supply, allocation and full lifecycle management of assets,
driving the efficiency, quality and power reform in both upstream and
downstream, as well as advocating for sustainable development and the
sharing economy. As such, we aim to establish a solid foundation for our
Group's success in the long run so as to remain competitive in the rapidly-
evolving field of business.

Our Technology

We consider technology capability our key strength to continuously innovate
our service offerings, enhance customers’ experience and optimize operation
efficiency. We have always adhered to innovation-driven development. We
have continuously devoted resources in developing and optimizing our
comprehensive technology platform, namely Intelligent Asset and Operation
Management Platform. This platform enables us to integrate and connect
key operating sectors, as well as assets involved, through which, we have
been able to facilitate an intelligent, efficient and cost-effective management
on equipment operation and utilization, service supervision, as well as asset
management. Furthermore, leveraging this platform, we believe we are able
to achieve quick expansion of our business network across China, as well as
management of equipment and customer portfolio with consistent quality

and optimized operational efficiency.

Our Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform, consists of (i)
loT Smart Terminals, which consist of sensors, wearable devices, and other
smart hardware serving as gateway for the collection and transmission
of information on equipment status and usage patterns, which lay the
foundation for our efficient business management and customer interaction;
(i) Operating Information Analysis System, which enables centralized
management of intralogistics equipment and parts, and integrates, processes
and analyzes comprehensive information in relation to our fleet and usage
patterns collected through IoT Smart Terminals. This system delivers to us
detailed equipment information at multiple dimensions as well as analytical
diagrams designed to present key operating information of such equipment
at multiple dimensions, based on which, our management may quickly make
business decisions in relation to relevant operation arms on a well-informed
basis; and (iii) Information Management and Application, where we integrate
information and analytical results developed through loT Smart Terminals
and Operating Information Analysis System, to facilitate proper equipment
and technician dispatch, remote control of our equipment, cost-efficient

maintenance and repair service plans, and customization of services, etc..
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OUTLOOK

2024 marks a new beginning for the Company. We will capitalize fully on
our post-listing brand influence and remain steadfast in our commitment
to the strategy of “building a leading PRC high-dimensional and shared
ecological platform for B2B industrial and intralogistics equipment”. We will
take active measures to expand our core business of intralogistics equipment
subscription services, and meanwhile, we will also strengthen our organic
growth forces, and concentrate our efforts to innovate business models, to
accelerate improvements in both our operational performance and market

share, thereby further consolidating our leading position in the industry.

While focusing on our business expansion, we will also strive to enhance
our “online + offline” service capabilities and equipment remanufacturing
technical process and other core competencies, so as to continuously build

competitive barriers for enterprises.

Additionally, we will strengthen our layout in distribution channels and
business expansion by empowering service network, diversifying service

offerings, and internationalization:

Empowering service network: Our offline service network serves as the
foundation for our efficient customer service response. In 2024, based on
its existing service network, the Company will further enrich our offline
service outlets through the expansion mode of organic growth, mergers
and acquisitions, park business, and empowering partnerships, gradually

advancing towards our goal of 1,000 offline service outlets.

Diversifying service offerings: To continuously increase our market share
in the intralogistics equipment market and leverage our scale advantage,
we will continue to expand other intralogistics equipment or industrial
equipment subscription services while focusing on our solid service base for
transport equipment such as Forklifts, aiming at providing customers with

more comprehensive solutions.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

Internationalization: We plan to establish an offline marketing network in
countries with good business environment and friendly policies, and will
take the first step in achieving the global layout of the Company’s offline
outlets under the model of “‘goods before services’, which will also lay a solid

foundation for future advancement of “service globalization” of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue primarily came from three business segments: (i)
intralogistics equipment subscription services, where we charge customers
fees based on the duration they use relevant intralogistics equipment; (ii)
maintenance and repair services, where we provide maintenance and repair
services for customers’ intralogistics equipment; and (iii) sales of intralogistics
equipment and parts, where we sell new and used intralogistics equipment

as well as related parts that meet customers’ demands.

The following sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue from three
business segments for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the year
ended December 31, 2022:

B - RO ERE  BRREFBRRL
BRTEHERS BRI EAREREINTAE
RBARGTIHEMBABRCEENE —F Gt
KRRRARRREE2H I NEEEFREL

it o

1 %5 1 8
O

REBHWATIZRE=ZKREBLDE : ()5AY
MR AR - ARMRET P ERERS
NoRRENHRAZTPWE © ()#EEEER
% DRMA/SEFPHNZAMAREREEEE
ERSG  RGiHAYRZELEFHEE - AR
388 & 23T N — T35 M Wi A% 4 B AR B8 A 1 A
mMEEPHFER -

REBPREZ2023F12A31BIEFERESR
202F 12 A3 BIEFEMRE = REKD IR
WA BR#RLNT -

|
For the year ended December 31, year-on-year
BEZ12831HLFE percentage
2023 2022 change
R BEDH
2023F 20224 &
RMB’'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARBTR ARBFT
Intralogistics equipment HNY) R R] RIS

subscription services 766,811 55.9 738,001 61.8 39
Maintenance and repair services USRS 185,818 13.5 140,987 1.8 318

Sales of intralogistics BN R E
equipment and parts 419,176 30.6 315,221 264 33.0
Total st 1,371,805 100.0 1,194,209 100.0 14.9
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The Group's revenue increased by 14.9% from approximately RMB1,194.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to approximately RMB1,371.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to the following

reasons:

1. Our revenue from intralogistics equipment subscription services
increased by 3.9% from approximately RMB738.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022 to approximately RMB766.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to growth in our customer
base and utilization rates of the intralogistics equipment driven by
the Group's business expansion along with the enhancements in our

operational capability in year 2023;

2. Our revenue from maintenance and repair services increased by 31.8%
from approximately RMB141.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to approximately RMB185.8 million for the year ended December
31,2023, primarily due to (i) business and customer growth as a result of
further market recognition of our “Repair & Maintenance Scheme” service
in 2023, where we charge fees on monthly basis through providing
scheduled inspections and regular maintenance services, as well as
necessary part replacements and repairs for certain contract periods; and

(ii) wider geographic coverage of the Group's business; and

3. Our revenue from sales of intralogistics equipment and parts increased
by 33.0% from approximately RMB315.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to approximately RMB419.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to the increase in revenue
contributed by new customers (e.g. Chengdu International Railway Port
Economic and Technological Development Zone Construction and
Development Co., Ltd. (KEBEIBRERBCERMARRERERE
FRAA]), etc) acquired through the Group’s endeavours in exploring

customers in domestic and overseas markets.

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales increased by 14.6% from approximately RMB832.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to approximately RMB954.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, which is in line with the

growing trend of the Group's revenue.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RS

AREFNWRABEE2022F12A831BIEFEH
HAREE11942BETIEMN14.9%EBE20235F
NANBLEFENHARK 1371888 - *
ERAEWT :

1. SAYRRE ARBEBORABER
202F 12 A3 AIEFENHARE 73808
B INEERE2023F 12831 HIEFED
HMARE766 8B BT - 1EIBR3.9% 2
EHR2023FREEEBBRRIEL LS
RABZMNEFPEEERMNEEISAYR
BEEFEAREM

2. MEEEREEBHBABEZE20225F12
A31BEFEMNHOARE 141.08E TN
ZEHZE2023F12A31BIEFENHARE
185.8 B &L * IR A31.8% + TEZMHMN
(VRSB L E [ EEMRETE | RBE
2023 F GG —H MR - MR
THENEBMER  BZMNE—T&RH
A3 38 1R 4 T B ARORI RN AR 4 AR 7S LA 2
VEMBREERMAEE  RARRER
RNASEENEBEZGERE &

3. SAMRREREFHEEEHOWABE
F2022F 12 A31 BIEFEHHARE315.2
AETHEEHZE2023F12A318LFE
WAARE41928ET - EIER33.0% - *
ZRARAEBERARBEANINGTISM
ISR P (40« BED B BR i B A A B T
FEEERREEEBRARNSE) TRAEGEK
)\ °

SHER A
AEBMEERABREZ2022F12A318IEF
ERHAREES25HETEIMN46%EEE2023
FI2A3HLEFENNARKES44B5E T - H
WEEAEERNRALRBE B -

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

EMRENR

TRV AEEREHZE2023F 12831 BILFE
REZE 2022512 831 B IEFEERIRWA D 262
DHEFKEFEEFHLE

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group's gross profit and gross
profit margin by revenue segments for the year ended December 31, 2023

and the year ended December 31, 2022:

For the year ended December 31, Year-on-year

BZ12ABLEE percentage
2023 2022 change of
2023%F 20229 gross profit
Gross Gross EMEL
Gross profit Gross profit Antt
profit margin profit margin 28
EF EFR= EH ERE
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %
ARET R ARBFT
Intralogistics equipment SRR R] B ARTS
subscription services 238,922 31.2 226,087 306 5.7
Maintenance and repair USRS
services 76,573 41.2 57,698 409 32.7
Sales of intralogistics BN R EE
equipment and parts 101,904 24.3 77,879 24.7 30.8
Total st 417,399 30.4 361,664 303 154

The Group's gross profit increased by 15.4% from approximately RMB361.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to approximately RMB417.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, which is in line with the
growing trend of the Group's revenue; and our total gross profit margin and
gross profit margin of each of the revenue segments remained relatively
stable for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the year ended December
31,2022.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by 5.8% from
approximately RMB86.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
approximately RMB91.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2023,
primarily due to increase in office expenses and staff expenses of our
marketing department to cope with our business needs arising from the

enlarged business scales and service network.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by 8.0% from approximately
RMB156.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to approximately
RMB169.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to (i)
the growth in the headcount of our administrative department to facilitate
our business development; and (ii) the additional administrative expenses for

our newly-built remanufacturing base in Hefei.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains remained relatively stable at
approximately RMB6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the
year ended December 31, 2022.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses increased by 1,514.3% from approximately
RMB2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to approximately
RMB45.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to the

recognition of listing expenses.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs increased by 1.8% from approximately RMB83.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to approximately RMB85.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to increased
interests on bank loans and other borrowings to support our business

development.

Income Tax Expenses/(Credit) and Effective Tax Rate

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately RMB0.6 million and
effective tax rate of negative 1.9% for the year ended December 31, 2023,
while it recorded income tax expenses of RMB20 thousand and effective tax
rate of approximately nil for the year ended December 31, 2022. The change
was primarily due to the increase in tax benefits from additional deductions

for qualified research and development expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

Profit for the Year

As a result of the above, our profit for the year decreased by 11.9% from
approximately RMB35.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
approximately RMB31.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Non-HKFRS Measure — Adjusted Net Profit

To supplement our financial information which is presented in accordance
with HKFRS, we also provide adjusted net profit as non-HKFRS measures,
which is unaudited in nature and is not required by, or presented in
accordance with, HKFRS. We believe that the non-HKFRS measure (i) facilitates
comparisons of operating performance from year to year by eliminating
potential impacts of items that our management does not consider to be
indicative of our operating performance; and (ii) provides useful information
to investors in understanding and evaluating our results of consolidated
statements of comprehensive income in the same manner as they helped
our management. However, our presentation of adjusted net profit may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies
as they do not have a standardized meaning. The application of the non-
HKFRS measure has limitations as an analytical tool, and the Shareholders
and investors should not consider it in isolation from, or as substitute for
analysis of, our results of operations or financial condition as reported under
HKFRS. We defined adjusted net profit as profit/loss for the year adjusted for
items which are non-recurring or extraordinary, including listing expenses
in relation to the Group's listing. We eliminate the potential impacts of
these items that our management does not consider to be indicative of our
operating performance, as they are either non-operating or non-recurring

expenses of our Group.

Our adjusted net profit for the year ended December 31, 2023 was
approximately RMB70.4 million after eliminating the impact of the listing
expenses of approximately RMB39.2 million in relation to the listing of the
Group that the management of the Group considers to be non-operating or
non-recurring expenses, representing an increase of 98.9% as compared with
the net profit of approximately RMB35.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2022, primarily due to customer growth and increased utilization rates
of intralogistics equipment driven by the Group's business expansion and
enhanced operational capability and revenue contributed by new customers
acquired from the Group's proactive expansion in domestic and overseas

markets.

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

FRFE

HREMREA - BRMOFAFBEHEZE2022
FNRANBLEFENNAREIS4BE TR D
T1.9%ZEHZE2023F12A31BIEFEHHARE
312BEBTT

FEBUBRELATE - EREFA
w8

REBARREEVBREENZ2INNOPBHE
£ R REEARFFNBERIFEET BN
WEEAFE  HEAKEERINLE  XHEB
MR HREENRELARBEEV B RELRZ
5 - IR S - SEFEMBHRE LA E()H
BREEERARUIFLERBEHBENEEY
2 FPLBRALLEERR  RNMEHBHK
MERER  RREERBEEREE - AT
ReHEHfInGEe 2HRERNES - AW
BA27NEHBFMNBE I RZEM AR AE
JIBUATEAEFLER  ARHEYERER
B FEROMIA EAFFEVBHREER
AAEAHERY  MERREBREETREEER
ZRE - INERERPIRBETEVBHREER
EWNEERBEIM BRI - LAHLA
EFMNERERCIMIELFUERFIRIEAR
FEHNFAFE BB ZEEREELSE
B LEmAERNLETER - BHASGREEERR
WHRMNLERERINZSRENEEY
g RARERAKENIFREMIFETE
Fx o

HRFIREE2023F 12 A31 B IEFERNKEFHEF
MBEHAARB04BET (KHHREARER L
MEBAN EMHAXHARE 2EE T (AKE
ERERAEBIECLESIEEEMRY) N
Z8) 0 LEE 2022912 A31 BIEFERERE
PAREEIS 4B ETLIEN8.9% + ETERMANA
EEEBERLEBLENRAGSBNGFERR
BIE R AIGN YRR R E R RN - AR
EEBRARBEANING TS MIENE P S
REJULA ©



Liquidity, Financial Resources, Treasury Policies and Capital
Structure

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMBB846.5 million, representing an increase of 33.1% from approximately
RMB636.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to
the proceeds raised upon successful listing. The Group had current liabilities
of approximately RMB1,117.3 million, representing an increase of 23.7%
from approximately RMB903.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2022, primarily due to the increase in bank and other borrowings to support
our business development. As a result, the Group's net current liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB270.8 million as at December 31, 2023
(December 31, 2022: RMB267.4 million). The Group's current ratio was 0.76
at December 31, 2023 as compared with 0.70 at December 31, 2022, which
equals to total current assets divided by total current liabilities as at the end

of the year.

As at December 31, 2023, the Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately RMB200.8 million (December 31, 2022: RMB120.6 million),
which is mainly funded from the proceeds raised upon successful listing,
funds generated from operations, and facilities from bank and other
borrowings. As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Group's
total facilities for bank and other borrowings amounted to RMB3,032,161,000
and RMB2,235,911,000 of which RMB1,582,858,000 and RMB1,367,187,000 had

been utilized, respectively.

The H Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since the Listing Date.
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company since the
Listing Date. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares including
the Unlisted Shares and H Shares.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policies to ensure the liquidity requirements from daily operations

as well as capital expenditures are met.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

We aim to maintain sufficient cash and facilities to meet our liquidity
requirements. We finance our working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and alternative funding
resources from equity and debt. The primary objectives of our capital
management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support our business and
maximize Shareholders’ value. To effectively improve the utilization rate and
liquidity of our idle cash, we purchased structured deposits of approximately
RMB40.0 million in 2023 (2022: RMB650.0 million) in total, which were issued
by domestic systemically important banks' (D-SIBs) released by the People’s
Bank of China. The funds invested in structured deposits were all redeemed

on or before December 31, 2023.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to Shareholders, return capital to Shareholders

or issue new shares.

Capital Expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's capital expenditures amounted
to approximately RMB253.6 million, representing an increase by 14.9% from
approximately RMB220.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2022,

primarily due to business expansions.

1 Asreported in the news released by the People’s Bank of China in September 2023,
the People’s Bank of China and the National Administration of Financial Regulation
designated 20 banks as China's domestic systematically important banks (D-SIBs),
including China Everbright Bank, China Minsheng Bank, Ping An Bank, Huaxia Bank,
Bank of Ningbo, Bank of Jiangsu, China Guangfa Bank, Bank of Shanghai, Bank of
Nanjing, Bank of Beijing, China CITIC Bank, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank,
Postal Savings Bank of China, Bank of Communications, China Merchants Bank,
Industrial Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Bank of China, China
Construction Bank and Agricultural Bank of China, pursuant to the Assessment
Methodology for Systemically Important Banks.
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Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2023, the Group pledged assets of approximately
RMB418.8 million as collateral for bank borrowings or any other financing
activities, representing an increase of 32.2% from approximately RMB316.8

million as at December 31, 2022.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Foreign Exchange Rates

The Group's business operations are mainly conducted in the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in RMB, being the Group's functional currency.
Meanwhile, the Group had certain transactions with overseas customers,
which were mostly settled in U.S. dollars. As of December 31, 2023, the Group
had not entered into any exchange contracts or any hedging transactions
or instruments against exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate of
RMB against U.S. dollars. However, the Group will monitor foreign exchange
risks regularly and consider hedging significant foreign currency risks when

necessary.

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

We recognize the importance of talent for sustainable business growth
and competitive advantages. We believe that our success depends on our
ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. As at December
31,2023, we had 1,733 (December 31, 2022: 1,622) full-time employees, all of
whom were based in China. Our total employee benefit expense (excluding
Directors’ and Supervisors’ remunerations) were RMB222.6 million (2022:
RMB215.1 million) for the year ended December 31, 2023. The remuneration
is determined based on the terms of reference, the prevailing industry
practice and the educational background, experience and performance of
the staff, the importance of the post, the amount of time he/she devotes
to the post, etc.. These policies are reviewed regularly. Besides salaries, the
Group also provides other fringe benefits to its employees, including year-

end bonuses, allowances and benefits in kind.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD T

We are committed to equal employment opportunity and employee diversity.
Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and compensation and benefits. Under
our internal policies, the employees shall not be discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender, ethnic background,
religion, age, marital status, family status, disability, pregnancy or any other

discrimination prohibited by applicable laws and regulations.

We believe we have maintained good relationships with our employees and
the employees are not represented by a labor union. During the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report, we did not experience any
strikes or any labor disputes with our employees which have had or are likely

to have a material effect on our business.

The Group provides training sessions tailored to the needs of its employees
in different functions. Topics covered by such training sessions include our
corporate culture, internal rules and policies and professional knowledge,
know-hows and skills. We also provide training to management and
administrative personnel at all levels, in order to enhance their leadership
capabilities. Such training sessions are conducted in both online and offline
forms. We also offer external training opportunities to our management team

and technicians.

Significant Investment and Material Events during the Reporting
Period

The Board is not aware of any significant investment and events which could
have a material impact on our operating and financial performance for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

Share Pledge

During the Reporting Period, there was no pledge by our Controlling
Shareholders of their interests in the Shares to secure the Company’s debts

or to secure guarantees or other support of its obligation before the listing.
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Bank and other Borrowing and Gearing Ratio

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB1,582.9 million (2022: RMB1,367.2 million). Please refer
to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report for

more details of the interest rate.

As of December 31, 2023, our gearing ratio, calculated as bank loans
and other borrowings divided by total equity as of the same date, was
approximately 147.0% (2022: 152.0%).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
or Joint Ventures

We did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
consolidated affiliated entities, associates or joint ventures during the year
ended December 31, 2023.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2023, save as disclosed in the section headed “Net
Proceeds from the Global Offering and Use of Proceeds” in this annual report,
we did not have any existing plans for other material investments or capital

assets.

Events Subsequent to the Reporting Period

The Group is not aware of any significant events which could have a material
impact on our operating and financial performance after the Reporting

Period.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

£ EEKSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hou Zekuan (R¥2%), aged 55, is the founder of our Company, an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board of our Company. He
established our Company on December 5, 2007 and has been a Director
of our Company since its establishment. He was re-designated as an
executive Director on April 3, 2023. He is primarily responsible for the overall

management and Board-related work.

He has over 30 years of experience in the intralogistics equipment industry.
He founded our Company together with Mr. Hou Zebing in December 2007,
and acted as our executive director and general manager from December
2007 to November 2010 and then served as our executive director from
November 2010 to October 2012. Since October 2012, he has been our
chairman of the Board. He served as a supervisor of Foshan Shunde Ronggui
Lixin Forklift Co., Ltd. (FILMIEERAHENMXEHBRAF) ("Ronggui
Lixin"), one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, from December 2007 to
December 2021, and he was responsible for managing supervisors and
providing independent advice. Since July 2018, he has also served as a
director of Ferretto Intelligent Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (¥ fE 2 AL
(LS BRAR) (Ferretto Intelligent”). Since August 2019, he has been
a director of Hefei Xunyun Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd. (R IEFIEE g
BAR AT ("Hefei Xunyun”), where he has been responsible for providing

strategic advice regarding development.

Prior to founding our Company, he served as the section head of Anhui
Tixiem Forklift Co., Ltd. (ZHHFIEE X B HBRAF]), a company primarily
engaged in the manufacture and operation of a wide range of forklift
trucks and forklift accessories, and he was responsible for production and

procurement from April 1994 to April 2006.

He obtained his bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering from Xi'an
Jiaotong University (FAZ2 3238 AE2) in the PRC in July 1990. He obtained an
engineer certificate from the department of Industrial Machinery of Anhui
Province (Z&IE T Z M EE) since November 1995.

Mr. Hou Zekuan is the elder brother of Mr. Hou Zebing, an executive Director
and general manager (chief executive) of our Company and the elder cousin
of Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan, an executive Director and deputy general manager of

our Company.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Zebing ({&1Z ), aged 49, is the co-founder of our Company, an
executive Director and general manager (chief executive) of our Company.
He joined our Group on December 5, 2007. He was appointed as a Director
on October 6, 2012 and was re-designated as an executive Director on April
3, 2023. He is primarily responsible for the overall management and daily

operation.

He has over 23 years of experience in the intralogistics equipment industry.
He founded our Company together with Mr. Hou Zekuan in December 2007,
and acted as our supervisor from December 2007 to November 2010, then
served as the general manager from November 2010 to October 2012. He has
been serving as the director and general manager since October 2012. Since
2001, he has accumulated extensive experience in management by serving as
the executive director and senior management at our subsidiaries, including
as: (i) an executive director and general manager of Guangzhou Xinze
Forklift Leasing Co., Ltd. (BINFTNENXBEHEBRAF]) (‘Guangzhou Xinze")
since May 2010, and he is responsible for overall management and daily
operations; (ii) an executive director and general manager of Guangzhou
Pengze Machinery Equipment Co., Ltd. (BN ZEWRZEBRAT])
since March 2010, and he is responsible for overall management and daily
operations; (iii) an executive director and general manager of Zhuhai TCM
Forklift Co., Ltd. (Bk/8 6 FaiR 8 X AR /2 A)) since September 2004, and he
is responsible for overall management and daily operations; (iv) an executive
director and general manager of Zhongshan TCM Forklift Sales Co., Ltd. (FF
I PRI X B E B R A F]) (“Zhongshan TCM") since March 2003, and
he is responsible for overall management and daily operations; and (v) an
executive director and general manager of Ronggui Lixin from February 2001
to December 2022, and he was responsible for overall management and daily

operations.

Prior to founding our Company, he served as the secretary of the Youth
League Committee of Hubei Communication Technical College (#81b32
BEEZERTEBT), a full-time public general institution of higher learning,
and he was responsible for the work of the Communist Youth League from
September 1996 to December 2000.

He received his bachelor’s degree in automotive engineering from Changsha
Transportation College (K282 T) (currently known as Changsha
University of Science & Technology (=2 T K£)) in the PRC in June 1996.

Mr. Hou Zebing is the younger brother of Mr. Hou Zekuan, an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board of our Company and the younger
cousin of Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan, an executive Director and deputy general

manager of our Company.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EEREREERE

Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan ($8&#T), aged 50, is an executive Director and deputy
general manager of our Company. He joined our Group on December 5, 2007.
He was appointed as a Director on October 6, 2012 and was re-designated
as an executive Director on April 3, 2023. He is primarily responsible for the

management of supply chain, base, and other related operations.

He has extensive experience in the intralogistics equipment industry. He has
been engaged in various roles in our Company since February 2012, including
(i) the assistant to chairman from February 2012 to December 2015, and he
was responsible for supervising business affairs and the construction of the
supply chain of the procurement center; (ii) the director from October 2012
to June 2013, and he was responsible for the management of supply chain
and relevant operation; (iii) the deputy general manager from January 2016
to November 2016, and he was responsible for supply chain management
and other related operations; (iv) the director and deputy general manager
from August 2016 to December 2018, and he was responsible for supply
chain management and other related operations; and (v) director and deputy
general manager since January 2019, and he is responsible for supply chain
and supply base management and other related operations. He has been a
director of Hefei Langyun I0T Technology Co., Ltd. (& iBEAZ ¥Et R A IR
A \]) ("Hefei Langyun”) since February 2019, and he is responsible for the
overall management. In addition, he served as a sales manager of Ronggui
Lixin from March 2001 to January 2012, and he was responsible for the sales

management.

He received his bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering and automation
from Beijing Economic and Technological Research Institute (1t 5 &7 B AlT
WHEERBR) in the PRC in July 1998.

Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan is the younger cousin of Mr. Hou Zekuan, an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board of our Company and the elder
cousin of Mr. Hou Zebing, an executive Director and general manager (chief

executive) of our Company.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ma Li (FBEE), aged 35, is an executive Director and secretary to the
Board. She joined our Group on March 18, 2008. She was appointed as
a Director on February 10, 2018 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on April 3, 2023. She is primarily responsible for investor relations

management and equity affairs management, corporate governance.

She has extensive experience in financial management. She served as the
financial officer of our Company from March 2008 to January 2012, then was
promoted as the financial controller from February 2012 to September 2017,
and she was responsible for the overall management of the financial center.
Ms. Ma has been serving as the secretary of the Board and Director of our

Company since September 2017 and February 2018, respectively.

She has been the supervisor of our subsidiaries, including (i) Ferretto
Intelligent since July 2018; (i) Anhui Folangsi Machinery Co., Ltd. (ZZ &
BAETHE AR AR A A)) since August 2018; (iii) Hefei Langyun since February
2019; (iv) Hefei Xunyun since August 2019; and (v) Shenyang Tianshun
Toyota Forklift Sales Co, Ltd. (&ERIEE A X BEIHEHBR A7) (‘Shenyang
Tianshun”) since November 2011, and she is primarily responsible for

supervising and providing independent advice.

She received her college degree in accounting from Hubei Communications
Technical College (#3b 323 HAMTEFT) in the PRC in June 2008.

B -EEReREEE

BELZLT 35 BARNTESHREFTSW
£ o HM200853 A18 BIIARER - 20184
2AI0RAEBZERESE - N2023F4A3AKER
ERmAWNITES FTZAEREEBEREER
BRESEHEIE  DEESHA -

REELEETNHBHEIRLE - 200853 A F 2012
F1A ERRAFMBAE - 201292 AF2017
FORBHAUBHRE  BEVBPLHERE
3 o {20179 A K20184E2 AL - £EBEALD
AEFENERES -

B—EEEARRTARIMNES  BIE()HEE
Bee (B20185F7 AR) & (i) TR BA AT A G IR
AR (B2018F8 AR) : (iINAIAE (B 20194
2A#)  (vEIEME(B2019F8ARR) : &(v)
BISRIEEHXEHEERAF (EHXIE])
(B2011F11AR) TEBEEEMEMHBET
ﬁ, °

et

532008 4 6 7 215 7 B 4L ST B M BT R
GHEFEASEE -

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

27



28

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EEREREERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Yingchun (KRMBEF), aged 46, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. He joined our Group on October 22, 2016 and has been a Director
since then. He was re-designated as a non-executive Director on April 3, 2023.
He is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice on the development
of our Company.

He has extensive experience in investment management. Prior to joining
our Group, he has been a partner of Eastern Bell (Shanghai) Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (S5 (L EIXREETEBMRAT), a venture
capital institute specialized in early-and growth-stage investments and is
an affiliate of Eastern Bell I, one of our Company's pre-IPO Investors, and
he is responsible for venture capital and investment management since
September 2009.

He received his bachelor's degree and master’s degree in tourism
management from Fudan University ({8 B KX2) in the PRC in July 1999 and
July 2002, respectively.

He has resigned with effect from June 14, 2024 due to his personal career

plan.

Mr. Shu Xiaowu (£F/NE), aged 55, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. He joined our Group on February 10, 2018 and has been a Director
since then. He was re-designated as a non-executive Director on April 3, 2023.
He is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice on the development
of our Company.

He has extensive experience in financing. Prior to joining our Group, he
has been a business partner of Shenzhen Dachen Caizhi Venture Capital
Management Co,, Ltd. CRINTTERI B AR EETIEBR A F]), one of the
well-known venture capital institutions in China, and he is responsible for
investment management since May 2007. He also served as project manager
of Guangdong Yueke Financial Group Co, Ltd. (ERAER&mMEBABRE A
aJ), one of the well-known venture capital institutions in China, and he was
responsible for project investment from July 1998 to May 2007.

He received his bachelor's degree in English and literature from Hunan
Normal University (#iEIRM&AZ) in the PRC in July 1991. He received
his master's degree in political economy from Jinan University (BFA
£ in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Shu also received his executive master of
business administration from Sun Yat-sen University (7 LLIZK22) in the PRC in
December 2012.

He has resigned with effect from June 14, 2024 due to his personal career

plan.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiang Edward (3%&#), aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on April 3, 2023. He is primarily responsible for

providing independent advice and judgement to the Board.

He has over 15 years of experience in corporate financing. He has been a
non-executive director of Top Education Group Ltd. CRMKIESHEEE
fR2A]) since September 2020, one of Australia’s primary and best-in-class
private tertiary education providers whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 01752.HK). He has also been a director of investor
relations department of Minsheng Education Group Company Limited (R4
HBEEBHFRR AT since May 2017, a company committed to constructing
a vocational education service system and whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 01569.HK), and he is responsible for planning
and executing investor relations strategies. From January 2015 to June
2017, Mr. Chiang served as a senior manager of Town Health International
Medical Group Limited (FRIZBIREESBE AR AF]), a comprehensive
medical center with diversified medical services and whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 03886.HK), and he was responsible for
PRC projects and Mainland China operations. He has accumulated extensive
experience in corporate financial management by serving as the senior
management at various enterprises, including as: (i) a corporate finance
manager of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (JTZES € BZR
BBRAF]), a financial service provider based in Hong Kong, where he was
responsible for corporate financing transactions in Hong Kong from January
2013 to January 2014; (i) a manager and licensed representative of South
West Capital Limited (FAm g2 & BMR/AF]), a company engaged in dealing
in securities and advising on corporate finance, where he was responsible
for advising on corporate finance from April 2012 to January 2013; (i) a
corporate finance manager of Huntington Asia Limited (ZE M AR A7)
(currently known as Octal Capital Limited (/\F £ @AR2AF])), a company
engaged in financing services, where he was responsible for advising on
corporate finance from June 2011 to April 2012; and (iv) an associate and was
promoted to assistant manager of VC Capital Limited ((EZBE AR A A)), a
company engaged in dealing in securities and advising on corporate finance,
where he was responsible for advising on corporate finance from May 2008
to December 2010.

He received his bachelor's degree in Arts from Macquarie University in

Sydney, Australia in November 2005.

Ex  EEReNEEE

BAFHITES

BREWAE 4358 0 R2023F4A3B KIS A
BYFRTES T2EERNEZTOREBY
=R e -

BEDSERME S EAERB5FEE - 5202059
R ERMNKESHEEERAF (—FEX
FEFEN—RILYaEHERMHER - HRH
B FT BT (BRI ARSR £ 01752.HK) ) BUFEERTT
ERoB17F5AR  TREHBEEBRA
A(—REINEREBEHERBBROAR
H MR FEH 22 A £ (AR SR - 01569.HK) ) B9
BAEBERBPLE  AERETNRITIREERS
FREREEEE - 2015F1 AZE2017F6 A » Bk
EEEREREREREEGRAE (—RREHRSZ
T BERG O E S BEFR L - HIRG AR
Fr £ (&2 fL55% 1 03886.HK) ) B SR EEA
B BEETBEMNEBEEMPREAMER - KBE
EEZREERREEAE  BATEEMND
¥UBERLS - B35 ()2013F1 AZE201451
A EHEEESSRIERBERAR (—REEN
SRBRBIRER) OECEMBLE - aEFED
PERERS  (iI)2012F4AF2013F18 - &
FAMREARAR (—RIBHEHFR SRR
BHANAR) MEERBERE  BECER
BBWIE (12011 F6 AE2012F4 7 - F£
BEMERAR (RBNAFERAERAT @ —K
HEMERBHO AR WEEMBLRE  BED
EBMEFBAIIE  R(v)2008F5 AE20104F 12
A TEAREBRAFR (—RUAEBLFRIHR
TERMEFBANAR) BIKE - WEARKIED
B BERMHLEREER -

#82005% 11 FEBAXFITRBEEHAR
SPCEES TP

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

29



30

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EEREREERE

Dr. Fan Xia (88), aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director
of our Company. She joined our Group on August 18, 2018 has been an
independent director of our Company since then. She was re-designated
independent-non executive Director on April 3, 2023. She is primarily

responsible for providing independent advice and judgement to the Board.

Prior to joining our Company, she has been a professor of South China
University of Technology ((:F12 T K2), a public comprehensive research
university, and she is responsible for teaching and research related works
since September 2004. From December 2016 to December 2022, she served
as an independent director of Guangzhou Port Company Limited (B /M E &
A BRAF]), a company mainly engaged in terminal operations and whose
shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601228.5H), and
she was responsible for providing independent advice. She has also been
serving as an independent director of Guangzhou KingMed Diagnostics
Group Co, Ltd. (BEMNEHBERBEBERKRMNER AT, a company mainly
engaged in third-party medical laboratory and diagnostic services and whose
shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603882.SH), and

she is responsible for providing independent advice since January 2024.

She received her bachelor's degree in economics from the School of
Management Northwestern Polytechnical University (Fadt T KEE R
B07%) in the PRC in July 2000. She received her master's degree in business
management from Northwestern Polytechnical University (FE4t T KE) in
the PRC in April 2003. Dr. Fan received her doctoral degree in management
science and engineering from Northwestern Polytechnical University (F1t T
% KE) in the PRC in September 2006.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Chuanbang (E{&#3B), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on April 3, 2023. He is primarily responsible for

providing independent advice and judgement to the Board.

He has extensive experience in accounting field. Prior to joining our Group,
he has been a partner of Baker Tilly China Certified Public Accountants (K&
R & HAIEFSFT), an accounting firm, and he is responsible for the overall

management since December 2006.

He holds directorships in various companies, including (i) an independent
director of Lian Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (FIZ ASRBEMHERQF),
a national life insurance company, and he is responsible for providing
independent advice since January 2021; (ii) an independent director of
Shanghai Wondertek Software Co., Ltd. (E/BRETHRHER AR, a
company engaged in software products and solutions centered on video
intelligence and whose shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603189.5H), and he is responsible for providing independent advice
since September 2018; (iii) an independent director of Nantong Guosheng
Intelligence Technology Group Co., Ltd. (F:BE B EZERIFEERMNERA
A]), a company engaged in metal cutting machine tool business and whose
shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688558.SH), and he
was responsible for providing independent advice from July 2016 to August
2022; (iv) an independent director of Warom Technology Incorporated
Company FEZRHFERHDBRAF]), a company engaged in professional
lighting equipment and whose shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 603855.5H), and he was responsible for providing independent
advice from November 2016 to September 2022; and (v) a director of Greetec
Co, Ltd. (BEHEMMBRAF]), a company engaged in engineering
project management technology services and whose shares are listed on
Beijing Stock Exchange (stock code: 836208.BJ) from July 2015 to June 2022.

He received his college’s degree in physics from Hefei Institute of Education
(BIEHE EF7) (currently known as Hefei University (& FEEFR)) in the PRC
in June 1990. He also received his master’s degree in business administration
through part time learning from Xiamen University (JEPJA£2) in the PRC in
June 2016. Mr. Wang was qualified as a Statistician (45&TA) by the National
Bureau of Statistics (BIZX#tat/®) in March 2001 and as a Certified Public
Accountant by the China Institute of Certified Public Accountants in June
2004.

He has resigned with effect from June 14, 2024 due to his personal career

plan.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EEREREERE

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Li Xiaolan (Z=/V#), aged 42, has been a supervisor of our Company
since December 2017 and was re-designated as employee representative
and chairman of the Supervisory Committee on April 3, 2023. She is primarily
responsible for presiding over the work of the Supervisory Committee,

supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

She joined our Group on December 5, 2007 as a procurement director.
She served as a procurement personnel of Foshan Shunde Weize
Construction Machinery Co., Ltd (1L )E{ER EE T2 #H AR Q)
from August 2004 to November 2007, and she was responsible for supply
chain procurement related works. She was promoted to director of the
procurement center since December 2007, and she has been responsible for

the overall management of procurement center.

She received her college’s degree in physical distribution management
from Shandong University (LUZAZ2) in the PRC in January 2016. She was
qualified as a Technician (¥6M) from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security, The People’s Republic of China (FAZE AR FEFIE A HE R
HEREEEL) in September 2018.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Xiaolong (3R/M8E), aged 48, joined our Group on June 21, 2016
as a director, and has been re-appointed as our Supervisor since October
2016. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent

advice to our Board.

He has extensive experience in investment management field. Prior to joining
our Group, he has been a partner and deputy general manager of Richen
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (L E R EEEBR AR, a leading new
private equity investment institution in China and one of our Company's
pre-IPO Investors, and he is responsible for investment management related
works since May 2015. He served as a director and general manager of
Guotai Junan Innovation Investment Co., Ltd. (BHEZAIFIEEER A
7)), a company engaged in equity investment, and he was responsible for
investment overall management from February 2013 to June 2015. He served
as an executive director of Industrial Capital Management Co., Ltd. (E27& &
FTEREEAFR AR, a wholly-owned private investment fund subsidiary
of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601377.SH), and he was responsible for overseeing
the investment management from October 2007 to February 2013. He also
served as a manager of the marketing department of Dell China (Ef (-
E)EPRAF]), a company engaged in computer hardware, and he was
responsible for marketing related works from September 2006 to May 2007.

He received his bachelor's degree in intercomputer communication from
Shanghai Tiedao University (/88382 0T) (currently known as Tongji
University (FDEAE)) in the PRC in July 1998. He received his master's
degree in business administration from Fudan University (8 B K& in
the PRC in June 2004. He also received his executive master of business
administration through part time learning from China Europe International
Business School (FFERBIFR TR &4 FE) in the PRC in August 2018.

He has resigned with effect from June 14, 2024 due to his personal career

plan.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. He Xiaocheng (B /), aged 44, has been a Supervisor of our Company
since December 2017. He is primarily responsible for supervising and

providing independent advice to our Board.

He joined our Group on December 5, 2007. He served as a manager of
maintenance service department of Zhongshan TCM, and was responsible
for maintenance management service from March 2003 to December 20009.
Since August 2007, he has been a supervisor of Zhongshan TCM, and is
responsible for supervising the overall management. He then served as a
leader of maintenance parts business management center of our Company
from December 2007 to November 2016 and was promoted as a director
of maintenance parts business management center of our Company from
December 2016 to September 2018, and he was responsible for the overall
management of the center. He has been a director of asset center of our

Company since October 2018, and he is responsible for asset management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Zekuan (f&/£ %), aged 55, is an executive Director and the chairman

of the Board of our Company, see the above section for his biography.
Mr. Hou Zebing (&2 ), aged 49, is an executive Director and general
manager (chief executive) of our Company, see the above section for his

biography.

Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan (82B£&f), aged 50, is an executive Director and deputy

general manager of our Company, see the above section for his biography.

Ms. Ma Li (F5BE), aged 35, is an executive Director and secretary to the Board,

see the above section for her biography.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Limin (BF|EK), aged 56, has been a deputy general manager of
the Company since December 2007. He is primarily responsible for product

technology research and development management.

He joined the Group on December 5, 2007 and served as a sales manager of
Zhongshan TCM, and he was responsible for sales management from March
2006 to December 2007. He also served as a director of the Company from
October 2012 to November 2016, where he was responsible for product

technology and research and development management.

He has extensive experience in the manufacturing industry. Prior to joining
the Group, he served as a sales manager of Xi‘an Tiexi Em Forklift Sales Co.,
Ltd. (PR PRI X B HE B PR A F]), a company engaged in forklift sales
and service, and he was responsible for corporate service from February 2002
to March 2006. He also worked at Xi‘an Aviation Engine (Group) Co., Ltd.
(P B i (@) B R /A 7)), a company engaged in aircraft engine

manufacturing, from December 1985 to December 2000.

He received his college’s degree in mechanical design and manufacturing
through online education from Wuhan University of Technology (FU£IE T
A2) in the PRC in July 2016.

Mr. Yang Qingyuan (# B Jt), aged 45, has been a deputy general manager
of our Company since September 2017. He is primarily responsible for the

operations support and management.

He joined our Group on January 1, 2010 and served as a sales manager of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, including in (i) Zhongshan TCM from
August 2004 to July 2010; (i) Guangzhou Xinze from August 2010 to June
2013; and (iii) Shenyang Tianshun from July 2013 to December 2014, where
he was responsible for sales management. Mr. Yang served as a director of
our Company from October 2012 to August 2016, where he was responsible
for operations support and management. He served as a director of sales
management of our Company from January 2010 to November 2016, where
he was responsible for overall sales management. He was then promoted as
a director of leasing department from December 2016 to September 2017,
where he was responsible for leasing management. He also served as a
chairman of supervisory committee of our Company from November 2016 to
September 2017, where he was responsible for presiding over the work of the
Supervisory Committee, supervising the Board and providing independent

advice to the Board.
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He received his bachelor's degree in financial management from Lanzhou
University of Finance and Fconomics (/N Z2Fx) in the PRC in June 2002.

Mr. Pan Fei ((83E), aged 49, has been the chief financial officer of our Group

since September 2017. He is primarily responsible for financial management.

He joined our Group on April 25, 2016 and served as a secretary to the Board
from April 2016 to September 2017, where he was responsible for corporate
governance and financing. Further, from November 2016 to March 2017, he
served as both a secretary to the Board and as a deputy general manager,

primarily responsible for corporate governance and financing.

He has extensive financial management experience. Prior to joining our
Group, he served in Guangdong Qide Education Service Co., Ltd. (R ENE
HE RIEAEBR AR, a company engaged in study aboard consulting, from
July 2010 to April 2016. He served in Luxottica Tristar (Dongguan) Optical Co.,
Lid. (BE#EBRER(R5)REFBMR AT, a company engaged in glasses
manufacturing, from October 2007 to June 2010. He also served as a manager
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. (Guangzhou Branch) ({8 2= 5k & 51
EBETEM 5 F7), an international accounting firm, and he was responsible

for accounting works from October 2000 to August 2007.

He received his bachelor's degree in auditing from Sun Yat-sen University (&
K28 in the PRC in June 1997. He was qualified as a Certified Practicing
Accountant from the Guangdong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
January 2009 and as a Certified Public Valuer from the Guangdong Appraisal
Society (ERE & EEHE) in March 2010.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Ma Li (F58), see “Executive Directors”in this section.

Ms. Tang Ka Yan (883 fR), was appointed as a joint company secretary of
our Company. Ms. Tang is currently a senior manager of corporate services
of Tricor Services Limited. Ms. Tang is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered

Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute.
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The Board is pleased to present this report of the Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our Company was established as a limited liability company in the PRC on
December 5, 2007 and was converted into a joint stock company with limited
liability on November 25, 2016 under the laws of the PRC. The H Shares of our
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on November
10, 2023.

OUR BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are a leading intralogistics equipment solutions provider in China.
Focusing on intralogistics equipment subscription services, we strive to
provide enterprises with one-stop solutions for intralogistics equipment

utilization and management.

OUR SUBSIDIARIES

The details of our subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The H Shares had not yet been listed on the Stock Exchange during the
period from January 1, 2023 (i.e. commencement date of the Reporting
Period) up to the Listing Date. During the period from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2023, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
Shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by
the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by the

public since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Pursuant to Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the business review of the Group, including an analysis
of the Group’s financial performance and the illustration of potential
business development of the Group in the future, are set out in “Chairman'’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this annual report. Events which could
have a material impact on our operating and financial performance after
the Reporting Period are set out in the section headed “Significant Events
after the Reporting Period” of this annual report. The Company’s major
relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers and others which
have a significant impact on the Company are contained in the section

headed “Relationship with Key Stakeholders” of this annual report.

THE GROUP’S RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on page 168 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend any payment of dividends for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and the laws of
the PRC, the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights and share
options which would oblige the Company to issue new shares to its existing

shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to our

Shareholders as a result of holding our securities.

Details of taxation are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND ISSUED SHARES

As of December 31, 2023, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB87,005,704.00 divided into 348,022,816 Shares with a par value of
RMBO0.25 each (including 206,594,736 H Shares and 141,428,080 Unlisted
Shares). Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated

financial statements of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December 31, 2023, the Company's distributable reserves were
approximately RMB255,988,000.

DONATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the amount of charitable
donations of the Group amounted to RMB8,000.

DEBENTURES AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not issue any

debentures and convertible bonds.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this report, the Group did not enter

into or have any equity-linked agreements during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the Articles of Association and applicable laws and regulations,
each director, supervisor, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
judgment rendered in his/her favour as a director, supervisor, auditor or other
officer of the Company in any proceedings, or losses or liabilities incurred
or suffered as a result of the conduct of a defense in a civil or criminal

proceeding in which he/she was acquitted.

The article on permitted indemnity has been in force throughout the
Reporting Period. The Company has taken out liability insurance to provide

appropriate protection for the Directors.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at December 31,
2023 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not provide any
loans or loan guarantees, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, Supervisors,
senior management and Controlling Shareholders of the Company, or any of

their respective connected persons.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at December 31, 2023, the leasehold land of RMB34,221,000 and property,
plant and equipment of RMB384,578,000 were pledged as securities for
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (2022: the leasehold land
of RMB34,972,000 and property, plant and equipment of RMB281,782,000).

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is dedicated to operating in a sustainable manner while balancing
the interests of various stakeholders, including substantial Shareholders,

employees, customers and suppliers.
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SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is aware of the importance of protecting the interests of its
Shareholders and effective communication with them. The Group believes
that communication with Shareholders is a two-way process, strives to ensure
the quality and effectiveness of information disclosure, and maintains regular
dialogue with Shareholders and listens to their views and feedback carefully,
which will be achieved through Shareholders’ general meetings, corporate

communications, interim and annual reports and results announcements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, revenue generated from the Group's
five largest customers represented approximately 11.3% (2022: 13.9%) of the
Group's total revenue during the year, while revenue generated from the
Group's largest customer represented approximately 3.9% (2022: 5.8%) of the

Group's total revenue during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, procurement from the Group's
five largest suppliers represented approximately 44.3% (2022: 46.7%) of the
Group's total purchases during the year, while procurement from the Group's
largest supplier represented approximately 16.2% (2022: 22.1%) of the

Group's total purchases during the year.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any

material disputes with the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, none of the Directors, their close
associates or, to the knowledge of the Directors, any Shareholders which
owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers of the Group

during the Reporting Period.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

We recognize the importance of talent for sustainable business growth
and competitive advantages. We believe that our success depends on our
ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. As at December
31,2023, we had 1,733 (December 31, 2022: 1,622) full-time employees, all of
whom were based in China. Our total employee benefit expense (excluding
directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations) were RMB222.6 million (2022:
RMB215.1 million) for the year ended December 31, 2023. The remuneration
is determined based on the terms of reference, the prevailing industry
practice and the educational background, experience and performance of
the staff, the importance of the post, the amount of time he/she devotes
to the post, etc.. These policies are reviewed regularly. Besides salaries, the
Group also provides other fringe benefits to its employees, including year-

end bonuses, allowances and benefits in kind.

We are committed to equal employment opportunity and employee diversity.
Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and compensation and benefits. Under
our internal policies, the employees shall not be discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender, ethnic background,
religion, age, marital status, family status, disability, pregnancy or any other

discrimination prohibited by applicable laws and regulations.

We believe we have maintained good relationships with our employees and
the employees are not represented by a labor union. During the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report, we had not experienced any
strikes or any labor disputes with our employees which have had or are likely

to have a material effect on our business.
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The Group provides training sessions tailored to the needs of our employees
in different functions. Topics covered by such training sessions include our
corporate culture, internal rules and policies and professional knowledge,
know-hows and skills. We also provide training to management and
administrative personnel at all levels, in order to enhance their leadership
capabilities. Such training sessions are conducted in both online and offline
forms. We also offer external training opportunities to our management team

and technicians.

The Remuneration Committee is established to assist the Board in

formulating our remuneration policy.

Details of the remuneration of our employees, Directors, Supervisors and
senior management and the five highest paid individuals are set out in notes

7,8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the Group's retirement and employee benefits are set out in note 8

to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As of the date of this annual report, the Company did not have any share

option scheme.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operating results of the Group are affected by various factors, and the

major risks are summarized as follows:

(i) Our business, growth and prospects are significantly affected by the

demand of our services in China.

(i) Any economic slowdown or decrease in general economic activities may
adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition,

and prospects.
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(if)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

We incurred bank loans and other borrowings to invest in the expansion
of our equipment fleet during the Reporting Period. Changes in interest
rates of such bank loans and other borrowings could have a material
adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial

condition.

Significant fluctuations in the price for our intralogistics equipment
subscription services may adversely affect our business, results of

operations, financial condition, and prospects.

We could be adversely affected as a result of any sales we made to
customers in certain countries that are, or become subject to, sanctions
administered by the U.S., the European Union, the United Nations,

Australia and other relevant sanctions authorities.

Our historical results may not be indicative of our future prospects and

results of operations.

The intralogistics equipment solution industry in the PRC is competitive
and we may not be able to compete successfully against existing and

new competitors.

(viii) Maintaining or increasing the utilization rate of our intralogistics

(ix)

equipment is crucial for the success of our business.
We are subject to various risks relating to third-party payments.
Improper management or use of our equipment may lead to a

shortening of its useful life and/or a decline in market value, which could

impact our business.

As the above circumstances are not exhaustive, investors are advised to make

their own judgment or consult their own investment advisers before making

any investment in our shares.

See the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus for more details of

other risks and uncertainties the Group faces.

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

BEYE BMASHRTERREME
K REARBEFRHES - ZFRTT
BN E A A8 BRE A R 2 8 AT B B B IR0
B KEXBERUBRRELEEKRTH

By 488
FE o

& APYIZ A DR R A AT R AR A A (B 48 R UK
BreHRMANEY  KEXE BB
MR B AT REETRFE -

BAATEERARMAZIEE - B8 - B
BB R B E At 4 A I B B 0 B B
IR BFRERNE TERNTPETE
ISHE MR B AR E -

BPMBEXERCARBMABROASR

FEE S AR REEIR T RITEBF A
A BPIRVEBERRA BB FH TR

i evy

BT o

RESREERMSAMRRENN B XY
BPEBNRNEEEE -

BMEEES =X NERNZERR -
MORBEERLERTEAJREERERE

24
RE/GHEER /I TIHEETRE S8
SREAMNES -

MR LEREREIFFREE  ERREEREY
BV IR EITEIRE Z AT - BT # i
ARG B

R ASE BN EMRR X T EEENES
15 A2EERERT (RERER] —F -



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated financial results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past four financial years is set out on page 5 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended December 31, 2023,
no contracts of significance were concluded between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries,
and no contracts of significance were concluded between the Controlling
Shareholders or their subsidiaries for the provision of services to the

Company or its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, no contracts
relating to the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company has been entered into or has

existed.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, June
11, 2024 to Friday, June 14, 2024 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify to attend the
AGM and to vote at the meeting, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. Friday, June 7,
2024.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERHE

BHE

AEBBEMENBRFENEERZGEEMHE
B BAENABNOBIZERAFERSEHEE ©
B TERERZGEAVBHRERN—#D -

HERBRRNEHN

BRAMEFRTREEI - 8E2023F12H31HLE
FE > ARABISEEAFAREIERERRKE
FAFRBIZHEWBETLERNEL - FRKRE
SHEF QRN MR AR R A SHH QAR H®
R METLEBAREH -

EEEN

BT HEEE2023F12 431 B IHHAR - WEET
VR EEARA R TMERT D EH
HEERITHNAL

EENERDBFELCFE

RAEER2024F6 8118 (B =) 220246
A14B (287 M (BEEEMA) BiEiE
BpdEER - ST IEREMRRNDBS
Bl ARAERERERREFAGEIRE L
BE - FERP X ERBEKREER2024F6
A78 (28F) TFNE=+5pX AR RS
BHRESERESEEAFELERAR - ik
BEEERBICHRERSBMPLIT7IE -

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

45



46

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible enterprise, the Group has always strived to strictly
comply with the laws and regulations on environmental protection. During
the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the Group complied
in all material respects with all relevant laws and regulations relating to

environmental protection during its operation.

The Company is aware of the importance of environmental protection. The
Company is committed to providing an eco-friendly energy environment for
our staff and developing energy conservation and carbon reduction policies

to minimize negative impacts on the environment.

See the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in

this annual report for further details.

COMPLY WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with in all material
respects the relevant laws and regulations that have a material impact on
the business and operations of the Group during the Reporting Period. The
Group had no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws

and regulations during the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Directors are not aware of any material litigation or claim pending or
threatened against the Group during the Reporting Period and up to the

date of this annual report.
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OVERVIEW OF THE BOARD

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Zekuan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Hou Zebing (General Manager)

Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan

Ms. Ma Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Yingchun
Mr. Shu Xiaowu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chiang Edward

Dr. Fan Xia

Mr. Wang Chuanbang

OVERVIEW OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Ms. Li Xiaolan (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Zhang Xiaolong
Mr. He Xiaocheng

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the biographies of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
SUPERVISORS

The Company entered into contracts with each of the Directors and
Supervisors in respect of, among other things, compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and applicable provisions on

arbitration.

Each of our Directors entered into a service contract with our Company on
April 3, 2023. The principal particulars of these service contracts comprise (a)
a term of three years commencing from the date of appointment; and (b)

termination provisions in accordance with their respective terms.

Each of our Supervisors entered into a service contract with our Company on
April 3, 2023.

The above appointments are subject to the relevant provisions in the Articles
of Association of the Company in respect of the resignation, removal and re-

election of Directors and Supervisors.

None of our Directors and Supervisors has or is proposed to have entered
into any service contract with any member of our Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by any member of our Group within one year

without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, none of
the Directors and Supervisors or any entity connected with the Directors and
Supervisors had a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiary or fellow subsidiary was a party during or as

at the end of the year ended December 31, 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to get
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other corporations; none of the Directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities

of the Company or any other corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND THE FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Pursuant to Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the Company has
established a Remuneration Committee to assist the Board in formulating
remuneration policy. The remuneration of each Director, Supervisor and
senior management is determined and recommended based on the main
scope, responsibilities, importance and remuneration level of relevant
positions in other similar enterprises. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

None of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration, and no remuneration were paid by the Group to
any of the Directors, Supervisors or senior management as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company and their associates had any interest in any businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business, or any other conflict of interest with the Group during the

Reporting Period.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmations of independence submitted by
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and the Company considers that each of these Directors to

be independent.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' PARTICULARS

Save as disclosed below, there has been no change in the information
required to be disclosed by the Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

Mr. Shu Xiaowu, one of our non-executive Directors, ceased to serve as the
general partner of Shenzhen Dachen Chuanglian Equity Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) CRIITTERAIBREREESEE
¥ (ARA%)) and Shenzhen Dachen Chuangtong Equity Investment
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (RIITTERBIAAREIR E R (BRE ).

Dr. Fan Xia, one of our independent non-executive Directors, was appointed
as an independent director of Guangzhou KingMed Diagnostics Group Co.,
Ld. (BN EEniE B M BRAR]), a company listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 603882.5H), with effect from January 31, 2024.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any other

disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which should be disclosed
pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by our Group
during the Reporting Period are disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements constitute any non-exempt
connected transactions or continuing connected transaction which should

be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SANCTIONS

The Directors have reviewed from time to time the execution and
effectiveness of the Implemented Measures provided in the section headed
“Business — Business activities with Customers in Relation to Countries
Subject to International Sanctions — Our Undertakings to the Stock Exchange”

in the Prospectus.

The Directors are not aware that any of our business activities would put our
Company or our Shareholders and investors at risks of being in breach of
sanctions imposed by the United States, the European Union, Australia, or the
United Kingdom (“U.K.").

Since the Listing Date and up to the Latest Practicable Date, we have not
used the net proceeds from the Global Offering nor any other funds raised
through the Stock Exchange, whether directly or indirectly, in connection
with activities, businesses or contracts actually or potentially related to

sanctions.

The Company does not have current or future business plans and intentions
in any country subject to sanctions imposed by the United States, the

European Union, Australia, and the UK.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 10, 2023. Since then, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") and
section 352 of the SFO have been applicable to the Directors, Supervisors

and chief executives of the Company.
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As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code, are as follows:

Long position in the Shares of the Company

R2023F 128318 MARREZTNE
£ EERARFERTRABRARAGHE

EEEEE (Ex R (EFLEERD) FEXv
#B) 8RRt - ARRR )

BEREPES (@)ER

GBS RIE D) EXVEE T R B85 bR
AL F R R R TR (BIERECGES
B S8 ) 80 R SR 5 T B M 25 RO
B) | U ARSNAR AR GES R E I
B 5352 (RO 77 #0 B A2 Por 2
B ¢ SQBREBETRIBAAR A RBRA
R RARIT :

RARBRG TR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the total share

Number of  Class of capital of our  Long Position
Name Identity/Nature of Interest Shares  Shares Company™  /Short Position
REQERE
BEnER
s 5t/ EEtE REEE (R) ROEH BAEIRY HE %A
Mr. Hou Zekuan®? Beneficial owner 15,876,204  H Shares Long position
EEEFRE ERlEEA HA e
Interest held jointly with another person 30,793,492 H Shares Long position
BE - ATHARBSANES HRA% o)
Total 46,669,696  H Shares 1341
Pas HAZ
Beneficial owner 37,044,480  Unlisted Shares Long position
EREEA el %) HE
Interest held jointly with another person 51,118,004  Unlisted Shares Long position
BE— ATHARENER e <) e
Total 88,162,484  Unlisted Shares 2533
P2 el §h)
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the total share

Number of  Class of capital of our  Long Position
Name Identity/Nature of Interest Shares  Shares Company™  /Short Position
REQRRAE
RENER
®E 5%/ ButE ROBE (R) KROS5 BABALY HF8R KA
Mr. Hou Zebing® Beneficial owner 15,243,384 H Shares Long position
EEFED BERBEAA HP% e
Interest in controlled corporations 15,550,108  H Shares Long position
R EE RS HA& 1A
Interest held jointly with another person 15,876,204  H Shares Long position
BE— ATHRRENES HPA% e
Total 46,669,696  H Shares 1341
3 HR
Beneficial owner 35,567,896  Unlisted Shares Long position
EREEA E il gy HE
Interest in controlled corporations 15,550,108  Unlisted Shares Long position
RIEEERES FE LMD 1A
Interest held jointly with another person 37,044,480  Unlisted Shares Long position
BE— ATHRABENER el §h) 1A
Total 88,162,484  Unlisted Shares 2533
A el gy
Notes: 5T

Q)

The calculation is based on the total number of 141,428,080 Unlisted Shares in
issue and 206,594,736 H Shares as of December 31, 2023.

Mr. Hou Zebing is the general partner of Guangzhou Daze. As such, Mr. Hou
Zebing is deemed to be interested in the 31,100,216 Shares (including 15,550,108
Unlisted Shares and 15,550,108 H Shares) held by Guangzhou Daze under SFO.
Mr. Hou Zekuan and Mr. Hou Zebing entered into an acting-in-concert agreement
on May 18, 2020 with a supplemental agreement dated March 24, 2023 to
acknowledge and confirm their acting-in-concert relationship in our Company,
pursuant to which Mr. Hou Zekuan and Mr. Hou Zebing have agreed to continue
to act in concert and reach consensus on any matter considered at board
meetings and general meetings of our Company. Therefore, Mr. Hou Zekuan and
Mr. Hou Zebing are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by each other.

m

REZE 2023512 A31 BB 31T89141,428,080 % 3F
BN }2206,594,736 IR HAR AE Ei st & -

BEELERBEMNEZNLBEREA Bt - 1R
BGEHFRBEKG)  E2RAEERRAREN
EERAR31,100,216 %% (B515,550,108 0%
JEE MRS 515,550,108 B HAR ) P EE B HEZS - B
2020F5 A18H - BREELAMREZERLERL
—BITEHE AR BHA2023F3 A248 R
Wik UAEARRERESERARRN—HITEE
% REZENGE  BEELAHEFERZERLER
BERE-BITH UREARREZETERR
RAELESNEMSEEKLS - Bt - &2
BhRAREERTERRARBELZENORG
W o
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, none of the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under the SFO), or
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As of December 31, 2023, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the
interests or short positions of each person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO are as follows:

Br EXCATIEEEE SN 0 FR2023F 128318 - #HE
EF  EFRAARAERTHABREARRL
HAREEAE (& B GEH LB EH) £ xvER)
Bk - BERN S EEEREEERE(GES
RAEREGD) EXVEETRESH EBAMAR A
EMRAeEm kAR (BIERB(ERLEE
&0 WEESIWRAEFOERLAR) 3K
REBERARRREBC(ES RBAEKRO) F3521
BEENECLMPNREZ AR - KBEREE
EFABAAR R MBS RAR

FERRRRAD KBRS
5879

HZE2023F 127318 RESHH - SAL(E
= EFRARAEERTHABRIN BRAAF]
B 17 K ABRERL (D P HE A Bl SR AR Bl IR IR (&
HRHEIEEA) F336EBEFERNE D MRE
(BEREEIED) EXVERE 2 M E3ID B AR A
NAEI MR HENEESIOAB DT ¢

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the total share

Number of capital of our  Long Position
Name Identity/Nature of Interest Shares  Class of Shares Company™  /Short Position
REDRRE
BENTR
BREB,/#E 1/ BEitE ROBE(R)  ROEH BOESEY  BE/ %R
Guangzhou Daze Beneficial owner 15,550,108 H Shares 447 Long position
EMER EREBA HR% e
Beneficial owner 15,550,108 Unlisted Shares 447
EREAA 3 Ehtn
Suzhou Eastern Bell Il Investment Beneficial owner 55541652 HShares 1596 Long position
Center (Limited Partnership)
EMNEDREIX_RRETLEREY)
("Eastern Bell I
FMEREIE _FREPL ERERA HRE H#eE

(BRAE%) ([BH=%])
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the total share

Number of capital of our  Long Position
Name Identity/Nature of Interest Shares  Class of Shares Company®  /Short Position
READRRE
BENER
BREB/ 5 1/ BEEE ROBE(R)  RHEH BOEALY  HE/ %R
Shanghai Dingxiao Enterprise Management Interest in controlled 63,541,652 H Shares 1826 Long position
Consulting Center (Limited Partnership) corporations
(DERBEXERHATLEREH)
("Shanghai Dingxiao")?”
DESBCEERHEATL (BRAR) REFERER HR% e
([HEg&E)e
Ningbo Dingji Venture Capital Partnership Interest in controlled 63,541,652 H Shares 1826 Long position
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) corporations
(ERRREERESHLEEREH)
("Ningbo Dingji")?
ERPEAERESH L (BRER) REFERER HR% e
(kg0
Mr. Yin Junping (F & )2 Interest in controlled 63,541,652 H Shares 1826 Long position
corporations
FETRED RIEEERR HIR He
Shanghai Dingman Enterprise Interest in controlled 64,464,752 H Shares 1852 Long position
Management Co, Ltd. corporations
(DERERRERERAR)
("Shanghai Dingman")
FERECKERERLA(LERE])Y RWEERR HRR HE
Mr. Yan Li (& 7)? Interest in controlled 64,464,752 H Shares 1852 Long position
corporations
BhzE REEERER HR% e
Shenzhen Xinyu Equity Investment Beneficial owner 18555976 H Shares 533 Long position
Enterprise (Limited Partnership)
(RIBHRERERE(BERER)
("Shenzhen Xinyu")
R BERERECE (BRAR) ERfEA HR e
(TRYIZH])
4,000,000 Unlisted Shares 115 Long position

MR

gR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total share
Number of capital of our  Long Position
Name Identity/Nature of Interest Shares  Class of Shares Company®  /Short Position
READRRE
BENER
BREB/ 5 1/ BEEE ROBE(R)  RHEH BOBIEY  BE/ KA
Mr. Zhang Gaozhao (3 = ) Interest in controlled 18555976 H Shares 533 Long position
corporations
RERAED RIEEERR HI& He
4,000,000 Unlisted Shares 115 Long position
Sl ) HE
Shenzhen Dachen Chuanglian Equity Beneficial owner 21440924 Unlisted Shares 6.6 Long position
Investment Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
(RYITERABREREELAROE
(BRA%))('Dachen Chuanglian’)
RTERABREREEDAROE EREAA 3 E Rkt HE
(BRak) ([ERaH])
Shenzhen Dachen Chuangtong Equity Beneficial owner 19,471,952 Unlisted Shares 560  Long position
Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership)
(RYITERABRERE R
(BRAE)) (‘Dachen Chuangtong’)
RITmERABRERECE(BRAY) EaEAA i) e
(lERaE))
Shenzhen Dachen Caizhi Venture Interest in controlled 40912876 Unlisted Shares 1176 Long position
Capital Management Co,, Ltd corporations
(R TERM B EREERERAR)
("Dachen Caizhi")*
RTERA B EREERARAA REEERER Sl HE
(HERHE v
Hunan Dianguang Media Co,, Ltd. Interest in controlled 40912876 Unlisted Shares 1176 Long position
(HEERERERHBBAF) corporations
("Hunan Dianguang”)*
NEEEEERNERAT (DHEER]Y XEiEER ESilio) i
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Notes:

Q)

)

The calculation is based on the total number of 141,428,080 Unlisted Shares and
206,594,736 H Shares in issue as at December 31, 2023.

Eastern Bell Il is a limited partnership established in the PRC. As of December 31,
2023, the general partner of Eastern Bell Il was Shanghai Dingxiao, whose general
partner was Shanghai Dingman, which in turn, the equity interest of Shanghai
Dingman was owned by Mr. Yan Li as to 99%. Ningbo Dingji was a limited partner
of Shanghai Dingxiao and owned 60.83% partnership interest of Shanghai
Dingxiao. Shanghai Dingman was the general partner of Ningbo Dingji. Mr. Yin
Junping was a limited partner of Ningbo Dingji and held 66.25% partnership
interest of Ningbo Dingji.

Suzhou Eastern Bell Il Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (Bx/M$E5 =5F
BIZEREFRL(ERAR)) (‘Eastern Bell 1" is a limited partnership established
in the PRC. As of December 31, 2023, the general partner of Eastern Bell Ill was
Shanghai Dingxiao, whose general partner was Shanghai Dingman. As such,
each of Shanghai Dingxiao, Ningbo Dingji, and Mr. Yin Junping is deemed to be
interested in (i) 55,541,652 H Shares held by Eastern Bell II; and (ii) 8,000,000 H
Shares held by Eastern Bell Ill.

Shanghai Dingmin Investment Management Center (Limited Partnership) (I
BRRIEEEEFRL(BRER)) (‘Shanghai Dingmin”) is a limited partnership
established in the PRC. As of December 31, 2023, Ningbo Zhongding Lilong
Venture Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) ()& B8 kAR E
ARLEERER) ("Zhongding Lilong”) was a limited partner of Shanghai
Dingmin and held 99% partnership interest of Shanghai Dingmin. The general
partner of Zhongding Lilong was Ningbo Dingpu Venture Capital Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (B S HEIEIREEBEEBRER)), whose general
partner was Shanghai Dingman.

As such, each of Mr. Yan Li and Shanghai Dingman is deemed to be interested in (i)
55,541,652 H Shares held by Eastern Bell Il (i) 8,000,000 H Shares held by Eastern
Bell lll'and (iii) 923,100 H Shares held by Shanghai Dingmin.

Shenzhen Xinyu is a limited partnership established in the PRC. As of December
31, 2023, the general partner of Shenzhen Xinyu was Mr. Zhang Gaozhao (3& = fR).
As such, Mr. Zhang Gaozhao is deemed to be interested in 22,555,976 Shares held
by Shenzhen Xinyu.

Each of Dachen Chuanglian and Dachen Chuangtong is a limited partnership
established in the PRC. As of December 31, 2023, Dachen Caizhi was the general
partner of each of Dachen Chuanglian and Dachen Chuangtong. Dachen Caizhi
was owned as to 55% equity interest by Hunan Dianguang, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000917.5Z). As such, each of Dachen
Caizhi and Hunan Dianguang is deemed to be interested in (i) 21,440,924 Unlisted
Shares held by Dachen Chuanglian and (i) 19,471,952 Unlisted Shares held by
Dachen Chuangtong.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, our Directors are not

aware of any other persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief

executives of the Company) having interests or short positions in the Shares

and Underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or required to be disclosed to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING AND
USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Global Offering (after deducting the underwriting
fees and related cost and expenses) amounted to approximately HK$116.3
million (the "GO Net Proceeds”). As at December 31, 2023, the Group has
not utilized the GO Net Proceeds. As at the date of this annual report, the
unutilized net proceeds has been deposited in short-term demand with
licensed banks or authorized financial institutions. The table below sets
forth a breakdown of the utilization and proposed utilization of the GO Net
Proceeds as at December 31, 2023 (any discrepancies between totals and

sums of amounts listed in the table below are due to rounding):

éﬁ?&%ﬁﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬂ%%ﬂlﬁ
3

PIRBEEMSHIEFE (R EHEERARIEH
RARBLTE) B N63BEBT ([2HREE
R8s IBF58 ) - 2023128318 » A&EH
ABAEKBEEMBRIFEE - RAFERS
BH - RBAMESRIEFECUEHEHTR
FRTERRFGRITHRR S EERE - TR
B 2023F 12 A3 B2 KB EMBEHIBFEA
B R EARAM (TR EEEE RS
FFrzMmBaEEENEMR) ¢

Amount Expected

utilized as at timetable for

Percentage Actual GO Net December 31, the unutilized
of total Proceeds received 2023 Balance GO Net Proceeds
120235 ABA2REE

BERUKEHER 12A318 FERERR

EEER BERGIERE BRANEE & HREBREE

Approximate %  HKD/million

RMB/million  RMB/million ~ RMB/million

¥  EBER ARWEER ARBEER ARWEER

Enhance our service capabilities, improve customer coverage, and expand 40 523 48.1 - 481 Bytheend of 2025
categories of intralogistics equipment

RARMNORSE )  REZPEERRESNIRRERE 2005ERZH

Expand and upgrade our supply chain infrastructure 200 233 214 - 214 Bytheend of 2025

BARTRA MO S EEER R 20055 K2

Strengthen our technology capabilities and infrastructure 150 174 16.0 - 160 Bytheend of 2025

AR N RERR) 2025 ER A

Conduct strategic mergers and acquisitions that align with our regional 100 116 10.7 - 107 Bytheend of 2025
coverage, industry focus, and business priorities

EREAMNEARE TREL  FHEHACENEKNE 2005ERZH

General working capital and general corporate purposes 100 116 10.7 - 107 Bytheend of 2025

—REELLR-HRATAE 2005ERZ A

Total 100.0 116.3 106.9 - 106.9

@t
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In consideration of the reasons as set out below, we intend to accelerate the

implementation of certain portions of the GO Net Proceeds:

(A)

To enhance our service capabilities, improve customer coverage, and
expand categories of intralogistics equipment: As disclosed in the
Prospectus and the Allotment Results Announcement, we intend to
utilize approximately HK$52.3 million (representing 45% of the GO Net
Proceeds) to expand our sales team and improve sales and marketing
methods, to expand our service outlets, enhancing our service efficiency
and customer outreach, and to expand the scale and categories of our
intralogistics equipment fleet from 2024 to 2026. In view of our latest
business needs, we will accelerate the expansion of our sales team,
service outlets and scale of our intralogistics equipment fleet to improve
customer service coverage and response time, and further improve the
customer experience. In this regard, the Board has resolved to change
the Group’s expected implementation schedule and utilize all the GO
Net Proceeds above by the end of 2025.

To expand and upgrade our supply chain infrastructure: As disclosed in
the Prospectus and the Allotment Results Announcement, we intend
to utilize approximately HK$23.3 million (representing 20% of the GO
Net Proceeds) to expand and upgrade our supply chain infrastructure,
including among others, building new supply chain bases in Kunshan,
Jiangsu, Wuhan, Hubei, Shenyang, Liaoning and Chengdu, Sichuan from
2024 to 2026. In view of our latest business needs, we will accelerate
the construction of the above supply chain bases to quickly upgrade
our supply infrastructure and improve supply efficiency. In this regard,
the Board has resolved to change the Group's expected implementation
schedule and utilize all the GO Net Proceeds above by the end of 2025.
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REBTXRHERE - RABMRZELD =
HRBEMSRIBFE

(A)

RABRMOBRSGE S  EeRPBEERA
BEAMTEERE WBREERSER
BRAGHEE  BRMBESHALN 2388
BT (B2 BB E TS B FRA45%) I
2024 F 2026 FIEEHERF RAZHE
RN - BAIRIE RS B AR R
BHEREREN  REXSAYREE
BHMOBRERRE  BERBRMOENE
BHER - RO MREE BB - BREA R
REBAMREHEBEERENEE - UEA
BERGEEMEEEY - i —PHaE
PERER -t EFTeHAEERED
R R2025F R AT B LIMTEEE
MEEEERLEA L2 BRRBEEMBR
TEFEE -

BARABBMOHEEEEERE - 107
BRERERDEERQNEMBEE - RIMEH
B#23388%5x (2B EMEREF
FEM20%) PR 2024 F 2026 FHEA R FH AR E
PR SNE  REETI&RL -
WAL EE - B RS I m )| B B 2 B8 4
FESEEM - HERRMAETEF TR
AP IR il e SE E A B4R - AR
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(C) To strengthen our technology capabilities and infrastructure: As
disclosed in the Prospectus and the Allotment Results Announcement,
we intend to utilize approximately HK$17.4 million (representing 15%
of the GO Net Proceeds) to strengthen our technology capabilities and
infrastructure from 2024 to 2026. In view of our latest business needs,
we will accelerate the improvement of our technology capabilities and
infrastructure to increase the operation and management efficiency and
establish competitive barriers. In this regard, the Board has resolved to
change the Group's expected implementation schedule and utilize all
the GO Net Proceeds above by the end of 2025.

The Board confirms that there is no material change in the business nature
of the Group as set out in the Prospectus and considers that the above
proposed acceleration in implementing the GO Net Proceeds as set out
above is in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a

whole.

The Board will continuously assess the proposed utilization of the GO Net
Proceeds and may revise or amend such proposed utilization when necessary
to cope with the changing market conditions, and strive for better business

performance of the Group.

See the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”in the Prospectus

for further details.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders.
To accomplish this, the Company has adopted the code provisions of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance. As the H Shares had not yet been listed on the Stock
Exchange during the period from January 1, 2023 (i.e. commencement
date of the Reporting Period) up to the Listing Date, the CG Code was not
applicable to the Company during such period. During the period from the
Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with all the principles and applicable code provisions under the CG Code.
The Directors will review the corporate governance policies and compliance
with the CG Code each financial year and apply the “‘comply or explain”

principle in the corporate governance reports included in the annual reports.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit Committee, which comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Wang Chuanbang (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Dr. Fan Xia and Mr. Zhu Yingchun.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management of the Company,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

ended December 31, 2023 and the disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the preparation of the financial
information complies with the applicable accounting practices and policies,
the requirements of the Listing Rules and any other applicable legal

requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance
with HKFRS have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM of the Company.

The Company issued H Shares and its H Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on November 10, 2023, and there has been no change in auditors

since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no significant events which
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating and financial
performance occurred from the end of the Reporting Period to the date of

this annual report.

By order of the Board
Hou Zekuan

Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

Guangzhou City, the PRC, March 20, 2024
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Supervisory Committee
complied with the principle of integrity and earnestly performed their
supervisory duties in accordance with the relevant regulations set out in the
PRC Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure for
Meetings of the Supervisory Committee of FOLANGSI CO., LTD to protect the

interests of the Shareholders and the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee currently consists of three Supervisors, among
which one of them is the chairman to the Supervisory Committee. Pursuant
to our Articles of Association, the Supervisory Committee shall comprise
supervisors who represent the Shareholders and the employees, and the
proportion of the employee representative supervisors shall be 1/3 or
more. The employee representatives in the Supervisory Committee shall
be democratically elected by the employee representative congress, the
employee congress or other means. We have one employee representative
supervisor elected by our employees and two shareholder representative
supervisors elected and appointed by our Shareholders at a Shareholders’
meeting. Each of the Supervisors elected by our employees and/or by our
Shareholders is appointed for a term of three years which is renewable upon

re-election and re-appointment.

Composition of the Supervisory Committee is set out as follows.

Name Position

HE B ZERH

Date of Appointment

EEERE

RBEEHR  2BEFEREREBETEAA
E - REEREEMBRAITROARARES
ERFRAUMHEBARE  BTHERY - R
ERTTESHE  ##EREARRMNME -

EEgdAm

EEeRRA-RESTEN  ETP—R2EER
EFEEIF - REQFER EFSEERR
REMARBINRER  ERFBIRREZEOHA
BAER=02Z—  EFEFPHNBERIKAKRARQ
AR TEARTARERANEG BT AEHEHM
FARTEREL - HMA - RHBITESRE
ENBRIRKREERMEARRERRAE £
BERRENBRRRRES - ABRTR &K
RERELNBEFNENEGER=F - £
[ EER LB -

EESHEKHEIIMT -

Duties

BE

Ms. Li Xiaolan (Z=/)\Ed) Employee representative
and chairman of the

Supervisory Committee

EIN petan BIRKREEFSEE 2017412 A16H
Mr. Zhang Xiaolong (3R/]\8E)  Supervisor October 22, 2016
SR/NBESTAE R 2016910 A 228
Mr. He Xiaocheng (B /J\AK) Supervisor December 16, 2017
BN A S 2017412 A16H

December 16, 2017

Responsible for presiding over the
work of the Supervisory Committee,
supervising and providing independent
advice to our Board
BEIREFEINIF BEEFY
WREREBLER

Responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our
Board
EEEESESWNHARHBYIER
Responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our
Board
EEEESESURHARERBYER
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WORKS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Supervisory Committee held four
meetings and the details are as follows:

On March 16, 2023, the seventh meeting of the second session of the
Supervisory Committee was held and the “Proposal on the General
Election of the Supervisory Committee of the Company and Nomination of
Candidates for Shareholder Representative Supervisors of the Third Session
of the Supervisory Committee of the Company” KR A FIEEE & EE
RERLF-EEFEMARRESZHEEANZEER)) and the "Proposal
on the Remuneration of Supervisors of the Third Session of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company’ KBRARIE ZEEFTEERTHMANZEER))
were duly considered and approved.

On April 3, 2023, the first meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held and the “Proposal on the Election of Chairman of the
Third Session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company” (BEREE QN
AIE = BB T F A E)) was duly considered and approved.

On April 6, 2023, the second meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held and the “Proposal on Formulating the Rules of
Procedure for Meetings of the Supervisory Committee of FOLANGSI CO., LTD
Applicable after the Listing of H Shares” K BRI EHX E Mg EAMNEES
ZERBIAEEZE)) was duly considered and approved.

On April 30, 2023, the third meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held and eight proposals, being (i) the “Proposal on the
Review of ‘The 2022 Work Report of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company” KFAREZ <A BRONFEEES TIERE SRR, (i) the
“Proposal on the Review of The 2022 Annual Report of the Company” (8
RBEZ<QF2022FFERE >HERE)); (i) the “Proposal on Formulating
‘The 2022 Financial Final Account Report of the Company” R #IE
<RE02FEMIBRE
‘The 2023 Financial Budget of the Company” R HIE <A
P HIBERES>HFEZE)); (v) the “Proposal on Formulating ‘The 2022 Profit
Distribution Plan of the Company” K BIRHIE < A 72022 FEF B O H R
>HIFEZE)); (vi) the “Proposal on Appointing the Auditors for 2023” BRI
552023 F ERETHIERZEZ)); (vi) the "Proposal on the Work Evaluation of
the Company's Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Personnel in
2022" KEARRARIES BF - aREEAB200FEIEZSTNER))
and (viii) the “Proposal on Confirming Related Party Transactions in 2022 and
Estimating Expected Related Party Transactions in 2023" € BR#ER20224F
[ERAHE 2 5 LA R FBEH2023 65 [E f G 22 S HIFE Z)), were duly considered and
approved.

ESEEEZE)); (iv) the “Proposal on Formulating

A12023F
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COMMENTS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ON
CERTAIN MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN 2023

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Supervisory Committee
adhered to the principles of fidelity and accountability to all Shareholders
and duly performed their duties and works according to the relevant laws
and regulations. The Supervisory Committee worked actively, and supervised
the regulatory compliance and operation, financial condition, use of proceeds
and internal control, etc. of the Company through attending Shareholders’
general meetings and board meetings and audit and inspection center as
non-voting delegates and onsite inspections. The Supervisory Committee has

arrived at the following opinions:

(1) During the Reporting Period, the Board conscientiously performed the
rights and obligations conferred by the PRC Company Law and the
Articles of Association, the Supervisory Committee is of the view that
the operation of the Company has been consistent with the provisions
of the PRC laws and the Articles of Association; the decision-making
process of the Company has been in compliance with the laws; and
the Company has established a relatively comprehensible internal
control system. The senior management also operated in accordance
with the law and in a standardized manner. The Directors and senior
management were able to perform their obligations in good faith, and
there were no violations of the law, the Articles of Association or acts

detrimental to the interests of Shareholders.

(2) During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee supervised and
inspected the financial system and financial position of the Company
and considered that the Company's financial system was sound, its
financial operations were standardised and its financial position was
good, and that the Company's annual audit report and the independent
auditor’s report truly, accurately and completely reflected the financial

position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company.
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EEERE
In the coming year, the Supervisory Committee will continue to play the role EFH—Fh  BEFgHEERARTEER
of supervising and monitoring with an aim to protecting the interests of all BRE - AEERERERARRNFE -

Shareholders and the Company.

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee EEEeXF
Li Xiaolan EN |
Guangzhou City, the PRC, March 20, 2024 REEMT - 2024938208
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2023 to the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE AND VALUES

Our corporate mission is “improving asset utilization and saving social
resources” and it is embedded in the way we operate. We adhere to the
corporate values of “Integrity, Passion, Teamwork, Dedication’, and integrate
the business philosophies, including “persistence in developing green
economy’, “customers’ need orientation”, “value creation through services’,
into corporate development strategy. We provide training to our staff so
that they understand our corporate culture and our internal policies and
procedures. We regularly seek to improve how we operate so that we can
provide greater value and transparency for our stakeholders. We understand
business expansion must be underpinned by a robust corporate governance
structure. Our Company has adopted and fully intends to comply with the
corporate governance requirements under the CG Code. Our Group will
continue to monitor for any developments and adjust how we operate so
that we are always prepared for the risks to our business and protect our
Shareholder’s interests.

Our team of hardworking and diligent individuals, from employees to Board
members, work towards our mission by constantly thinking of ways to
innovate. A key strategy of ours to drive growth is to develop and enhance
our technological capabilities. For example, we have continuously invested
in our Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform, which has
allowed us to operate more effectively. We believe that technology is the
way to propel our business forward and drive efficiencies in both our own
operations and for our customers. This will allow us to deliver better services
to our customers, achieve greater returns to our Shareholders and grow our
business further.

We are also strong advocates for sustainability. A big part of our mission
is about making sure that we are mindful of how we best make use of
what we have. We are committed to protecting the environment through
adherence with environmental laws and regulations, as well as implementing
practices to reduce our carbon footprint. We keep in mind the importance
of sustainable growth when working with our stakeholders, such as
our customers, employees, Shareholders and suppliers. Our view is that
sustainable growth will lead to the best results for our Shareholders and
bring the greatest benefits to the people we affect.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders.
The Company has adopted the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
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As the H Shares had not yet been listed on the Stock Exchange during the
period from January 1, 2023 (i.e. commencement date of the Reporting
Period) up to the Listing Date, the CG Code was not applicable to the
Company during such period. During the period from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report, the Company has complied with all the principles

and applicable code provisions under the CG Code.

The Directors will review the corporate governance policies and compliance

with the CG Code each financial year and apply the “‘comply or explain”

principle in the corporate governance reports included in the annual reports.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors and Supervisors since the Listing Date. As the H Shares had
not yet been listed on the Stock Exchange during the period from January
1, 2023 (i.e. commencement date of the Reporting Period) up to the Listing
Date, the Model Code was not applicable to the Company during such
period. Having made specific enquiries with the Directors and Supervisors,
each of the Directors and Supervisors confirmed that he/she has complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code during the period

from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The Company is led by an effective Board, which assumes responsibility for
leadership and control and is collectively responsible for pursuing the success
of the Company through the direction and oversight of its affairs. Directors

objectively make decisions that are in the best interests of the Company.

The Board achieves a balance of skills, experience, offers views consistent
with the requirements of the Company’s business, and regularly reviews (i)
the contribution Directors need to make to perform their responsibilities to
the Company and (ii) whether Directors have spent sufficient time performing
duties commensurate with their roles and Board responsibilities. The Board
comprises a balanced composition of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) which maintains
strong independence of the Board for the effective exercise of independent

judgement.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Our Board consists of nine Directors, including four executive Directors, two

non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Zekuan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Hou Zebing (General Manager)

Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan

Ms. Ma Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Yingchun
Mr. Shu Xiaowu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chiang Edward

Dr. Fan Xia

Mr. Wang Chuanbang

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Chiang Edward and Mr. Wang Chuanbang
had been appointed as independent non-executive Directors, who had
obtained a legal opinion on May 10, 2023 and May 11, 2023, respectively,
and confirmed that they understood all the requirements of the Listing
Rules applicable to them as directors of a listed issuer and the potential
consequences of making false statements or furnishing false information to

the Stock Exchange.

The particulars of the biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”in this annual report.
The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the biographies of
each Director in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report. Save as disclosed above, there are no other relationships
(including financial, business, family or other material/related relationships)

between the members of the Board.

Composition of Supervisors

Ms. Li Xiaolan (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Zhang Xiaolong

Mr. He Xiaocheng
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Board committees’
meetings and Shareholders’ general meetings of the Company held from the

Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:

EENHERR

EEFALTRANEEEREY
RUUME=ESH EELBE
BERAGHHFELHEHNTX

Attendance/Number of Meetings

CES T
EHRAAT

HEE EERY
Annual Other
Shareholders’  Shareholders’
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Strategy General Meetings
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting (if any)
B Fr RE B ED HittR R
Esns =g Z8% z5% z8% Z8% BERE  KE(WH)
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Hou Zekuan 1/1 N/A N/A 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
RERELE TER @R
Mr. Hou Zebing /1 N/A 0/0 N/A 0/0 0/0 0/0
RERLE A NEH
Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan 71 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0
HHRELE TER TER A TER
Ms. Ma Li /1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0
SELL @R NER @ TER
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Zhu Yingchun /1 1/1 N/A N/A 0/0 0/0 0/0
KABRRE A NEH
Mr. Shu Xiaowu /1 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/0 0/0
R E A TER Nl
Independent
Non-executive Directors
BUFGTES
Mr. Chiang Edward 1/1 N/A N/A 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
BEatE am Tam
Dr. Fan Xia 11 I 0/0 0/0 N/A 0/0 0/0
HEEL TER
Mr. Wang Chuanbang 71 11 0/0 N/A N/A 0/0 0/0
FEARE il NEH
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Notes:

(1) Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code recommends that the Board should
convene meetings regularly, at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Company was recently listed on the Stock Exchange on November
10, 2023 and has been in compliance with the CG Code since then. The Board
communicates with each other on a regular basis and will convene meetings on
a regular basis in future to keep the Directors informed of the Company's latest
development.

The Company has adopted the practice of convening regular board meetings
at least four times a year and about once every quarter. The notices of all
regular board meetings shall be given at least fourteen days prior to the
date of meeting so that all Directors shall have an opportunity to attend the

meeting and be informed about the agenda of regular board meetings.

For other meetings of the Board and board committees, reasonable notice
shall generally be given. The minutes shall be kept by the secretary to the
Board of the Company and their copies shall be circulated to all Directors for

their information and records.

From the Listing Date and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the Company
held four board meetings, including to approve, among other things, the

annual results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023.

DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for the direction and supervision of

the affairs of the Company.

The Board, through its committees, directly and indirectly leads and directs
the management, formulates strategies and oversees their implementation,
supervise the Group's operational and financial performance and ensures

that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, bring a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board to enable it to operate
efficiently and effectively. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring that the Company has a high standard of regulatory
reporting and play the role of balance when the Board effectively exercise its

independent judgment on the Company’s initiatives and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all information of the Company
and, where appropriate, shall request to seek independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense to discharge their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company the particulars of other positions
held by them.

The Board has the discretion to make decisions on all material matters
relating to policy, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
in conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other material operational matters of the Company. Management is
responsible for implementing the decisions of the Board, directing and

coordinating the day-to-day operations and management of the Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and its

Shareholders at all times.

The Company has maintained appropriate insurance in respect of the liability
of the Directors and senior management against any legal proceedings
against the Directors and senior management arising out of the Company’s

activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed annually.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual, to reinforce their respective independence and accountability.
Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the chairman
of the Board is Mr. Hou Zekuan while the general manager (chief executive)
is Mr. Hou Zebing. Therefore, the division of responsibilities between the

chairman and the chief executive has been clearly established.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

From the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2023, the Board confirms that
it has:

(a) reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance
and made recommendations to the Board and report to the Board on

matters;

(b) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the Group's employees and Directors;

and

(e) reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures

in the Corporate Governance Report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the Board has
complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors, representing not less than one-third of the Board
and one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received confirmation of independence submitted by each
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and the Company considers that each of these Directors to be

independent.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The company has established the board independence evaluation mechanism
incorporating processes and procedures, to ensure a strong independent
element on the Board, which allows the Board to effectively exercise

independent judgment so it can better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The evaluation aims to improve the effectiveness of the Board, maximise
strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or further
development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions the Company
need to take to maintain and improve the performance of the Board, for
instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each

Director.

Based on the board independence evaluation mechanism, the Board will
conduct annual reviews on its independence. The board independence
evaluation report will be presented to the Board which will collectively

discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors should be kept informed about their duties with the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company, and advance with the

times.

Each of the newly appointed Directors of the Company has received a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction training upon his/her first
appointment and thereafter the Company has provided relevant briefings
and professional development as and when required to ensure that the
Directors have an appropriate understanding of the operation and business of
the Company and to ensure that the Directors are fully aware of their duties
under the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements

and the policies related to the Company’s business and governance.

Under code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that they can continue to make
informed and relevant contributions to the Board. During the year ended
December 31, 2023, all Directors participated in continuous professional
development by attending training courses or external seminars to learn

about and refresh their knowledge and skills used to contribute to the Board.
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The training records of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2023

are summarised as follows:
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Attend training courses Read relevant news
including (but not limited highlights, newspapers,
to) briefings, seminars, periodicals, magazines and
conferences and workshops related publications
HEEIRE 8% RERRETEES -
(BERRR) ke - WE - BT -
Directors 2= g SBRIES S R AHB T
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hou Zekuan BREELE v v
Mr. Hou Zebing REERE v/ v
Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan =2 ol 4 v
Ms. Ma Li BEXL v v
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Zhu Yingchun FSUES v v
Mr. Shu Xiaowu /R SEE v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Chiang Edward BREMTE v v
Dr. Fan Xia B+ v v
Mr. Wang Chuanbang FEHTE v v
BOARD COMMITTEES EXRET

The Board has established four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy
Committee, to take charge of overseeing specific areas of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have specific written terms
of reference which clearly set out their authorities and duties. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee have been published on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.4 and paragraph D.3 of Part 2 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Wang Chuanbang
(independent non-executive Director), Dr. Fan Xia (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Zhu Yingchun (non-executive Director), with Mr.
Wang Chuanbang serving as the chairman. Mr. Wang Chuanbang holds the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are not laxer than those
provided for in the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee

include, but are not limited to, the following:

(@) proposing the appointment or change of external auditors to the Board,
and monitoring the independence of external auditors and evaluating

their performance;

(b) examining the financial information of our Company and reviewing

financial reports and statements of our Company;

(c) examining the financial reporting system, the risk management and
internal control system of our Company, overseeing their rationality,
efficiency and implementation and making recommendations to the
Board; and

(d) dealing with other matters that are authorized by the Board.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management of the Company,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

ended December 31, 2023 and the disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the preparation of the financial
information complies with the applicable accounting practices and policies,
the requirements of the Listing Rules and any other applicable legal

requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, three meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to, among others, elect the chairman of the Audit
Committee under the Board and consider and approve the annual audit plan

of the Company for 2023.
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The Audit Committee held a meeting on March 20, 2024 to review the
annual financial results and reports and significant issues on financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and the internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors, engagement of non-audit services and
related scope of work and employees’ challenging potential improprieties
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Board had not deviated from
any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,

appointment, resignation or dismissal of the auditors.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice without the

presence of executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph E.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely Dr. Fan Xia (independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Wang Chuanbang (independent non-executive Director) and

Mr. Hou Zebing (executive Director), with Dr. Fan Xia serving as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not

limited to, the following:

(@) advising the Board on the overall remuneration plan and structure of
Directors, Supervisors and senior management and the establishment of
transparent formal procedures for determining remuneration policy of

our Company;

(b) examining the criteria of performance evaluation of Directors,
Supervisors and the senior management of our Company, conducting

performance evaluations and making recommendations to the Board;

(c) formulating individual remuneration plans for Directors, Supervisors and
members of the senior management in accordance with the terms of
reference of the importance of their positions, the time they spend on
such positions as well as the remuneration benchmarks for the relevant

positions in the other comparable companies; and

(d) dealing with other matters that are authorized by the Board, and if
necessary, engaging external experts to provide relevant independent

services.
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to, among others, consider and approve
the annual report of the Company for 2022, formulate the 2022 financial
report, the 2023 financial budget report, the 2022 profit distribution plan and
the appointment of the auditor for 2023.

The Company's shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange on November
10, 2023, and no meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held since

the Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting on March 20, 2024
to consider/review the relevant matters and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration policy, assess performance of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company, and approve the
terms of service contracts and remuneration packages of the executive

Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of senior management by scope during the Reporting

Period is set out below:

REZE2023%12 831 B IEFE N7 X 5B
ZEEEHE  UN(ERBE) SIARAR2024F
FEME - FIE2022FEHHEHRE « 2023FF
WEEERE  2022F R E D BT R RE
2023 FEEAILME -

ARATRMDN2023F 11 A108 FEB LT &
M BT EEERERERERELESE
THEWNEZESSH -

FMEBEEMN2024F3A20HBR—eR &
# EBEFHEREYAESEREBEERED
o TEARARRTESREREBRENE
WARBAENITESTRSREEENREE LD
[ES95EATIES I

RBEHERBES D SREIREKE N
o n -

Number of persons

Remuneration Range (RMB) FHEE(AR%ET) AE
RMBO to RMB500,000 AREoTE AR S500,0007T 2
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR#500,001 702 A RE1,000,0007T 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,001 702 AR 1,500,0007T 2

The Company pays remuneration in the form of salaries, bonuses, social
security schemes, housing provident fund schemes and other benefits to
executive Directors and senior management, who are also employees. The
independent non-executive Directors are remunerated based on their duties,

and the non-executive Directors are not remunerated.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior

management and the five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 7, 8

and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph B.3 of Part 2 of the CG Code
and the Company is fully compliant with the board diversity requirements
under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Hou Zekuan (executive Director), Dr. Fan Xia
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Chiang Edward (independent

non-executive Director), with Mr. Hou Zekuan serving as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but not are limited

to, the following:

(@) conducting extensive search and providing to the Board suitable
candidates for Directors, general managers and other members of the

senior management;

(b) overseeing the implementation of the Board diversity policy; taking into
account various factors when determining the composition of the Board,
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

service tenure;

(c) examining the size and composition of the Board and its members in
respect of their skills, knowledge, experience and diversity at least once
every year, and making recommendations to the Board on any changes

in Board composition in accordance with our Company's strategies;

(d) researching and developing standards and procedures for the election
of the Board members, general managers and members of the senior

management, and making recommendations to the Board; and

(e) dealing with other matters that are authorized by the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, a meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to elect the chairman of the Nomination Committee

under the Board.

The Company’s shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange on November
10, 2023, and no meeting of the Nomination Committee was held since the

Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period.
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The Nomination Committee convened one meeting on March 20, 2024
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, review the Board
diversity policy and the Director nomination policy, and consider and
recommend to the Board the appointment of executive Directors/non-
executive Directors/independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the diversity perspective of the Board is
appropriately balanced and has not set any measurable objectives for the

implementation of the Board diversity policy.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Our Company has established the Strategy Committee, which consists
of five members, namely Mr. Hou Zekuan (executive Director), Mr. Hou
Zebing (executive Director), Mr. Zhu Yingchun (non-executive Director), Mr.
Chiang Edward (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Shu Xiaowu
(independent non-executive Director), with Mr. Hou Zekuan serving as the

chairman.

The main duties of the Strategy Committee include, but are not limited to,

the following:

(a) researching and recommending on long-term development strategy of

our Company;

(b) researching and recommending on significant investment and financing

plans of our Company;

(c) researching and recommending on major capital operations and asset

management project, and annual financial budget plan of our Company;

(d) researching and recommending on significant matters relating to the

development of our Company;

(e) monitoring the above matters and assessing, examining and

recommending on significant changes; and
(f)  performing such other duties determined by the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, a meeting of the Strategy
Committee was held to elect the chairman of the Strategy Committee under
the Board.

The Company's shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange on November
10, 2023, and no meeting of the Strategy Committee was held since the

Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) to enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy,
in reviewing and assessing suitable candidates to serve as a Director of the
Company, the Nomination Committee will consider a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited to gender, age, language, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,

industry and regional experience and/or length of service.

Our Directors have a balanced mixed of knowledge and skills, including but
not limited to overall business management, finance and accounting and
research and development. They have obtained degrees in various fields
including mechanical, economics and accounting etc.. Furthermore, our
Board has a relatively wide range of ages, ranging from 35 years old to 57

years old and consists of seven male members and two female members.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the
Board, reviewing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time, developing and
reviewing measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy,
and monitoring the progress on achieving these measurable objectives in

order to ensure that the policy remains effective.

An analysis of the current composition of the Board based on measurable

objectives is as follows:
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Gender :3:1) Age Fipd

Male: 7 Directors BI%ES 31-40: 1 Director 31-405% (1 4ESE

Female: 2 Directors TIREE 41-50: 5 Directors 415055 1 SRESR
51-60: 3 Directors 51605 3RER

Position B Education YEER

Executive Director: 4
Non-executive Director: 2

Independent non-executive Director: 3
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Business management: 2 Directors
Accounting and finance: 3 Directors
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Nationality B Business experience BEER
China: 9 Directors R OEEE Accounting and finance: 3 Directors SHEME 3RES
Law: 1 Director EEIEESR

Business management: 2 Directors
Experience relevant to the Company's

business: 3 Directors

HEEE 2£EF
HANFEREENLE -
IRER

The Nomination Committee and the Board are of the view that the current
composition of the Board has met the objectives set out in the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee shall review the Board Diversity Policy and
measurable objectives at least annually to ensure that the Board continues to
function effectively.

GENDER DIVERSITY

The Company values gender diversity at all levels of the Group. The following
table sets out the gender ratio of the Group's employees (including the Board
and senior management) as at the date of this annual report:

ENhEEERR EHIJ§$AE’%EEX
EEINEEEZTEBRTPRENER

REZEBERESEFEEEFEE L LR
RAIEEMBER  UBRRESSHERNEE
BRI -

MBI Tt

ARBERAEEERBAOMERZ T - T
RBJBEAFEREZH - AEEET (B

EETERRBAEERE) WAL -
Female Male
i B

Board 5y
Senior management BRERE
Other employees HEMiEE
Total employees 2B

22.2% (2)
14.3% (1)
25.3% (437)
25.3% (438)

77.8% (7)
85.7% (6)
74.7% (1,289)
74.7% (1,295)

The Board aims to achieve and maintain gender diversity in the foreseeable
future and have achieved the object that at least 22.2% (2) of them are female
directors, 14.3% (1) female senior management and 25.3% (438) female
employees, and considers that the above gender diversity is satisfactory at
present.
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Our Company will take opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members of the Board when selecting and recommending suitable
candidates for Board appointments to help enhance gender diversity in
accordance with stakeholder expectations and recommended best practices.
Our Company also intends to promote gender diversity when recruiting staff
at the mid to senior level so that our Company will have a pipeline of female

senior management and potential successors to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy for the nomination
procedure of Directors and senior management (the “Nomination Policy”),
which sets out the selection criteria, nomination procedure and succession
plan in respect of the nomination and appointment of Directors and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of the Board, and ensuring the continuity of the

Board and appropriate leadership at the Board and senior management level.

The nomination procedures set out in the Nomination Policy are as follows:

Nomination Procedure

()  Prior to convening the meeting of the Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee shall invite members of the Board to nominate
candidates (if any) for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates who are not

nominated by members of the Board.

(i) In respect of the appointment of any candidates for Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence on such

candidates and make recommendations to the Board for consideration.

(iii) The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board

to consider the re-appointment of any existing Board members.

(iv) Please refer to the "Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Person
for Election as a Director of the Company” on the Company's website
for the procedures for Shareholders to nominate any candidates for

Directors.
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The recommendation of the Nomination Committee shall be submitted
to the Board for consideration and decision on matters relating to the
candidates for Directors, senior management or the re-appointed Directors.
The nomination of candidates for Directors shall be submitted to the
Shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and approval after being

considered by the Board.

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria for assessing the suitability of
proposed candidates and their potential contribution to the Company,

including but not limited to:
(@) Integrity and reputation;

(b) Educational background, professional qualifications and work experience

(including part-time jobs);

(c) Whether or not they have the necessary knowledge, skills and

experience;

(d) Whether or not they are able to spend sufficient time and energy

handling the Company's affairs;

(e) Whether or not they will promote the diversity of the Board in
all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and term of office;

(f)  Whether or not the candidates for independent Directors meet the

requirements for independence under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

(@) Any other relevant factors as determined by the Nomination Committee

or the Board from time to time.

There has been no change in the composition of the Board since the Listing

Date and up to the date of this annual report.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy as appropriate,

to ensure its effectiveness.
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According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
regularly reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board and
makes recommendations on changes to the Board as appropriate, to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and ensure that the Board
maintains a diverse and balanced composition. In reviewing and assessing
the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee is committed to
achieving diversity at all levels and considers various aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional experience

and/or length of service.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to Article 102 of the Articles of Association, directors shall be
elected or replaced by the shareholders’ general meeting, and may be
removed by the shareholders’ general meeting before the expiry of their
terms of office. The term of office of the directors shall be 3 years, and they

may be re-elected and re-appointed.

The term of office of the directors shall commence from the date of their
appointment until the expiry of the term of the current session of the board
of directors. If the term of office of a director expires but re-election is not
made responsively, the said director shall continue fulfilling the duties as
director pursuant to laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules
and the Articles of Association until a new director is elected. Subject to
the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules of the place where the
Company's shares are listed, if the board of directors appoints a new director
to fill a casual vacancy on the board of directors, such appointed director
shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his/her appointment

and may be re-elected.

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)

of the Company are appointed for a specific term of three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERERE

REEFESTLRER  RRZESTHESD
ExemRE  RERAEK mE%@%’mﬂT
BEZEMEERLESE  UEEAQFMND
ERE > MREFERBZ TN TFEHEARK -
EEERIGESFSEKTE  REEE8S
ﬁEAEREE\Eﬁiﬁﬂﬁ I #E B % 877

BREERNRRMER - Fik - BT - XER
%ﬁl?%% CEHERER R ME TERRE

HgB R, SREFR -

EENEENERES

EREATRZTRNEXEB22FRTE - B
55 (8 %Hz} EERREZER)AEIE=
FmERE—

REBARERE 102G EFHPRRTERRK
EEH ITEEHEJ:/%HIJEE&%X@%E, H
B o EFEH=F  EHERAERET -

EEMHARCZERHE  EAEESSH
HERBAL EFTHEmAREHRE -
FREEMESREA - RESNEZRBE
2 TBUEH - MR ENRATERNEE -
BITESERHG - £ T ERDQFRM LT iEH
FERERIEERAMARET  MEFEELME
MEZRNEREEGHRRNTR  ZREANE
FHHEREARIZHEERNE ARG E
BT o

RRARERTES (BEBIIFNTES) W
EEHR=F -

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

85



86

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of our Board to ensure that we maintain sound and
effective and risk management and internal controls system to safeguard our
Shareholders’ investment and our assets at all times. We maintain internal
manuals setting out operating procedures, internal control procedures and other
policies and guidelines. We also adopted and implemented comprehensive
risk management policies in various aspects of our business operations, such
as IT, financial reporting, compliance, and human resources. Our Board of
Directors are responsible for the establishment, update, implementation, review
and maintenance of our risk management and internal control policies and
systems (the “Internal Procedures”), while our senior manager monitors the
daily implementation of the Internal Procedures with respect to each subsidiary
and functional department. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their roles in relation to risk management
and the design, implementation and inspection of the Internal Procedures. The
Supervisory Committee oversees the establishment, update, implementation,

review and maintenance of the Internal Procedures by the Board.

The Internal Procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

We conduct annual reviews of the implementation of the Internal Procedures

to ensure their effectiveness and sufficiency.
The Internal Procedures mainly cover the following areas:
Compliance Risk Management

In order to effectively manage our compliance and legal risk exposures,
we have adopted strict internal procedures to ensure the compliance
of our business operations with the applicable rules and regulations.
In accordance with these procedures, our in-house legal department
performs the basic function of reviewing and updating the form of
contracts we enter into with our customers, partners, and suppliers. Our
legal department examines the contract terms and reviews all relevant
documents for our business operations, including licenses and permits
obtained by the counterparties to perform their obligations of business
contracts and all the necessary underlying due diligence materials,

before we enter into any contracts or business arrangements.
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Our in-house legal department is responsible for obtaining any
requisite governmental pre-approvals or consents, including preparing
and submitting all necessary documents for filing with relevant
government authorities, within the prescribed regulatory timelines.
We continuously improve our internal policies according to changes in
laws, regulations and industry standards, and update internal templates
for legal documents. We undertake compliance management over
various aspects of our operations and employee activities. We have also
established an accountability system in respect of employees’ violations

of laws, regulations and internal policies.

In relation to anti-fraud, anti-money laundering, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption, we have implemented specific policies and internal
control measures, which set forth procedures for identifying potential
corruption, implementing relevant anti-corruption procedures and
setting out anti-corruption responsibilities for relevant personnel.
We strictly prohibit bribery or other improper payments in any of our
business operations according to our anti-bribery and anti-corruption
policies. This prohibition applies to all business activities, whether
involving government officials, influential personnel or private or public
payors. Improper payments prohibited by these policies include bribes,
kickbacks, excessive gifts or entertainment, or any other payment
made or offered to obtain an undue business advantage. Moreover,
we keep accurate books and records that reflect transactions and
asset dispositions in reasonable detail. We specifically require that the
employees submit all reimbursement requests related to entertainment
expenditure or gifts presented to third parties on behalf of the Company
in accordance with our anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies, and
specifically record the reason for the expenditure. Any entertainment
expenditure exceeding a certain amount per person and any
expenditure incurred for entertainment not related to business meetings
must be approved in advance by our compliance officer. Payment
made in violation of anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies is strictly
prohibited. Our compliance department is responsible for investigating
the reported incidents and taking appropriate measures as necessary.
We provide employees with adequate communication channels and
encourage employees to take the initiative to seek guidance from us

regarding the implementation of anti-corruption policies. We also have
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an internal whistleblowing channel which is available for the employees
of the Company to report any doubtful corruption and bribery acts. The
employees can also make an anonymous report to the internal anti-
corruption department/internal audit department which is responsible
for investigating the reported matters and taking appropriate measures.
We conduct anti-corruption and anti-bribery compliance checks and
inspections regularly on employees and senior personnel. We also have
an employee code of conduct in place, which contains internal rules and
guidelines regarding basic working rules, work ethics, confidentiality,
negligence, anti-bribery and anti-corruption. We provide our employees
with regular training and resources to explain the guidelines contained
in the employee code of conduct. During the year ended December 31,
2023, the Company held one anti-corruption training and briefing
meeting for all employees. Meanwhile, various anti-corruption training
sessions were held for key departments and newly hired employees.

There are no violation events related to bribery and corruption.

Asset Security Risk Management

We are exposed to asset security risk with our intralogistics equipment
subscription services as customers may damage or lose our intralogistics
equipment, or we are unable to reclaim actual control or possession
of intralogistics equipment. During the Reporting Period, we did
not experience any incidents of loss or damage to our intralogistics
equipment from customers during the subscription period. For more
information about related risks, please see “Risk Factors — Risks Relating
to Our Business and Industry — We are exposed to risks associated with
failing to detect and prevent fraud, negligence or other misconduct
committed by our employees, agents, customers, suppliers or other
third parties” in the Prospectus. Our Intelligent Asset and Operation
Management Platform enables 24/7 remote monitoring and supervision
of our intralogistics equipment and relevant operators, so that we could
generate alerts or other actions in a timely manner upon detection of
any incorrect maneuvers of the operators. If the customer causes any
loss or damage to our intralogistics equipment during the subscription

period, we would claim compensation from customers.
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Credit Risk Management

We are exposed to the credit risks associated with our intralogistics
equipment subscription service business and sales of intralogistics
equipment and parts. In order to mitigate the credit risks and ensure
the collectability of trade and bills receivables in our transactions, we
have delegated a team responsible for the determination of credit limits
and credit approvals, and have adopted credit risk measures to review
and monitor our trade and bills receivables from time to time, including
implementing security measures and monitoring procedures on
customers. Before accepting any new customers, we use Qichacha ({(B&
&) and Tianyancha (KERE) to assess the creditworthiness of potential
customers and determine their appropriate credit limits individually. The
line of credit and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed regularly
in order to effectively monitor our customers. These procedures are
designed to provide us with the information needed to implement
adjustments where necessary, and to take proactive corrective actions
in time. In addition, in order to manage our exposure to credit risks,
we have adopted credit management policies and procedures that are
reviewed and updated by our risk management team in conjunction
with other relevant departments. We have adopted procedures to deal
with material overdue payments, which include (i) close monitoring of
material overdue payments; (ii) evaluation of the risks based on factors
such as its payment history, and the general economic environment;
and (iii) designing of appropriate follow-up actions such as making
phone calls, issuing demand letters, visiting the customer’s office and
initiating legal proceedings. However, we cannot assure that we are able
to collect all trade and bills receivables. For more information, please
see “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry — We may
not be able to satisfy our working capital requirements if we experience
significant delays or defaults in payments from customers, or significant

delays in our billing and settlement process” in the Prospectus.
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Liquidity Risk

We aim to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet our liquidity
requirements. We finance our working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from operations and alternative

funding resources from equity and debt.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy to enable the
Company's employees and those who deal with the Company to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymously, with the Audit Committee or
legal responsible person of the Company about possible improprieties

in matters related to the Company.

The Company has established a disclosure policy to provide general guidance
for Directors, Supervisors, senior management and relevant employees in
dealing with confidential information, overseeing information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. The Company has established control procedures
to ensure that unauthorized acquisition and use of insider information are

strictly prohibited.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, our
Company has truthfully, accurately, legally and timely disclosed information
in strict compliance with the requirements of domestic and foreign laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association and the disclosure
policy of our Company without any false statements, misleading statements
or material omissions, to ensure investors will be able to receive the disclosed

information fairly, timely and effectively.

To monitor the ongoing implementation of the Internal Procedures, our
Audit Committee reviews and supervises our financial reporting process
and relevant internal control system on an ongoing basis to ensure that the
Internal Procedures are effective in identifying, managing and mitigating risks

involved in our business operations.

Our internal audit department is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of our risk management and internal control systems, reporting
issues identified and improving our risk management and internal control
systems by conducting comprehensive audits, special audits or special
investigations on an ongoing basis. The internal audit department reports
any major issues identified to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors on

a timely basis.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was not aware of any material defects in the internal
control of the Group. The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group once
for the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, and considered the risk management and internal control systems
to be effective and adequate and the Group has established an effective risk
management and internal control system, which achieves our objectives
of risk management and internal control and is free of material defects
and significant defects. The review has been discussed by the Company’s

management and evaluated by the Audit Committee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements with the support of accounting and financial team.

The Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with
HKFRS. Appropriate accounting policy has been used and consistently
applied, except for the amendments, revision and interpretation of the

standards.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern/adoption of the going concern approach in
preparing the financial statements. The Directors believe that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, results and cash
flows of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023, and other financial
information disclosure and report complies with the requirements of relevant

laws.

A statement by our external auditors about their reporting responsibilities for
the financial statements is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report of

this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 1 B Bl 57 B
Details of the fees paid and payable in respect of the audit and non-audit BHE2023F12A31AIEFE - shETRB LI
services provided by our external auditors for the year ended December 31, Fi R B I R E A G AR B SNEE i 2R AD
2023 are set out in the table below. EBS R o
Fees paid/payable
Currency
Bt EA
4!
B
RMB’000
Types of service PR % 38 Bl AR®F T
Audit service FEr R
- IPO audit L 4,750
— Annual report audit — FIREE 3,000
Non-audit service IEE IR
— Internal control consultation — NIEFEA 380
Total et 8,130
COMPANY SECRETARIES DNEMWE

Ms. Ma Li and Ms. Tang Ka Yan were appointed as the Company’s joint BRZ T MBEMZ W Eam AR RREE
company secretaries. Ms. Ma is the executive director and the secretary of RAME - ERITRARANPITESTRE
the Board of the Company. Ms. Tang serves as the senior manager of Tricor EeWE BMZITHAREEEEBBERA

Services Limited., which is a global professional services supplier specializing AMEREE  SEEERKERATEMIERE
in integrated business, corporate and investor services. The main contact HizEEE  PERREERBNEREER
person of Ms. Tang in the Company is Ms. Ma. %o BMZETHRARAIMEERB/ART L -

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Ma and Ms. Tang have BZE2023F12A31BILEFE - BT RE L+

undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the ENREZ LR/ NEMRBERIEI - &
year ended December 31, 2023, respectively. & EMARAIE3296MH T -
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 47 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the

Board may convene an extraordinary general meeting.

A shareholder holding, or shareholders holding in aggregate, 10% or more of
the shares of the Company (“Applicants”) shall have the right to propose to
the Board to convene extraordinary general meetings and such proposal shall
be made in writing. The Board shall reply in writing regarding the acceptance
or refusal to convene an extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon
receiving the proposal in accordance with the requirements of the laws,

administrative regulations, and the Articles of Association.

If the Board does not reply within ten days upon receiving the above written
request, the Applicants of such proposal shall have the right to propose to
the Supervisory Committee to convene an extraordinary general meeting by

way of written request(s).

If the Supervisory Committee does not issue a notice of the extraordinary
general meeting within five days upon receiving the above written request,
shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more of the shares of
the Company for 90 consecutive days shall have the right to convene and
preside over the meeting on their own initiative, provided that the procedure
for convening an extraordinary general meeting shall be the same as that
used by the Board when possible. If the shareholders convene and hold an
extraordinary general meeting on their own due to the failure of the Board or
Supervisory Committee to hold the meeting as aforesaid, the Company shall

bear the necessary expenses incurred thereby.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholder(s) who hold(s) 3% or more of the voting shares of the Company,
individually or in aggregate, shall have the right to submit provisional
proposals (“Proposal”) in writing to the convener 10 days before the general
meeting. The convener shall, within 2 days of receiving the Proposal, issue a
supplementary notice of the general meeting to announce its contents. The
contents of the Proposal shall fall within the scope of the responsibilities of

the general meeting and shall have clear topics and specific resolutions.
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Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with

verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to

the following:

Address: No. 999, Yayun Avenue, Shigi Town, Panyu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, PRC

(To the secretary of the Board)

Tel: +86 (020) 66855746
Fax: +86 (020) 66855740
E-mail: zgb@fls123.com

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company's H Share Regjistrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The Company ensures that
the H Share Registrar maintains the most up-to-date information relating to
the Shares at all times so that it can respond effectively to the Shareholders’

enquiries.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above addresses and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’

information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going communication with Shareholders and in particular,
through annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual
general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to

meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors and Supervisors. All resolutions put
forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the

Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established a Shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) in order to ensure the Shareholders
are provided with equal and timely access to information about the
Company, to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow
Shareholders to actively participate in the Company’s activities. The Board
regularly reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’
Communication Policy particularly with regards to the requirements of Part
2 in the CG Code, and confirmed its effectiveness during the period from the

Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has established a series of channels for Shareholders’

communication, specifically as follows:

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders can request to acquire information about their shareholdings

and other relevant matters at any time as far as they are available.

Shareholders will have the address of the designated contact person
and e-mail address and inquiry telephone numbers to ensure they can

raise any concerns related to the Company.
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Corporate Communication

Corporate communications include any document(s) issued or to be
issued by the Company for the information or action of holders of any
of its securities or the investing public, including but not limited to (a)
the directors’ report and its annual accounts together with a copy of the
auditor's report and, where applicable, its summary financial report; (b)
the interim report and, where applicable, its summary interim report;
(c) the quarterly report, if any; (d) a notice of meeting; (e) a listing

document; (f) a circular; and (g) a proxy form.

The Company will send any corporate communications that seek
instructions from the Shareholders of the Company on how they wish to
exercise their rights or make elections as the Company’s Shareholders to
its Shareholders (“Actionable Corporate Communications”) individually
in electronic form by email. If the Company does not possess the email
address of a Shareholder or the email address provided is not functional,
the Company will send the Actionable Corporate Communications in
printed form together with a request form for soliciting the Shareholder’s
functional email address to facilitate electronic dissemination of

Actionable Corporate Communications in the future.

The Company will make the corporate communications available
on its website (www.fls123.com) and the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk). The corporate communication will be provided to
Shareholders in common language of both English version and Chinese

version in convenience for their understanding.

Shareholders have the rights to choose the language (English or
Chinese) and receivable ways (printed version or by e-mail) of corporate

communications.

The Company’s Website

The Company's website has a special “Investor Relations” section
(www.fls123.com). The information published on the website of the

Company will be updated regularly.

The information published on the website of the Stock Exchange will be
published on the website of the Company immediately. The information
includes financial statements, results announcements, circulars and the

notices of the general meetings and relevant explanation documents.

All Shareholders’ communication will be set out in the website of the

Company.
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General Meetings

The Company will provide Shareholders with relevant data on the
resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The data provided shall be reasonably
necessary to enable Shareholders to make an informed decision on the

proposed resolution(s).

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings, and they may
appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings for and on their

behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Where appropriate or required, the chairman of the Board and other
members of the Board, the chairmen of committees under the Board or
their delegates, and the external auditors will attend general meetings

of the Company to answer any questions from the Shareholders (if any).

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the Articles of Association on April 21, 2023,
which has been effective from the Listing Date. The Company has not
amended the Articles of Association since the Listing Date. The latest version
of the Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website and

the Stock Exchange's website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in respect of dividend payment.
The determination of whether to pay a dividend and in which amount is
based on our results of operations, cash flow, financial condition, capital
requirements and other factors the Board may deem relevant. Any dividend
distribution will also be subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the

Shareholder's meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERERE

BRERAE

ARBFRIE ETARR R RERERE
MERRAGLRENRERNEFE
e REMEBERNEY KRR ERE
RIEHAMBEREMEBAIEMT -

BPSZBRRSMBERRE - HERSED
BHEeE  TEREREARKESLEE

N P AN=:c)
SRIWIRE -

MABEIVE EFEIRLREFETHM
KB BEFETEZEEIFABEFNN
B ARIMNEZBEN R EARBBREREKRE
AR EB R ERRR (1F) °

HEBEXHHEIE

AARBER2023F4 821 BIRMATERE - A7
EREELETHBARER - B LT AAK
RRABWRERABER - RAIERARHM
AN PRER A AN B Ak K B AZ P A uh o

REBR

ARE BB ERAN— AR BBR - B’
RELEXE RERE MBI - BEXR
KREZGARER/EENEMEATRERS
AR ERBEEHE - FAREDIKITARSB
BRER A & BRI -

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

97



98

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HREREE

1.

EXPLANATION OF PREPARATION OF THE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

Release Form of the Report

This report is presented in electronic version and available in
Chinese and English. In case of ambiguity or inconsistency between

the two languages, the Chinese version shall prevail.

Basis of Preparation

This report provides a summary of the performance in the
environmental, social and governance aspects ("ESG") of FOLANGSI
CO., LTD (the “Group”, "FOLANGSI", "we
This report is prepared in accordance with the Appendix C2

" "us” or "our”) in 2023.

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (“Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide”). In particular, the relevant
contents of dealing with climate change are prepared by referring
to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Guidance on Climate Disclosure
and the framework suggested by the Task Force on Climate-related

Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

Reporting Principles

This report follows the reporting principles in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide,

including:

- Materiality principle: According to this principle, this report
has been developed through repeated discussions and
direct communication with stakeholders to understand the
core concerns of stakeholders and to identify the issues that
need to be highlighted in the report. Issues that may have a
material impact on the Group's business, investors and other

stakeholders are highlighted.

- Quantitative principle: According to this principle, this report
discloses key quantitative performance indicators, and
gives illustrations on the implications of the indicators with
explanations on the calculation basis and assumptions and

describes their purpose and impact in a timely manner.
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- Balance principle: According to this principle, this report
reflects objective facts, provides an unbiased picture of
the Group's performance in the ESG aspects, and avoids
inappropriately influencing the report reader and omitting

material information.

- Consistency principle: According to this principle, this report
clearly explains the statistical methods and criteria of the
key ESG quantitative performance indicators disclosed, and
tries to ensure that the indicators and calculation methods in
different reporting periods are consistent to enable meaningful
comparison of relevant data in the future and reflect the trend

in performance standards.

1.4 Reporting Scope

1.5

This report covers FOLANGSI's business operations from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”), provides an
overview of the Group's overall ESG performance, as well as a
review and outlook for some content to maintain the continuity and
integrity of information. This report covers FOLANGSI CO., LTD and
its subsidiaries, and is consistent with the scope of the consolidated

financial statements in the Annual Report.

Unless otherwise stated, the information involved in this report is
derived from the Group's documents and statistical reports, and the

monetary amounts involved are denominated in RMB.

Contact us

For feedback and comments about this report, please send an
email to: zgb@fls123.com, or mail a letter to FOLANGSI Headquarter
Building at No. 999, Yayun Avenue, Shigi Town, Panyu District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, 511440, PRC.

For more information, please visit the official website

(www.fls123.com).
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2. BOARD STATEMENT 2. EEEEH

100

The Group is a leading intralogistics equipment solution provider in
China and operates the largest intralogistics equipment fleet among all
intralogistics equipment solution providers in China. As of December
31, 2023, we have over 45,000 units of intralogistics equipment
under operation and management. We closely connected corporate
development with social progress, and are committed to promoting
sustainable development and a sharing economy, continuously
practicing social values, and taking the mission of “improving the
efficiency of asset utilization and saving social resources’, so that our
limited resources can serve the society infinitely. Look forward to the
future, we will adhere to the original aspiration, pay more attention to
social responsibility while pursuing economic benefits, and strive to
realize the common development and prosperity of the enterprise and

the society.

In order to deeply practice the sustainable development concept,
the Group has fully integrated environmental, social and governance
into our strategic planning and daily operations and has established
a top-down ESG governance structure comprising “decision-making
level, management level and execution level”. The Board of Directors as
the highest responsible and decision-making institution is responsible
for formulating, approving and monitoring the implementation of
ESG-related strategies and policies regularly. The Board has established
an ESG management team comprising the management of the
Company, which is responsible for comprehensively identifying,
determining, and evaluating the Group's environmental, social, and
governance risks and opportunities, formulating ESG objectives,
coordinating the relevant work, and regularly reporting to the Board on
key ESG events and the implementation of the objectives to provide
decision-making support for the Board’s deliberations. Under the ESG
management team, there is an ESG implementation team composed
of various functional departments, which is responsible for establishing
ESG management systems and processes, and assisting subsidiaries to

carry out specific ESG work within their respective scope of work.
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The Group always regards customers, employees, investors/shareholders,
governments/regulators, suppliers/partners, communities and other
stakeholders as the foundation for the development of the Group, and
regards their opinions and demands as an important driving force to
promote our business and continuously improve ESG governance.
We maintain regular communication with and collect opinions
from stakeholders and experts through a variety of means, such as
shareholders’ meetings and questionnaires, to understand and respond
to stakeholder needs in a timely manner. Through our communications
and surveys, we determine that business development, product quality
and safety, business integrity and tax compliance are the most important
considerations for our stakeholders. The Group's Board of Directors and
the ESG management team will conduct further discussions based on
the opinions collected and formulate specific solutions for them, aiming
to incorporate stakeholder opinions into the Group's phased priorities

and long-term development plans.

The Group aims to continue to increase the proportion of electric
equipment in the fleet, and to build an ecosystem of intelligent
intralogistics equipment with high efficiency, low cost and light carbon
emissions by promoting loT technology-driven solutions such as the
Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform and equipment
predictive maintenance to reach upstream suppliers and downstream

customers of the industry.

We plan to reduce energy consumption, water consumption,
greenhouse gas emissions, and waste intensity by approximately 5% in
the next five years. The Board of Directors will make statistics of, assess
and adjust data on energy, water consumption, greenhouse gases and
waste emissions. In our daily business activities, we prioritize cleaner
power equipment, strengthen staff's awareness of energy conservation
and environmental protection, and continue to reduce the potential
negative impact caused by the Group on environment, to contribute to

the reduction of carbon emissions in the society by practical actions.
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3. ABOUT FOLANGSI

3.1 Corporate Overview

Founded in 2007 and headquartered in Guangzhou, Folangsi
Co., Ltd. is a leading intralogistics equipment solution provider
in China, operating the largest intralogistics equipment fleet
among all intralogistics equipment solution providers in China.
As of December 31, 2023, there were more than 45,000 units of
intralogistics equipment under our operation and management.
Focusing on intralogistics equipment subscription services,
we strive to provide enterprises with one-stop solutions for
intralogistics equipment utilization and management, helping
them to leverage cost savings and improve efficiency in a

transformational process towards an asset-light business model.

For the past fifteen years, we have been leading the digital
transformation in the intralogistics equipment industry. On the
basis of our great expertise and rich experience in the industry, we
are committed to providing our customers with industry-leading
digitalized services utilizing cutting-edge technologies such as
the loT, big data and cloud computing. In this way we are actively
contributing to the digitalization of the whole intralogistics

equipment industry.
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Development Milestones:

EBuRERR

Business Development Milestones

RAIEBEOSAMRREREBL6E A
Over 45,000 units of intralogistics equipment
under our management

WS 24 N RIS T PR RS - UAHR
RIERMBH AR - SR B RBEX AR
Launched wearable devices with multidimen-
sional sensors to support us in realizing the
visualization of services and promote the upgrad-
ing of the Company's service model

ARARNEREEEE RS
EERAPBRME - FERE M BE LA BT
HHEITER [SREArd ]

Upgraded our Intelligent Asset and Operation
Management System

The Company has been qualified as “high and
new technology enterprises” by the Department
of Science and Technology of Guangdong
Province, the Guangdong Provincial Department
of Finance and the relevant tax authorities

ENHEZEERGENER  BETHE2H
o BS AR R ARG E

Focused on promoting the construction of
nationwide service outlets and established an
intralogistics equipment service model for end
users across the country

RAGEMBAL - BISH AR REEHRE -
ANSARREHERA

The Company was incorporated and established
distribution channels for intralogistics equipment,
and began the sales model of intralogistics
equipment

ALNA ERY & 185 B (e s U 2 SR SE R I IE U
BALER
The first nationwide supply chain base, headquar-
tered in Hefei, was established and officially
launched

NAEENSAYRREREBIES
The number of intralogistics equipment under
management exceeded 10,000

BlEIEE BB AR — R ESRN - FRSA
MnRERIBER - Rl TSAMRRERES
BEHERRT =ER

Innovatively used the loT and the new generation
of information technology to commence intralogis-
tics equipment subscription business and created
a full lifecycle solution model for intralogistics
equipment

HEE S AR R BT MU EA AR - FRUSA
W R R BRI e AR

Promoted the digitalization research of compo-
nents of intralogistics equipment, and began the
digital application mode of intralogistics
equipment parts

REHAN  AEBERRANDARE
1371 8EET ERFMEHARE
312BETT °

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved revenue of
approximately RMB1,371.8 million and net profit of approximately
RMB31.2 million.
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3.2 Corporate Culture

Adhering to the corporate values of “Integrity, Passion, Teamwork
& Dedication” and our business philosophies of “persistence in

nou wou

developing green economy’, “customers’ need orientation”, “value
creation through services” that are integrated into our strategy,
we will leverage innovations in technology application and
service mode to build a leading PRC high-dimensional and shared
ecological platform for B2B industrial and intralogistics equipment,
offer our customers with one-stop services including subscription,
maintenance and sales of vehicles and components and drive
the efficiency, quality and power reform in both upstream and

downstream.

HWEEER -

i Jed) o IRSEEMEARBCE - £

Corporate Mission

HERENHNY
LRER

Corporate Vision

downstream.

H/% °
BERBAREE -
ARG o

ZAMEES product.

Core Values

team.

responsibility.
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o ITHER NE S MIB2B TR RIS AR = 4 5t
FIRARTS » ?’Eﬂkﬁﬁi‘%&%‘$ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ’]

o WS MBAL  BYHE 5178 MAEE -

Bl HEXSE - BRAAE  BETRETIRER - #

3.2 EXL

BRSO HE - BUE - B -
WMEINGEBES & BIFERE
BEE]  [AEPHERkREm] - [
IRISEIEEE ] SR EETRADEHE
B - BB AT BT R R AR
B STE B NE SR HIB2B LE S A
MEABERERZTERTR  AEP
REHETARTY - R E RBENR
1¢§ﬁ’§9’\]—u£TEE7}'&' FEES ET
MHOMELEE  EEFFNGPHHBE -

* Improve the efficiency of asset utilization and conserve resources for our society.

LZERTE  RIEMRETPRRME
UEIBRTS B E TR KRB

¢ Build a leading PRC high-dimensional and shared ecological platform for B2B industrial
and intralogistics equipment, offer our customers from industrial and logistics sectors
with one-stop services including subscription, maintenance and sales of vehicles and
components and drive the efficiency, quality and power reform in both upstream and

A SERVEE fn B ARG AE TS A S R 4F
o BIE : ABTAE X HE NIRR - UFEMEMEE N TESE R B TEG MRS -
[l E S Bk - TETER T B0 R
WX I REEE  PRER  UREMNETRMEmETKE IAER

¢ Integrity: Integrity is what we base our business on. That is why we will insist on
integrity and consistency and build a good reputation by providing quality and reliable

* Passion: Passion is the driving force of innovations and improvement. We will create a
passionate and dynamic working environment that can help stimulate the enthusiasm
and creativity of our employees, enabling them to realize greater value.

* Teamwork: As a team, we need mutual support and respect as well as cooperation and
open-mindedness toward different opinions. We will continue to strengthen team
cohesion and team bonding in order to confront the challenges we face as a united

¢ Dedication: We encourage a sense of responsibility, dedication and diligence. It's
important that our employees take on every task with a high sense of mission and
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3.3 Social Recognitions

By virtue of the rich experience that the Group has accumulated
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 BERESCKE  MEBHEDGELE  ARR  AIRENTREEEEEE - BUIR

BREBEFNIRENER -

UEFRERRER  RATRELFR - BBRMAEEFTERNERIREHNEF

fSERMBH o

RS AIEEE  TERBHEEMNESR - BRIRHEENREREAZTPWEE - 8

EEZHEE -

BFRAFBE  TEHRRNER  NAFBHEE  RERFIES -

PRI | BORRTFRIEFTEENNRE - HHITENE SR -

BEESHES  EGRBEBESTNER  BRIEESHRARANE(ES - BALENHRE

RS ©

SRR  BRSREIEREY  BABRAZNEREHERENHR -

A long term strategy of developing green economy: We will actively promote

green production, create economic value in an environmentally friendly and

sustainable way, and strive to realize a win-win situation for both the economy and

the environment.

A customer needs-oriented approach: It's important that we know about our

customers’ needs in depth, and win customers’ trust and loyalty by delivering

products and services that satisfy them.

Value creation through services: Focusing on the quality and experience of our

services, we are committed to creating more value by enhancing customer

satisfaction through service excellence.

Continuous innovation and improvement: We will never stop exploring and

experimenting, and we will continue to take innovation as our driving force to maintain

competitive advantages.

Leveraging technology to empower industry: It's important to leverage

technologies to enhance productivity & efficiency and drive the transformation and

development of the whole industry.

Data-driven operations: We attach great importance to data analysis and

application, and aim to enhance the efficiency and profitability of the company

through optimized, data-driven decision-making and operations.

* Win-win cooperation: We actively seek partners to achieve mutual benefits through
resource sharing and complementary advantages.

w
w
[
gg‘
=l

=
=]

BERBAMNRSAMRREBITERRN

over a long period of time in the intralogistics equipment ?, ZMEELE - AEEAIE S
industry, the Group is able to deliver intralogistics equipment AmE@E Lk — R EERMTARS A
subscription services that utilize in a creative way the loT and MR AR - BZEUSTTEAM
new-generation information technology, which has earned it HEmRY - EBRESEMNTREE

wide recognition across the industry as well as the society. The MPNEADRE  BEREARBEEDE
Group has been awarded with such awards and certifications HETEEMHATFL - BRESH
as Guangzhou Technological Innovation Little Giant Enterprise, Rt REREEREEERES
Guangdong Engineering and Technology Research Center for ERHEHREMBE o W - HM2
Equipment Intelligence, loT and Sharing Services, Guangdong PRETIEERIEGE IXEHS S
High-tech Enterprise and Guangdong Smart Manufacturing Partner, WEEN - WHE R A SRS B pE

among others. We are also the director unit of the Industrial Truck
Institution of China Construction Machinery Association and
are used as a case study for supply chain benchmarking by the

Guangdong Procurement and Supply Chain Association.

Tﬁ@géﬁuﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

o

?*}
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RERIE

Honors and Awards

2023F E S MAIF HIPO

TEFEEE + 20234F12

IPO Company of 2023 for Excellence in Innovation
By Gelonghui, December 2023

2022-2023 FEF ARG

BRAERIERMEETE - 2023638

2022-2023 Outstanding Supply Chain Enterprise

By the Guangdong Procurement and Supply Chain Association,
March 2023

BB

ERAFSEIE - ERAVEE - BRBBH

BERABKRE - 2023F

High-tech Enterprise

By the Guangdong Provincial Department of Science and Technol-
ogy, the Guangdong Provincial Department of Finance, the State
Taxation Administration, and the Guangdong Provincial Tax
Service of the State Taxation Administration, 2023

[BERNHE ] DAIKERESBAIF HE
Eiﬁﬂ%&ﬁ@% - FEER RIS MAIFT RO - B RS
£

“Power of Example” Science and Technology Pioneer Compe-
tition — Most Innovative Award

By the Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong
Province, China Construction Bank Technology Finance Innovation
Center and Nanfang Daily Newspaper Group Co., Ltd.

EREREEBMHLZ TREMHFR RO

ERER B TiEE

Guangdong Engineering and Technology Research Center
for Equipment Intelligence, loT and Sharing Services

By the Guangdong Provincial Department of Science and
Technology
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¥ EHARE

BT [4BERF] B hESEEMITER &) - 2024517

Memento Award for IPO

By “Bellwether”, an action plan to promote industrial leadership
launched by the Guangzhou Government, January 2024

MR EEER2058

SIRTIREME0RESHE SR - ERC (RMBHSHEMET) -+ 2023F8AH
Top 20 Equipment Leasing Companies in Asia

By the organizing committee of the Global Construction Machinery
Top 50 Summit and ERC, Equipment Rental & Construction, August
2023

Lo En3E R BB S ER 1
LS AR AR © 2023614
BYD Forklift Strategic Partner
By BYD Co., Ltd., January 2023

EHEBEN (2021-2026FF)

PR T2RRTEGE TXERDS

Director Unit (2021-2026)

By the Industrial Truck Institution of China Construction Machinery
Association

RREERUEE RSB

ERETEMESE

Guangdong Smart Manufacturing Partner

By the Guangdong Provincial Department of Industry and Informa-
tion Technology

RNEAFNEADRHE

BMTRETEE®

Technological Innovation Little Giant Enterprise

By the Technological Innovation Committee of Guangzhou
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4, ESG GOVERNANCE SYSTEM
4.1 ESG Governance Structure

In order to ensure the institutionalization, standardization, and
professional management of the Company’s ESG work, the Group
has established a comprehensive ESG governance structure,
with the Board of Directors as the highest decision-making and
responsible institution, the ESG Management Team as the core
management and coordinating institution, and each functional

department, branch, and subsidiary as a specific ESG work executive

RE HERERHRE

4. ESGRERZRA
4.1 ESGREZE

AREQRIESGIIEMHIE(L - &b
MEXLEER  AEERITEED
ESGRIZER  AESSEAREARR
METHEE - ESGER/NMAERZLE
BMFERE  SHEBPIRBER
AEREBESGTERITHE - SER
e B - o TBAME - HRHEAE

institution with clear functions and a clear division of labor at all

BRREEVRARFET -

levels, working together to promote stable and orderly sustainable

development management.

of Directors

ESGEE/ME
ESG
management team

BRREEDM
Functional departments

&5 FAH
Branch and subsidiary

REEEZE

Decision making and deliberation layer

s BEFREASRRMRRERE - ARTHHE - FHREEESGIHRR
& N BUR BVEATT

* The Board of Directors, as the highest decision-making and responsible
institution, is responsible for formulating, approving, and supervising the
implementation of ESG-related strategies and policies regularly.

EREGEE

Management and coordination layer

c BEFMEMA  BERFERELEIRE  HERERT EORBAKE -
BIFESGE RS TIE - Jir BimE S & e HEMESCH I & B2
EEER - REEREARIDARS -

* |t is responsible for comprehensively identifying, determining, and
evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities; formulating ESG
goals and coordinating related work; reporting regularly to the Board on
the implementation of key ESG events and goals; and providing
decision-making support for the Board's deliberations.

ARG TE

Organization and coordination layer

. %ggﬁ@%a’me%@%HFE%E%EEA‘@‘}M% » R E T ERPIESGAER T IF
T

* Responsible for establishing sound ESG management system norms and
processes, and organizing the execution of ESG-related work in each
business segment.

HElEEE
Specific implementation layer
. %5%2 C BEAS B TIESEANMBESGIIEMNEM + WHKHESGHER

EERER
 All staff are involved and responsible for the implementation of ESG in
their scope of work and the operationalization of ESG concepts.
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4.2 Stakeholder Engagement

According to the characteristics of the Group's business and the

industries, we have identified and defined six key stakeholders:

clients, employees, investors/shareholders, government/regulatory

institutions, suppliers/partners, and communities. We emphasize

communication with our stakeholders, communicate with

them regularly through diversified channels, fully listen to their

expectations and demands, and clearly define the phases of the

Group's sustainable development to create value for stakeholders.

Stakeholder
Fz=EEE A

Topics of interest

BRI S

4.2 FmEEBES R

REBRNEBEBMAETERS R
MBERtEETEF, BT KRE
E/OBRR BF/EERE  fE
B AERHENLRANRMEIEH
o RMEGENDERT BB
W BBZTTCREEHES M AR
MO RMER THOBEBMMANHE
B AREETSERROBR
B RNEAESAEEE -

Form of communication

BEAR

Investor and shareholder

REERKRR

Client and potential client

EFREEERF

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

Corporate governance
Business development
Legitimate business operation
Risk control

Financial performance
NAEVRE

EER

AREE

[\ B E 1

BURGES

Business stability

Comprehensive solution

Privacy and data security protection
Product quality and safety
Commercial integrity

EBREM

AR R
BALEBUR 2 2R
EnEENTd

EELAHE

Shareholder meeting

Regular information disclosure

Investor meeting

Comprehensive risk management system
construction

A

TEHI(E BIKER

REEGE

THEARERERER

Client satisfaction survey

Client consulting, complaint and return visit

Client communication
Market research

Data protection system
BEREWEERE
BPwH - WAFEEIE
BRPRnE

M5 F

IR RESE
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Topics of interest

B HIEE

BiE HERERME

Form of communication

BEARX

Suppliers and partners

HERRSERHF

Staff

Government and regulatory

agency

B REEHE

Community

HE

Business stability
Supply chain management
Legitimate business operation
Win-win cooperation
Anti-fraud
EBRE M
HrEgEeEe
BREE

EEfE

[z SR 8%

Staff compensation and benefits
Staff development and training
Staff health and safety

Diversity, equality and inclusion

B TH B
BT3RS
BTREEZS
- FPERERN

0

Legitimate business operation
Payment of taxes under law
Leading regional economic
development

Anti-fraud

Green economy

BRES

FOEMANTR

mE RSB R

[ SR 8%

BEgH

Community dedication
Volunteer services
Green economy
N

ERRE RS

gk on

Fair procurement management method
Tendering activities
Industry cooperation and exchange

Statement of integrity

NFEREERPE
BERIZES
TTEAERR
FRZEH

Staff training system

Welfare security system

Performance assessment and promotion system

Internal complaints and reporting channels

Employee satisfaction survey

BIEIIER

BFRE RS &

BUEREETTEEZ
éﬁéi

kolg
ﬁvN

Cooperation with regulatory agency for verification
Government and enterprise symposium
Information disclosure

Comprehensive risk management system

construction

RAEERERS
BbERE
EERE

THEAREREBRER

Community and charity activities
Social media

Low-carbon campaign

‘/\?Z\i/ééb
AR
B S FES
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4.3 Materiality Issue Identification

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted an
annual assessment of ESG materiality issues for identified key
stakeholders through an online questionnaire survey, considered
comprehensively the interest of stakeholders in various issues and
the importance of these issues to the Group's business and strategy,
formulated 22 ESG-related issues as the Group's future goals for ESG

management, and disclosed and responded to them accordingly in

this report.

Issue assessment steps

S B —  ESGEERR
Step 1: ESG issue
identification

SR | ESGREREL
Step 2: ESG issue
assessment

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEAEI R HER AT

43 ERMRERR

HREBMN - AEBEBBEREEAN
MEREHANNEZF AR AR
TEEESCEEMZBETEIIE R4
EZREEZEZNEEE T OEEE
REEEEBMEMOEEY - BT
2IEESGHERZEE - W HFAEERX
REESGEIR B  FEAREPHETHA
JEHFEFIEIE o

SEAESE

BFRBEARERN AR RTESH  AREREER BREERERTERENRR - 114HR
H—RFIERA R EBBIEBMESGER °

Considering the Group’s strategies and industry characteristics as well as national policies,
applicable regulatory requirements, and industry standard development, we initially identified and
screened a series of ESG issues that are closely related to the Company's business.

HBEBEBANEARTMERNER - LA [HASAER T WERE | 1 THASENERE ] A
AR EERIEE - FTEEBRIMESCHAENERE - MEESGHREBNERIF - WAHKIWESG
EEUHREGER -

We assessed the "Importance to stakeholders" and "Importance to the Group" as two dimensions

as indicators through consideration of the views of stakeholders and experts, determined the
prioritization of ESG issues, and mapped our ESG materiality assessment matrix.

BRI EARERE - Gt EEEE 1 - SEEES RESCER/ NMASHEZ A ARETT
ERER - MRZTABRTEAREBSRLERMNR -

To ensure the accuracy, validity and relevance of the assessment results, the Board of Directors
of the Group and the ESG Management Team reviewed and examined the materiality assessment
results to ensure that assessment results are accord with the Company's business characteristics
and development situation.
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Issue assessment results: BT AR
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RS dHakEals
o LXERME _ o HEILEME o EBUEENE B TR
Corporate governance issues Environmental and social issues Business and operational issues Staff related issues
=
High
BB
8 THE RIET) Payment of taxes under law
s =
w,. Staff compensation npn HEEEE
z i%%f‘al and benefits _ @R & Eo%\ﬁgcial Business stability
° fg% d Ienrlagr(r:vlf‘ance Risk control integrity 0 ESHEEBRRE
nti-frau i A \. Product quality
( ] Legitimate business and safety
BALAYE R 2R @operation o EIFAR wgeng
_ %5t - FE@EpmAg Privacy and data L] _ Win-win = @ g\ iness
5. Diversity, equality  Security protection o STfefkze cooperation o qinment
S and inclusion _Staff health and safety
a7 b BTEERE
o 0 ZEEE [ Staff development
% *H Green economy EARARR and training
& @ Comprehensive solution ® ATAE
3 ° Corporate governance
S
% 2 HAERER
) g Supply chain management
@
0@ THEBEEER
HEA Leading regional economic development
Community dedication
ERRE R
Volunteer services
CF' HEEXBHTE =
Middle Impact on the Group’s operations High
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5. STANDARDIZED OPERATION AND STABLE
DEVELOPMENT

5.1 Corporate Governance

5.1.1 Corporate governance overview

The Group has been committed to achieving excellence
in corporate governance to maximize the protection of
shareholders’ interests. To achieve this goal, we strictly comply
with the requirements under the Corporate Governance Code,
enhance the transparency of the Company's operation and
standardization, and ensure that stakeholders fully understand
our operating condition and future development direction. We
believe that a sound and standardized corporate governance
system is the cornerstone for the Company to promote its
sustainable development and safeguard its long-term value.
Therefore, we will continue to optimize and improve our
corporate governance structure to ensure that it is in line with
the Company'’s strategic goals so as to create greater value for

the Company and all stakeholders.

5.1.2Management structure

The Board of the Group is responsible for general mandate
management and operation of business to ensure that we
maintain a sound and effective system of internal control
and risk management to protect shareholders’ investments
and the Group's assets security all the time. In particular,
non-executive Directors are mainly responsible for providing
strategic views about the Group's development, and
independent non-executive Directors are mainly responsible
for providing independent judgment and advice to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and the Group. Meanwhile, the
Supervisory Committee consists of three Supervisors who are
mainly responsible for supervising the Board and providing

independent opinions.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules, the Group has established four board
committees under the Board, including the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, and
the Strategy Committee. The above committees will provide
advice on the Group's policies and compliance from different
perspectives to ensure the sound and efficient operation of the

Group.
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Specifically, the Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring
the independence of external auditors, examining financial
information, and examining the risk management and internal
control system. The Remuneration Committee assists in
determining the remuneration of Directors, Supervisors, and
senior management. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for conducting extensive search for suitable
candidates for the Board and other senior management,
supervising the implementation of the Board diversity
policy, and researching and developing election standards
and procedures. The Strategy Committee is responsible for
researching and putting forward the Company’s long-term
development strategies, major investment and financing
plans, and advice on capital operation and asset management

projects, and monitoring and evaluating significant matters.

5.1.3Diversity policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance, we have implemented
a board diversity policy, which aims to promote diversity in
all aspects of the Board and to create a more representative
and inclusive Board. The current Board has balanced
knowledge, skills, and experience, covering in overall business
management, financial accounting, and research and
development, and holding specialized skills in various fields

such as mechanics, economics, and accounting.

To ensure the implementation of the Board diversity policy, the
Nomination Committee will be responsible for monitoring the
policy implementation. Currently, the members of the Board
have a large age span from 35 to 57, and consists of seven
male directors and two female directors. Such a structure helps
promote diversity and innovation of the Board and facilitates us
to consider views and experience of the members at different
ages in our decisions, thus better serving the Company's

development.

RE HERERHRE

HEME  BERZBENBERE
SONERZBENH B - BENB
BRANES e T I K AR
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FHEEAREIE o
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5.2 Risk Management and Internal Control

A sound risk management and internal control system is an
indispensable foundation for safeguarding the sound operation
of an enterprise. To ensure compliant operation, the Group has
formulated a detailed internal control manual to define operating
procedures, internal control procedures and other relevant policies
and guides. Until now, the Group has established 21 core internal
control systems covering procurement and payment, sales and
payment collection management, contracts and agreements,
preparation and disclosure of financial reports, human resource
policies and data and R&D center management, and other key

businesses.

Meanwhile, the Board is responsible for formulating, updating, and
implementing internal control policies and systems to ensure that
the Group operates in compliance with requirements. Our senior
management members are responsible for overseeing the daily
implementation of the internal control procedures and measures of
subsidiaries and functional departments, to gradually improve the
internal control and risk management of the whole Group through

continuous optimization and adjustment.

The Group's risk management procedures:

5.2 R EIE B A PR

ExaAE

2= r R B B A A ST 8 R 2R
ErEBRELSTUNIMRMER - &
THRRAREY  AEEFIET %
HENAEFM HETREER -
PN BB ¥R I A2 7 DA B B 4t AH B8 B R AN 3R
Bh#t- BHEBHA FEBKEVT
QIEZROAZEGE - BETRBEN
o HEHEWHER -
BmERRERHE -
%%Eﬁﬁ%*b%@%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
i o

A

2 RAHE

BRI AN E B E IR o

SERREERF

E—EERF e o
First procedure £A£
| Btk 1 B AT Ak

Risk identification and
assessment

.

2H - R4 AR
BE BAERER  kFF#
TR EHE
FAIREBRER AN R - B
BANER - B8 &
FRREEZE - WHEFEAREN
RRBARE -
RAETMHEEEREANT
% HERIHREBRET DA
HEFp - EEEARBEFIEL
PERIE R

Collect relevant information
comprehensively, systematically,
and continuously, and conduct
timely risk assessments in line
with actual circumstances.
Identify internal and external
risks, including human
resources, management,
finance, safety and environ-
mental protection and other
factors, and determine the
corresponding risk tolerance.
Using a combination of
qualitative and quantitative
methods, analyze and sort
ranked the identified risks to

determine the major risk
points and risks to be
prioritized.

E-EER =
Second procedure :A
HIRT R PR B

Formulate risk response
strategies

RERRIMNER @ Had
EWERAZ RS - BERR
RS -

TEE R FE A SRS - AN ERAR
i BHE - DERARSE
EHERASE M 8 T eV R IR i
HEITHM - PREUE I HEAR
REABELK -

According to the results of risk
analysis, combined with the
enterprise  risk  tolerance,
weigh the risks and benefits.

Identify risk response
strategies such as risk
avoidance, minimization,

sharing or tolerance.

Analyze the risk preference of
employees in key positions
and take control measures to
avoid major losses.
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EoERRF
Third procedure

B HEE

Implementation of control

activities
RIBRREAEAAR - B RS
i - THERREE S - X
REEL - B RSIEGE
[R\ Bz I AT A SR A
B B AR IEEHHIFIZe 8
FHESRIEE] - BRI

HERBREERMN -
According to the results of
risk assessment, control

measures, such as incompat-
ible separation of duties,
authorization and approval,
accounting system control,
etc., are applied to control the
risk within an acceptable
range.

Establish an early warning

mechanism and an
emergency response
mechanism to ensure timely
and proper handling of
emergencies.

Fourth procedure / A
B B B D

Continuous monitoring and
improvement
ERETERERADN - BHR
TFERY AN A o
SR HIRE FE I TRAEE B
EMRHE - BREAMIE -
RBEBERAIBFAE - 3
R\ FE S SRR A IR e
Conduct regular operation
analysis, identify existing
problems, solve the issues
and make improvement.
Continuously monitor and
evaluate the internal control
system to ensure its effective-
ness.

According to business
development and environ-
mental changes, adjust risk
response  strategies and
control measures.
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5.3 Integrity Management

The Group attaches great importance to combating bribery and
corruption. It strictly complies with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery and other relevant Chinese laws and regulations
in the relevant fields, as well as the regulations and policies of the
areas of operations. In addition, it has internally established “three
lines of defense’, which include that the administration department
shall advocate the anti-corruption culture, the functional
departments shall implement the merit supervision, and the internal
audit department shall conduct internal control review. At the same
time, the Group has adopted and implemented specific policies
and internal control measures against corruption and bribery, which
stipulate the procedures for identifying potential corruption and
taking action against corruption, and set out the anti-corruption
responsibilities of relevant personnel, for the purpose of monitor
internal and external compliance with anti-bribery and anti-

corruption laws, regulations and policies.

In accordance with the Group’s policies against bribery and
corruption, the Group firmly opposes any form of commercial
bribery and corruption. In all of our business activities, we
strictly prohibit the offering or acceptance of bribes, kickbacks,
excessive gifts or hospitality, nor any other payments intended to
seek illegitimate business interests. For the purpose of ensuring
transparency and compliance, we maintain detailed and complete
books and records of transactions. In addition, in accordance with
the requirements of our policies against bribery and corruption, we
specifically require that our employees shall submit the request for
reimbursement of relevant expenses and clearly state the purpose
of the expenses when entertaining third parties on behalf of the
Company or giving gifts to them. In particular, the employee must
obtain prior approval from the Director of Compliance for any
business hospitality expense that exceeds the prescribed per-capita
amount ceiling or for hospitality expenses that are not related to
the business meeting. The purpose of this measure is to ensure
that all expenses shall be made in accordance with the laws and
regulations as well as the Company's policies, thereby safeguarding

the Company's reputation and interests.
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Besides, the Group has continued to promote integrity education
and constantly raise its employees’ and senior officers’ awareness
of anti-bribery and anti-corruption. During the orientation training
for newly-hired employees, we would stress our control policies
against bribery and corruption, to ensure that they fully understand
and strictly comply with the relevant regulations. In addition, we
provide our employees with multiple channels of communication
and encourage them to proactively seek guidance with respect to
our anti-corruption policies so that they can better understand and
implement them. Moreover, we conduct regular anti-corruption
compliance inspection and reviews on our employees and senior
management members, to ensure that they follow the Company’s
anti-corruption principles. Furthermore, we have developed a
detailed code of conduct for our employees, which sets out internal
rules and guidelines on basic work rules, ethics and confidentiality,

as well as on combating negligence, bribery and corruption.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees were
not involved in any litigation cases of corruption, bribery, extortion,

fraud and money laundering.

5.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights are fundamental to the Group's business
operations. We have invested substantial time and resources in the
development and protection of intellectual property rights. During
the Reporting Period, the Group's investment in research and
development amounted to approximately RMB42.2 million. As of
the end of the Reporting Period, our R&D team had 164 members,
accounting for 9.5% of the total number of employees in the Group.
We protect our intellectual property rights, including trademarks,
patents, copyrights and domain names, in strict accordance with
the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations. In addition, we
have formulated the Regulations on the Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights in the Group's internal control system, and we
will regularly optimize and update our system for managing
intellectual property rights in light of the actual needs of business
development. As of December 31, 2023, we had registered 22
trademarks (including 2 trademarks registered in Hong Kong and 1
trademark registered in Taiwan), 13 patents, 2 copyrights associated
with works of authorship, 120 computer software copyrights and 11

domain names in China.
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The management of the Group’s department of intellectual
property rights is temporarily coordinated and supervised by the
General Manager’s Office; and comprehensive evaluation and
reward mechanisms have been formulated. At the same time, the
number of patent applications, the number of patents authorized
and the benefits of patent implementation have been incorporated
into the assessment system of the research and development
department, for the purpose of creating a favorable environment
for innovation, stimulating the employees’ creative potential
and promoting the sustainable development of the Company. In
addition, the Group will protect our intellectual property rights
mainly by relying on copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade secrets,
anti-unfair competition laws, and contractual rights (such as

confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties).

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no material disputes
or claims arising from infringement of intellectual property rights of

any third party.

6. CIRCULAR ECONOMY AND GREEN OPERATION

6.1 Introduction to Intralogistics Equipment Solutions

In the traditional intralogistics equipment procurement model,
an enterprise often needs to bear high one-time equipment
procurement expenses, which not only brings a heavy financial
burden to the operations of the enterprise, but also invisibly limits
the enterprise’s freedom in equipment selection and mobile
deployment. As equipment procurement takes up a large amount
of funds, an enterprise may not be able to respond to market
changes and business adjustments in a timely manner, thus
missing development opportunities. In addition, the maintenance
and management of intralogistics equipment usually require
professional technical support, and the sudden demand for
intralogistics equipment during peak seasons will increase the
operating costs and management difficulties of an enterprise,
further exacerbating its operational pressure. As Chinese enterprises
increasingly value cost control and operational efficiency, in order
to solve this series of industry problems, intralogistics equipment

solution providers have emerged.
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RIE -
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The Group is a leading intralogistics equipment solution provider
in China and focusing on intralogistics equipment subscription
services, it provides services covering the entire lifecycle of
intralogistics equipment for manufacturing and logistics enterprises,
including equipment subscription, repair and maintenance,
management optimization and disposal. We can provide a wide
range of equipment model combinations to meet the deployment
needs of various enterprises in different scenarios, help customers
reduce costs related to fixed asset procurement and subsequent
equipment maintenance, and provide suitable equipment disposal
solutions as required by customers. Compared with the traditional
intralogistics equipment procurement model, intralogistics
equipment solutions can help enterprises reduce costs by about

20% throughout the entire equipment lifecycle.
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Light assets: Customers do not need to
bear the cost of one-time intralogistics
equipment procurement, alleviating their
financial burden

Flexible deployment: Customers can 2ED

2
N
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flexibly deploy their equipment based on i
their actual equipment usage needs at any Managzmem
time
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Disposal e
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Diversified treatment methods:

We provide various treatment methods
such as deep repair, disassembly and
sales of used equipment depending on the
condition of the equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group managed more than
45,000 units of intralogistics equipment, achieving revenue of

approximately RMB1,371.8 million.
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* No additional maintenance and repair costs:
As part of intralogistics equipment solutions, we
identify the type of fault and provide free
maintenance and repair services for customers

« Effective service: We provide predictive
maintenance and repair, which can significantly
improve repair efficiency, reduce costs, and
extend equipment service life
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Management and optimization
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¢ Reduce breakdowns: We monitor the operation
and maintenance status of equipment in order to
reduce equipment damages

* Improve efficiency: We improve operational
efficiency and optimize equipment utilization

i&%ﬁﬁm ’ K%ﬁﬁ @%’W%mbp‘x
HBEBBE4SBE  BRBRAHDARE
13718B&ETT ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

6.2 Emission and Carbon Reduction

During the Reporting Period, the Group always adhered to its
commitment to sustainable development and environmental
protection, and achieved significant results in reducing carbon
emissions, improving energy efficiency, and optimizing resource
utilization, etc. through a series of comprehensive and systematic
strategic measures. Through the integration, innovation and
application of new technologies such as IoT, big data and cloud
computing, we actively promoted new energy intralogistics
equipment, strengthened predictive maintenance, optimized
intelligent asset operation and management, improved used
equipment disposal services, and formed a green, low-carbon, and

circular development model.

6.21Promote the use of new energy intralogistics
equipment

We will reduce carbon emissions by increasing the proportion

of new energy intralogistics equipment in the fleet.

In order to fulfill environmental responsibilities and provide
sustainable intralogistics equipment solutions, the Group
prioritizes the equipment that consumes clean electricity when
selecting intralogistics equipment. The equipment not only has
the same excellent functions as traditional internal combustion
equipment, but also has characteristics such as low emissions
and low noise. Through actual operational data comparison,
based on a standard eight-hour workday, a single electric
forklift can potentially reduce greenhouse gas emissions by
about 46.4% and energy consumption costs by up to 82.2%
compared to traditional internal combustion forklifts under the

same working conditions.

In recent years, the Group has actively responded to the
global call for emission reduction and significantly increased
the proportion of electric forklifts in our fleet. The proportion
of electric forklifts has increased from approximately 90.0%
in 20271 to approximately 91.1% in 2022, and further to
approximately 92.5% in 2023. During the Reporting Period, we
have also continued to invest in new energy equipment. As of
December 31, 2023, lithium battery equipment accounted for

approximately 70.8% of our total intralogistics equipment.
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In the future, we will continue to increase our investment in
the field of new energy equipment, explore more innovative
technologies and application scenarios, promote the
transformation of equipment towards more environmentally
friendly alternatives, and strive to achieve more significant
results in reducing carbon emissions and improving energy
efficiency, contributing an important force to achieving global

environmental protection goals.

6.22Strengthen predictive maintenance to improve

equipment service life

We will optimize and prolong the service life of equipment by
strengthening our predictive maintenance capabilities, thereby

reducing carbon emissions.

Based on its rich experience in the industry, the Group
has successfully built a set of industry-leading predictive
maintenance capabilities and technologies. By innovating
our self-developed loT terminals and Intelligent Asset and
Operation Management Platform with deep loT integration,
we can monitor the operational status of equipment in real
time and accurately identify potential fault points at the initial
stage before problems become so worse that it will incur
significant maintenance costs or lead to faults, thus providing
targeted intervention and maintenance for equipment in a
timely manner. By such means, we can not only restore and
optimize equipment performance to the maximum extent in a
more cost-efficient manner, but also prolong the service life of
equipment in an effective way, reducing resource waste and

carbon emissions caused by frequent equipment replacement.

Thanks to our powerful predictive maintenance capability, our
intralogistics equipment under our management has a lifespan
up to 13 years, far longer than the average level of 5 to 10
years for intralogistics equipment in China. Moreover, through
continuous supervision and predictive maintenance, we can
also reduce the frequency of major repairs of our intralogistics
equipment, thereby reducing the amount of hazardous waste
and carbon emissions generated in the maintenance process,

and mitigating the potential impact on the environment.
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The Group is well aware of the importance of predictive
maintenance technology in promoting sustainable
development and reducing carbon emissions. Therefore, the
Group will continue to increase investment, strengthen and
improve our predictive maintenance capabilities, explore and
introduce more advanced monitoring technologies to improve

the accuracy and efficiency of predictive maintenance.

6.230ptimize the Intelligent Asset and Operation

Management Platform to improve operational
efficiency

We will improve equipment utilization efficiency by optimizing
the Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform,
thereby reducing the carbon emissions increased by inefficient

operations.

In the current context of green and low-carbon development,
we deeply recognize the urgency of reducing carbon
emissions and we continuously invest resources to improve
the Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform. This
system tightly integrates digital technology and services into
every aspect of our business operations, opening up various
new paths for us to reduce carbon emissions. Based on the loT
technology, our Intelligent Asset and Operation Management
Platform can assist us in allocating, organizing, and updating
information on equipment and accessories, thereby assisting
us in coordinating equipment application management,
optimizing equipment resource allocation, avoiding equipment
idleness and waste and minimizing energy consumption and
carbon emissions. On the other hand, the use of this system
can simplify service processes, reduce human errors and the
use of paper products and significantly improve operational
efficiency, thereby reducing carbon emissions from inefficient

operations.

As of December 31, 2023, our Intelligent Asset and Operation
Management Platform has covered over 97.8% of our
equipment fleet. In the future, we will continue to increase
investment, improve and optimize the Intelligent Asset
and Operation Management Platform, and contribute more
to achieving goals for more environmentally friendly and

sustainable development.
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6.24Improve used equipment disposal services

We will prolong the service life of used equipment by
improving its disposal services, thereby reducing the carbon
emissions generated during the production and procurement

of new equipment as well as the disposal of old equipment.

In response to the policies and calls of the Chinese government
in recent years to promote corporate environmental
protection, the Group has provided a comprehensive set
of recycling and disposal services for old and idle used
equipment. Disposal services include the renovation of
intralogistics equipment and the sale of used equipment.
Through disposal services, old intralogistics equipment can
be restored to working conditions, with service life extended,
avoiding carbon emissions generated in the production and

procurement process of new equipment.

During the Reporting Period, we maintained a highly
responsible attitude and did not dispose of or sell any
equipment as waste to unqualified recyclers. Before the
equipment reaches its scrapping standards, we always maintain
it in its optimal state of use through careful maintenance
and scientific management, and actively seek out buyers
with demand for used equipment sales, ensuring that each
equipment maximizes its value throughout its lifespan, thereby
promoting the recycling of resources and the sustainable

development of environmental protection.
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6.3 Green Office

The Group always adheres to the concept of green office in the
operation process, actively promotes energy-saving and emission
reduction measures from the source, and reduces the impact of
our own operations on the environment through practical actions.
During the Reporting Period, there were no confirmed violations
or appeals in relation to exhaust gas emissions, greenhouse gas
emissions, water pollution, land pollution, and the disposal of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste that had a significant impact

on the Group.

Our main energy consumption includes electricity and the gasoline
used in our own vehicles, resulting in approximately 5,479.0 tons
of direct and indirect CO, emissions in 2023. In addition, our
operations do not generate additional greenhouse gas emissions.
In terms of water resources, we fully rely on the municipal water

supply system, which guarantees a stable and worry-free water

supply.

In the context of the national strategy of carbon peak and carbon
neutrality, the Group attaches great importance to environmental
protection, strictly abides by the applicable laws and regulations
on environmental protection and energy conservation, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and formulates internal policies such as the Water Conservation
Management Regulations and the Electricity Utilization
Management Regulations. We set water and electricity consumption
KPIs, regularly monitor such consumption, actively implement the
concept of green office, and take a series of measures in energy and
water conservation and emission management in order to reduce

energy and resource consumption and control emissions.

In order to effectively implement the green and low-carbon
operation concept, we continuously optimize internal management
measures based on the actual business development and operation,
and actively promote the implementation of energy-saving and
emission reduction plans for office spaces, equipment bases, and
logistics. In the workplace, we focus on the use of water resources
and office supplies, while vigorously promoting green travel to

reduce the impact on the environment.
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Water conservation:

1.

Regularly inspect all water consuming equipment to ensure it
is in good working condition, prevent dripping and leakage to
reduce water resource waste. Moreover, the Company installed
sensor faucets throughout the entire facility in order to reduce

the amount of water used each time.

The wastewater that meets the conditions (such as canteen
water) shall be reused after appropriate treatment to reduce

the consumption of fresh water.

We regularly provide water conservation education and
training to our employees to enhance their water conservation
awareness. In addition, we set up water conservation
promotional slogans and reminders in the office area to
encourage employees to practice water conservation in their

daily life.

Reduce energy and material consumption:

The Company stipulates that, before leaving work, employees
must check electric equipment such as lighting, fans, and
water dispensers in the office to ensure they are in a closed
state. Office computers, printers, photocopies and other office
devices must be set in energy-saving mode. If not used for
a long time, they must be turned off in a timely manner to

reduce energy consumption resulting from standby.

We promote the secondary reuse of office paper and paperless
office work, and try to handle various process application
forms and paper materials online as much as possible (such
as office automation systems, invoices, etc) to reduce paper

consumption.

We have established effective inventory management rules
and regulations for office supplies, requiring the exchange of
old items for new ones when reissuing durable office supplies

to ensure sufficient supply while reducing waste.
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Green travel:

1. We install charging stations within the park and encourage

employees to use low-carbon modes of transport.

2. We promote online and telephone conferences to reduce

carbon emissions resulting from business travel.

3. We comprehensively promote low-carbon travel and

encourage employees to use public transport.

To actively respond to the “dual carbon” policy and promote the
development of green energy, we also plan to build a distributed
photovoltaic power station at the headquarters of the Group
through cooperation with external suppliers. The expected installed
capacity of the power station is 483.7kW, and the average annual
power generation is expected to reach 443,000kWh. After the
project is put into use, the generated power will be firstly used for
the daily operations of the headquarters park, thereby achieving
on-site consumption of clean energy and optimizing the energy
structure. As per our calculations, this can reduce greenhouse gas

emissions by approximately 270.0 tons per year.

6.4 Waste Reduction Management

The Group has always adhered to the bottom line of environmental
protection regulations and strictly followed the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations such as the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste. During the actual operation of the Group,
we actively promote the implementation of waste classification
regulations, continuously optimize the process and mechanism of
waste classification, collection, and disposal, and are committed to

improving the efficiency of resource recycling.
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In order to further strengthen waste management, we further
classify the waste generated during our operation into non-
hazardous waste (such as office waste) and hazardous waste (such
as used batteries, waste engine oil, and waste oilcloth), and use
targeted disposal methods for different types of waste to reduce

the burden on the environment.

We generate limited hazardous waste in our daily operations.
In order to minimize the amount of waste oil generated during
equipment operation, we have provided oil saving discs and
suction sponges for operating environments and locations with
possible oil leakage, and strictly require technicians to carry out
the task. Meanwhile, we insist on using high-quality engine oil and
minimize the frequency of overhauls of intralogistics equipment
via the Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform and
predictive maintenance, thereby reducing the amount of hazardous
waste generated during equipment maintenance and use. In
addition, we have formulated multiple environmental management
policies and measures such as the Solid Waste Management
Regulations and the Environmental Waste Management
Regulations, and have assigned the responsibility for hazardous
waste management to our administrative office. We have provided
special locations and containers at each workplace to store
waste, and entrust the disposal of hazardous waste to units with
professional qualifications to ensure full compliance of hazardous

waste management.
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6.5 Addressing Climate Change 6.5 FEHRIRE L
6.5.1 Climate change management system 651 RIRE L EER R

The Group attaches great importance to the profound impact REESEERAERE AT RD
of climate change and deeply recognizes the potential risks RETE - RARBIREE
and valuable opportunities that climate change poses on SEXBERMECRREE S’
the development of its business. In order to further enhance B BRTE—SREASEERIEE
the Group's ability to respond to climate change, we actively LB EERE N - BMIEIRERE
respond to the call of the TCFD (Task Force on Climate-related TCFD (R %2 B R ETIE
Financial Disclosures) and plan to organically integrate climate H)WHRAE - FrERRERERE E
risk management into the Company’s business strategy and A AN B P 2 B R EL R R
risk management system, ensuring that the Group maintains ERBR2F  BREETEHS
a stable development trend in the complex and changing FMRERRSEPRISTEREOERRE
climate environment. £

Level

Em

Specific actions

2N )]

Governance

N
I
V=]

Strategy

B

Risk management

RERER

Indicators and goals

EERBER

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for comprehensive supervision of ESG-
related matters, including addressing climate change issues. The ESG Working Group is
established under the Group, responsible for identifying and evaluating ESG-related risks and
opportunities, including addressing climate change problems, assisting the Board of Directors
in developing corresponding management indicators and mechanisms, and coordinating the
implementation of the ESG work in various relevant departments and branches.
EEGRASEHEEORERYERERECEZBEEANNESCIHMER - SE TRESGIIEAR -
BEHMNMFEEERERERE(CEEENNESCHER AR EME - HBEESTHITEIRRE
BRI IR M) - WABESCTIEAEZ BRI D R RN E MM o

We are fully aware of the significant impact of climate change on the operations of the
Group, comprehensively evaluate the potential financial impact of climate change risks and
opportunities, promote corporate transformation through technological innovation and green
operations, reduce climate change risks, seize development opportunities, and create long-
term and sustainable value for the Group and all stakeholders.
AOEBREECHAEELEFRNEATE  2EERIEZ RS0 BN
S8 BANRAINNGEESHEDCEEL  REREECER  CRERKE &
SERENRBERAERE - ATRENEE -

Based on the TCFD framework, we identify climate change risks and opportunities related to
the Company, and organically integrate climate change risk management into the Company’s
business strategy and risk management system.

ANEEBREARREEER S -

The Group will regularly monitor, compile, analyze, and transparently disclose performance
data related to carbon emissions. In order to ensure the smooth progress of the goals, we will
provide detailed information on the progress of achieving the goals in our annual ESG report,
in order to evaluate the Company's management performance in addressing climate change.
Moreover, we will develop targeted improvement plans based on the assessment results to
continuously enhance the Group's performance in ESG.

SEFEHEA - BT - D ABE AR EBRB AR BAEREIE - RIERB RN EE -
BAFSE G FRESGIRE P B EE B REREE - BT A AR ERERKRE(LTEEY
EREROKT o A - ZAIRBEF A ERGTE S IENBCE R R - UHERASEER
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6.5.2 Climate change-related risks and opportunities, and
countermeasures

The Group deeply recognizes the substantial financial impact
that climate change may have on it. In order to more effectively
address potential risks and opportunities, we actively carry
out identification, assessment, and analysis of climate change
risks and opportunities. Through this process, we have clearly
identified climate change factors closely related to our own
business and operations, as well as the risks and opportunities
resulting from them. This will help us better control risks,
seize opportunities, and ensure the stability and sustainable

development of the Group.
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Types of climate change-related

risks/opportunities
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Risk/Opportunity description
Rk #EHR

BiE HERERME

Potential
financial impact  Countermeasures
BERBEE  EHER

REZCEBRR HBER
Climate change-  Policy and
related risks legal risks
FRIRBAERR BN
EERR
Market risk
ik

Technical risk

e 30

Reputation
risk

Acute physical
risk

MEMER R

Chronic
physical risk

BHEYERR

The significant expenses incurred in
observing environmental laws and
any non-compliance may make the
Company bear legal risks
RETREZEBRNAERX -
BEEAERGAREARARE
ZER
The needs of the customers of the
Company are gradually changing
and they tend to pursue the
products and services with lower
chate damage
RAEFPNE LB HEE - RiFY
RIRBIERIR A0 E B AR
For example, technological iteration,
or replacing technologies that
cause lower climate damage with
technologies that cause higher
climate damage
BlansnEe - LERIEBIERIE
BRI R B R IRBOE B = O B
Our stakeholders require the
Company to actively take action and
enhance transparency in information
disclosure when addressing climate
change. Failure to fully respond to
stakeholders' needs may have a
certain impact on the reputation of
the Company
TG ERAAEEERIRE
(LR BERBTBTRAE LB E
BRE - IAFED DR SRS

K ARHOCEBEEL—FY
g

Equipment damage and value chain
interruption caused by events such
as storms, floods, fires, or high-
temperature weather

MREE - KK AAHERBRRRSE
BT EHRBRRE L BEET
B

Long-term climate change, such as
changes in temperature, rising sea
levels, and reduced water sources
RPREEL - MBS 8T
A KRR 8 E

Rising operating 1.
costs

BERA LT

Falling operating
revenues

EERATRE

Falling operating
revenues

Rising operating
costs

EERATE 2
FERA LT
Falling operating
revenues

Rising operating
costs

EERWRATRE
BEMA LT

Falling operating
revenues

Rising operating
costs 3.
EEWATRE
BERA LT

Rising operating
costs

BEMALT

We track climate change
dynamics in real time and develop
meticulous emergency plans for
extreme weather events to ensure
rapid and effective response
under any climate condition.
ERNEHARE( B - WY
Hm R RENHIE A2 SR
R BREEAREGEG T
MRERE  BYEY -

In the process of selecting

new network locations for the
Company, we will fully consider
the frequency of extreme weather
events in various regions as a key
factor in network layout decisions
to ensure the stability and
sustainability of business.
ERAFERNEIBRES - &
FRNEZERMBIBIRARANEE
SRR B EAEREEMmRREN
FRAZ  UREXBOREE
TFsE

Based on the climate
characteristics of different regions,
the Company will implement
differentiated management
strategies in business. We adjust
the operation mode based

on local climate risks, develop
targeted safety measures to
ensure the safety of employees
and property, and minimize the
potential losses caused by climate
change.
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Types of climate change-related

Potential

risks/opportunities Risk/Opportunity description financial impact  Countermeasures
RRECERRE HEER Rk #EHTR BERBY i ag iy
Climate Products and  The preference of the customers of  Rising operating We actively adapt to market

change-related

opportunities

RRBERRE

services

EmER%

Market

opportunities

ikt 5

Resource

efficiency

BRAE

Energy

sources

BERRR

Adaptability

il

the Company for green products
and services has increased, creating
greater room for revenue growth of

the Company

REEPHZEEMNRBHORT

R’ RARBARIEE KiEHAZ
fél

The favorable policies that
encourage green development

of enterprises will drive the
development of the Company

SR EREBRNFTBRE
BRRNER

We improve resource utilization and
reduce the operating costs of the
Company

RBERNBE  BEARESK
N

We apply green technology, use low-
carbon, renewable, and clean energy,

and improve energy reuse efficiency

in our business operation
FERmsRE R - AR 78
OBRRR - EEETDRITER
HEMA=

We choose suppliers/upstream and
downstream partners who actively
promote green transformation
within the industry, which can
further strengthen the Company's

adaptability to climate change

BETENEREEFEELNH

e/ ETERIERY - -5

IRREESRIEZLRERERE N

revenues

ERRA LA

Rising operating

revenues

EERA L

Falling operating

Costs

Falling operating

Costs

BENA TR

Rising operating
revenues
Falling operating

Costs

EERA LT
BERATR

changes, respond to customer
preferences, increase investment
in new energy and environmental
protection products and quickly
gain market share.
BEIEETISE( - ZREPR
i - MAFTRERIRRERIRA -
BRRIEE TSR

We adjust personnel structure and
introduce technical talents for
maintenance and repair of new
energy vehicles.
REABLE - S AMRER
BREEHBIIEAT

We conduct a comprehensive
review of existing internal
combustion vehicles and dispose
of vehicles that are continuously
in use and have limited value.
HRAENREETEEER ¥
HECHEABEBRNERET
BE
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6.6 Folangsi ESG Goals

Based on its own business, the Group has decided to set ESG goals
for four key areas, namely energy consumption, water resource
consumption, waste management, and greenhouse gas emissions,
with 2023 as the base year. In order to ensure the smooth
achievement of ESG goals, we will establish a comprehensive
regular tracking and assessment mechanism to ensure the
successful achievement of these ESG goals in the next five years,
demonstrating our professional capability and firm determination
in sustainable development and social environment improvement

through practical actions.

Energy consumption: Within the next five years, we aim to reduce
energy consumption density by approximately 5% to ensure it does

not exceed the level of 11.09 MWh per million RMB of revenue.

Water resource consumption: Within the next five years, we aim to
reduce the water resource consumption density by approximately
5% to ensure that it does not exceed the level of 31.74 metric tons

per million RMB of revenue.

Waste management: Within the next five years, we aim to reduce
the density of non-hazardous waste by approximately 5% to ensure
that it does not exceed the level of 1.03 kilograms per million RMB
of revenue; and also aim to minimize hazardous waste generated
and reduce the density of hazardous waste by about 5% to ensure
that it does not exceed the level of 2.07 kilograms per million RMB

of revenue.

Greenhouse gas emissions: Within the next five years, we aim to
reduce the greenhouse gas emission density by approximately 5%
to ensure that it does not exceed the level of 3.79 metric tons of

carbon dioxide equivalent per million RMB of revenue.
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7. mELE BEREL
71 EERBRE

7. QUALITY FIRST, SERVICE FOREMOST

7.1 Focusing on Service Quality

The Group is committed to enhancing the quality and safety of its
products, which we firmly believe is the basis for ensuring steady
business growth. In strict compliance with the requirements of
the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other relevant laws and regulations, we have always attached top
priority to the safety, reliability and quality of our products and
services, and have continuously been optimizing our product
portfolio and services by focusing closely on the actual needs of the
demand-side of intralogistics equipment. Through the utilization of
Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform, an advanced
comprehensive technology platform integrated into our loT Smart
Terminals and nationwide service network, we are able to provide
our customers with more attentive, efficient services in a timely

manner.

As a crucial part of our online services, the Intelligent Asset and
Operation Management Platform realizes 24/7 real-time monitoring
of equipment operation status. It not only provides customers with
digitalized support, but also helps them get a better understanding
on how to make full use of their subscribed equipment. Our
customers have the flexibility to adjust the number of equipment
units under their service contracts based on their equipment
utilization and project progress to meet their actual needs. In this
way, our Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform
is able to provide customers with a more flexible and efficient
service experience and help them optimize the efficiency of
asset management and operations. As of December 31, 2023, the
Intelligent Asset and Operation Management Platform has achieved

a coverage rate of over 97.8% on our equipment fleet.

AEEFOIRRAERMERL R
- BEERBAREHREBERNE
o BAEBET(hEARKNMBEE
mE8X) FHEERRTE - BERBE
mARBH 22N  ATEERSES
RER  EREKRSAYRERGH
BEREF R TEHBRICEMERERS
WEERRFT - BIBE MK ENGRA RN
Fo——EEREEEREERS &
B 25 BE R 4% o A B 1 2 B A R A 4R
o BPAATEPREEMNREL &
A N R E R

BMNEEEEELERARERR
ERBHEREKES - EEE2XRE
EREEREREORE ZEHT
ERATPREH TR EFE
B T NI E m ROt B RTIE
B o &P AT AR BR 22 45 I A = AN
TREE TEAERBERPHR
HEE UWREERE R - BBER
AR BMNEEEEBELEETIEER
AEPRHETEMNESE  SHORY
BR FHMeEsEgnEREEw
BlEERE - HZE2023F12A31
B BMNEBEEELCERRENE
ERMRBERE7.8%A £ o

TE =4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

133



134

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiE HERERME

At the same time, we also have an extensive nationwide service
network that enables us to provide quality services to our
customers in an efficient and convenient manner. To better serve
our customers’ needs and make sure our technicians arrive on site
within eight hours whenever the customers need their services, we
plan to further expand the number of offline service outlets. This
strategy will further enhance our service efficiency and make sure
customers get quality services in a timely manner. As of December
31, 2023, we have established a nationwide service network

comprising 67 service outlets covering 47 cities across the country.

In addition, the Group has also formulated a detailed after-sales
order tracking service policy. Before and during the sale of a
product, staff of sales department will introduce the product to
customers through multiple channels, answer customers’ inquiries
while keeping record of them. After the products are sold, we
will proactively collect customer feedback and handle customer
complaint in an appropriate way to guarantee their constant

satisfaction.

Customer Complaint Handling Procedure

1. Receipt:

When receiving verbal or written complaints from customers,
the salesperson shall fully communicate with the customer
through phone, fax or an in-person visit to understand and
record the customer’s complaint in detail in order to specify
the subject for the complaint. Once the salesperson has
confirmed the presence of the subject, he/she shall report it to

his/her supervisor as soon as possible.
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Investigation and Analysis:

If any complaint is determined to be our responsibility,
the salesperson shall hand over the complaint case to the
technical department after reporting to his/her supervisor.
Upon receiving the complaint case, the technical department
shall immediately start the verification, investigation and
analysis process through a scientific and rigorous approach
to determine the responsibility. A record of the investigation
result should be kept for further reference. After completing
the above steps, the technical department shall transfer the

case to the department responsible for the complaint.

Corrective Action:

Upon receiving the complaint case, any department
responsible for the complaint shall go through a corrective
process that consists of an in-depth analysis of the subject
for complaint; a clear conclusion of the root cause; a targeted
resolution plan; and precautionary measures to be taken. All
the measures should be taken to eliminate the root cause
of the complaint and prevent the recurrence of the same or
similar problems, so as to enhance customer satisfaction and

the Company's service quality.
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operations or financial results. BPEHEER -

During the Reporting Period, none of customer complaint

was received that would have a material adverse effect on our
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7.2 Supplier Management

A sustainable supply chain is crucial for the Group’s long-term
development. In order to maintain the quality standard of the
Group's products and services as well as its corporate reputation,
we have established a comprehensive supplier management policy,
which clearly identifies the criteria for the selection of suppliers, the
audit procedures, and daily management routine. At the same time,
the Group conducts regular supplier performance evaluations to
comprehensively assess the production capacity, delivery capability
and product quality of each supplier so that the Group continuously
monitors their qualifications. We also actively communicate with
our suppliers online and offline, and conduct on-site inspections of
our core suppliers on a regular basis. In addition, the Company will
continue to propose new collaborative projects and products to our
excellent supplier partners and work with them on product research

and development, so as to strengthen the partnership with them.

Supplier Admission Evaluation Process:

1. Preliminary evaluation of suppliers:

The Purchasing Center and consuming departments shall
choose appropriate suppliers according to the actual
needs of the Company, and ensure that the purchased
materials fully comply with the requirements of national
laws and regulations and safety requirements. Suppliers
must provide effective business licenses, proof of sufficient
financial capacity and quality criteria established and certified
in accordance with national or international standards. They
must have outstanding sense and practice of services, and

sufficient production capacity.
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2. On-site evaluation of suppliers:

The Purchasing Center, together with the Material
Management Center, the Technology Center and the
Finance Center, shall conduct on-site evaluation of
suppliers and put forward advices and suggestions
accordingly. The setup for the evaluation mainly consists of
the following parts: supplier qualifications, business operation
status, credit rating, payment terms, product quality, purchase

price, and delivery time.

3. Determination of the list of qualified suppliers:

Purchasing personnel shall determine the list of qualified
suppliers according to on-site evaluation result and
submit the result to the Purchasing Director, the Vice
President in charge of the specific business or the General
Manager (according to the approval authority of different
management levels) for review and approval. Once the
list is determined, purchasing personnel can select suitable

suppliers from the candidates to purchase the supply.

In addition, the Group attaches great importance to the
environmental and social performance of its suppliers. When
selecting suppliers, we have strict compliance requirements that
ask them to provide and regularly update environmental protection
certificates and relevant approvals; make sure that their production
complies with the national environmental protection standards as
well as energy conservation and emission reduction requirements;
and provide environmental protection qualifications and certificates
for their production equipment. We give preference to the suppliers
that: uphold environmental protection concepts; emphasize the
conservation of natural resources; proactively control and reduce
pollution; and promote the recycling of resources. At the same time,
we will inspect the “green operation” of our suppliers during on-site
visits, which means that we will pay attention to whether they have
adopted energy saving and alternative measures to reduce the
consumption of energy, water and other natural resources, so as to

reduce the emission of greenhouse gases.
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7.3

During the Reporting Period, no such violation by suppliers has
come to the Group's awareness that had significant actual or
potential negative impact on business ethics, environmental
protection and labor standards, nor did the Group face any supplier
issues that had significant negative impact on the environment and

society.

Privacy and Information Security

In our everyday operations, we collect and process operational data
(e.g. location, speed, working hours) of the intralogistics equipment
under subscription as well as the service flow of our technicians.
The archiving and protection of those operational data and related
information is of paramount importance to the Group. Therefore,
we place data privacy and information security as one of our
primary concerns and pay close attention to the risk management
of the relevant information technology systems. During the
Reporting Period, we strictly complied with the Data Security Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Personal Information Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws
and regulations, and formulated comprehensive data protection

policies.

The Group has established stringent internal control and data
access mechanisms, as well as detailed approval and operational
procedures in relation to data storage and processing, which set
out in detail stringent requirements on the use, disclosure and
protection of confidential information. The Group also provides
data privacy training to its employees on a regular basis to raise
their compliance awareness. Confidentiality agreements are signed
with them. In addition, the Group conducts data security audits on
an irregular sampling basis to monitor the implementation of data
security protection and organizes comprehensive risk assessments
of information assets on a regular basis to adjust information risk
control and security management strategies whenever necessary.
Meanwhile, the Group has established an information security
emergency response mechanism, conducted regular emergency
response drills. The Group has been optimizing and upgrading its
information systems accordingly, so as to maximize the protection

of the information security of its customers and the Group itself.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any
leakage of material data or personal information that would have a
material adverse impact on our business operations, or any violation

of data protection and privacy laws and regulations.
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8. PUT PEOPLE FIRST, MAINTAIN OUR VALUES

8.1 Caring for Employees

Human resources are crucial to the sustainable development of
the Group. To this end, we have established a comprehensive and
diversified system of talent recruitment, compensation and benefits,
training and career development. We have been improving
employee performance reviews to make sure that there is a fair
and equitable working environment for their potentials to be fully

realized. Our working environment also needs to be a safe and

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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healthy one, that is why we comply with the requirements of laws HEETEE  BMITHEIEEAFT
and regulations by respecting employees’ off-duty hours, listening B BWIRRHELZEERENIER

to their voices, and paying attention to their work-life balance. We
believe that these measures will enable our employees to grow
together with the company and enhance their sense of identity and

accomplishment, and thus help to lay a solid foundation for the

Group's steady development.

8.1.1 Equal employment

The Group strictly complies with the Company Law of the
People's Republic of China, the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China and other laws and regulations that require
us to formulate a human resource policy that prioritizes
justice, fairness and openness, and establish standardized
management of recruitment, remuneration and termination
of employment. The Group will verify the valid identity
information of an employee on recruitment and resolutely

prevent the employment of child labor. During the Reporting
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Period, no case of child labor or forced labor have come to the

awareness of the Group.
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At the same time, the Group is mindful of the fairness and
transparency of recruitment and appointment as well as the
diversity of our work force. We strictly prohibit discrimination
on the basis of gender, ethnicity, nationality, religious beliefs,
family, disability and other factors to provide equal hiring
opportunities and career opportunities for employees of
different genders, races and beliefs. We take into consideration
the differences among employees in gender, cultural
background and experience level in order to realize workforce
diversity and continuously enhance the inclusiveness of our
workplace as well as the sustainability of the company’s

development.

Internal recommendation, on-campus recruitment and online
recruitment platforms are our main recruitment channels.
We advocate a “pervasive performance evaluation mode” and
conduct regular performance evaluations of our employees,
which means that except for part of our functional and logistic
staff, the compensation of front-end operation teams and
management teams are linked to the results of performance
evaluations, while functional departments will be based
on their own job performance indicators. The results of
performance evaluations are the main basis for our personnel
decisions, such as promotions, payment adjustments, transfers,

demotions or terminations of employment.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total
of 1,733 employees (all located in China), of whom 1,295 were

male and 438 were female.
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8.1.2 Interests and benefits

The Group pays close attention to the experience,
qualifications and abilities of its employees and has carefully
formulated its remuneration strategy on this basis. The Group is
committed to building a more comprehensive and competitive
remuneration and benefit protection system for its employees.
The remuneration package of an employee consists mainly of
3 parts: a fixed basic salary, a positional salary and year-end
benefits. The Group will determine the levels of salary and
bonus every year based on the skill level, labor intensity, job
responsibility and actual contribution of employees, subject
to irregular adjustments. In order to raise awareness of labor
rights protection, the Group has established a trade union to

protect the interests of employees.

In accordance with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulation of China, the Group provides employees with
statutory benefits such as pension plans, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and housing
provident fund, as well as various complementary benefits such
as accommodation subsidies, food and beverage subsidies,
birthday gifts, holiday gifts and team building activities.
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Case 1: Employee birthday party
=01 BEI4ARS

During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any
material labor disputes or strikes that could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or business

performance.

Case 2: Team building activity
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8.1.3Health and safety

The Group has always accorded top priority to occupational
health and safety. We strictly comply with the requirements
of occupational health and safety legislations such as the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases and the Production Safety Law of
the PRC on Work Safety. Under these legislations we have
formulated and implemented a series of professional and
systematic internal safety management policies and measures,
and made efforts to prevent or minimize hazards and risks that
may arise from our operations so as to ensure the health and
safety of our employees and improve their satisfaction towards

their work.

In terms of safety education, the Group has been promoting
safety training for employees in a professional and disciplined
manner. We have an internal safety training mechanism
dedicated to ensuring that every new employee receives
comprehensive and systematic safety training upon admission,
while senior employees regularly review and update their
safety knowledge and participate in practical drills every
year. When it comes to service teams, we organize quarterly
professional safety trainings for them and provide them with
the necessary safety equipment such as gloves, boots, helmets
and high-visibility clothing to guarantee their safety and health

at work.

In order to ensure professional and effective safety
management, we have set up a special safety supervision
department, comprising experienced and specialized
personnel. This department regularly inspects the safety
practices of our service teams to see to it that all safety
measures are implemented. Meanwhile, our branches and
subsidiaries also actively respond to the Group's safety
management requirements by organizing professional safety
trainings every month to strengthen employees’ safety

awareness and emergency response capability.
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In addition, the Group attaches great importance to emergency
management by establishing a robust emergency response
mechanism, with regular safety drills and exercises to test and
strengthen its efficacy. Within 2023, we have organized two
comprehensive safety drills (in March 2023 and September
2023 respectively) to ensure a swift and effective response
in emergency situations and guarantee the safety of our

employees and the company.

The Group has taken measures to promote labor rights
protection such as an employee complaint mailbox and
complaint/reporting hotline, among others. These measures
aim at providing secure and confidential channels for
employees to express their concerns and raise questions
without fear, thus laying a solid foundation for harmonious and

stable labor relations.

Case 1: Safety training at Hefei base
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Case 2: Safety training at
Daling Mountain in Dongguan
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Case 3: Fire drill at the Group's headquarter
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While actively creating a safe working environment, the Group
also emphasizes the importance of cultivating a physically
healthy and active workforce. We regularly organize diversified
outdoor activities, such as sports games and ball games, which
aim to promote the physical and mental health of employees
and team cohesion, so as to inject vitality and momentum into

the long-term development of the company.
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Case 1: Soccer match
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8.1.4 Growing together with the Company

Case 2: The company sports games
z=pl2: BT ESHE
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"People orientation” has always been one of the Group's
core values. We place the growth and development of
our employees at the forefront of our corporate strategy
and consider human resource as our most valuable asset.
Diversified and individualized training courses covering
corporate culture, interpretation of internal rules and policies,
as well as professional knowledge, know-hows and practical
skills have been designed to meet the actual needs of
employees from different departments and provide robust

support for their growth and development.

For newly hired employees, we provide all of them with
onboarding programs according to their positions, which
mainly include trainings on corporate culture, company
systems, safety, and professional skills required for their
positions. For special positions, employees can only start
working after passing the onboarding program with a valid

certificate verifying their qualifications.
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For on-the-job technicians and service staff, there are online
professional trainings every month and offline technical
trainings every quarter. We have developed a self-directed
learning platform. With all the product details and other
materials available, our technicians can explore them freely
and learn at their own pace. For sales staff, there are offline
sales skills workshops for them every quarter. For finance and
warehouse management teams, there are offline management
skills workshops every quarter. From time to time, we invite
product specialists from our venders to conduct “online +

offline” professional training workshops about products.

In addition, we provide management skills training programs
for management and executives at all levels to enhance their
leadership skills. Such training programs are conducted both

online and offline.
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Case 1: Elite workshop
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Case 2: School recruitment training
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8.2 Community Engagement

The Group strives to build a community where business, society
and the environment coexists harmoniously. Our endeavors are
made from both internal management and external business
perspectives. We are committed to upholding our promises to
the public, paying close attention to the needs of the community,
continuously practicing social values, and doing our best to convey
goodwill and strive for the welfare of the community. We believe
in this way we will realize the maximize value of our company.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has participated in various
community activities and charitable fund-raising activities, assuming
and fulfilling its corporate social responsibility.

Case 1: Contributing to the public good

=P N REmEE

With a strong sense of social responsibility, Folangsi actively
engages itself in community welfare programs in Shigi Town.
We have made several generous donations to local charitable
associations, and have been distributing important resources into
key areas such as education, medical care and poverty alleviation.
All the donations and contributions were made to help the
disadvantaged groups by improving the quality of their lives and
rebuilding their confidence for life.

Ma%j&eu_)mé
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Before the Teachers’ Day 2023, Folangsi showed its respect
and care for educators through a heartwarming tribute event.
Representatives of the company paid an in-person visit to schools
and sent sincere blessings and beautiful souvenirs to the hard-

working teachers on the front line of education.

RE HERERHRE

2023 FHENENRER 2B - GREAHTIRE
HHETEENRSWE - BOAS
TSRBOBENESAEIEE - AF)
REBEEDER  AFEHHBEH
B ez X LB ZENREME
EHEEM -

Case 3: Adding some green to the world
ROI3 : BERBRBNMEE

In the spring of 2023, Folangsi actively responded to the call for
environmental protection by organizing a tree-planting activity.
Members of the Group's Party Vanguard worked hard with their
own hand to add some green to the ground. They wielded shovels
to prepare the soil, planted the saplings straight and tall, and
backfilled the soil before watering the saplings. Their sweat and
efforts proved Folangsi's firm belief in and positive contribution to

the construction of an ecological civilization.
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9 KEY QUANTITATIVE PERFORMANCE TABLE 9 BREEAVR
Environmental key performance indicator’ RIZABERIEER
|
2023
Indicator BiE Unit By 2023 %
Nitrogen oxide emissions RARAWEEmE Kg T 117.95
Sulfur oxide emissions et BEEmE Kg T 19.39
Particulate matter emissions  FBRIIHEE Kg = 8.68
Total greenhouse gas mERBHRAE Tons of carbon M—ftixEE 5,478.96
emissions (Scope 1 and (FENFEE2) dioxide equivalent
Scope 2)
Greenhouse gas emissions  JAZEREHNE (EE1)  Tons of carbon WS biRE 2 3,507.69
(Scope 1) dioxide equivalent
Greenhouse gas emissions R ZERAEHHE (#[E2)  Tons of carbon ME—ftiRE £ 1,971.27
(Scope 2) dioxide equivalent
Greenhouse gas emission BERBIREE Tons of carbon M —EltiEgE 3.99
density dioxide equivalent/ ~ ASTTAREEIR
million RMB of
revenue
Total energy consumption  BEREFEAE Megawatt hour JKFLE 16,011.32
Direct energy consumption B EEREREE Megawatt hour JKE B 12,780.27
Indirect energy consumption B ERIEFEE Megawatt hour JKEL 3,231.06
Energy consumption density BEREFEZE Megawatt hour/ KER BET 11.67
million RMB of AREE
revenue
Total water consumption KERBEEE Tons 18 45,829.11
Water consumption density K& R EEZRE Tons/million RMB of W B &JTT 33.41
revenue ARBEI
Non-hazardous waste BmEREZEY Tons U7 1.48
Non-hazardous waste BEBEEVTE Kg/million RMB of TR/ HET 1.08
density revenue AR EW
Hazardous waste? BEREEY Tons U7 2.99
Hazardous waste density BEEEEDTE Kg/million RMB of T,/ E8T 2.18
revenue AR ZU
Packaging materials BLEER R Tons L7 17.96
Packaging material density ~ BEMBZRE Kg/million RMB of T/ BB 13.09
revenue AR ZIR

1 Key environmental indicators and density statistics are for Folangsi and all its 1 BRERRERREBEESGOEYE AEHAMN KA
subsidiaries EMEFAF
2 Hazardous waste mainly consists of used batteries, used engine oil and oilcloths 2 EEEREVIZRELRAETEANEESN
BEHhamE  AEEEKAEREEMNERIE

generated during operations, etc.. The Group has entrusted the treatment of
hazardous waste to a professionally qualified institution to ensure 100% compliant 9':{%.: ABEXELEMEN  REBEEEDN
DEARERE -

management of hazardous waste.
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Employee employment performance indicator ETREEMIER
|

2023
Indicator B Unit By 2023F
Total employees BTHA" People A 1,733

By gender %R &l
Male = People A 1,295
Female z People A 438

By educational background REREE D
College degree and above RERI £ People A 742
Junior college RE People A 580
Junior college and below REMUT People A 411

By function RBEEE D
Technician BT AE People A 745
Sales and marketing SHE K& People A 215
General administration —RITIER People A 609
Research and development o 5% People A 164

By employment type ZERERE S

Full-time 2B People A 1,733
Part-time Feh People A 0

By age ZFERE D
Under 30 years old 30 AT People A 671
31-50 years old 31-507%% People A 914
51 years old and older S1E A E People A 148

By geographical region = 5
Guangzhou =0 People A 400
Hefei =y People A 195
Shanghai +E People A 156
Dongguan e People A 52
Others Eh People A 930
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|

2023
Indicator B Unit B 2023%F
Employee turnover rate’ BIfRKE % % 19.62%

By gender B RIE D
Male 5 % % 19.38%
Female L°8 % % 20.32%

By age REBRE D
Under 30 years old 30 AT % % 26.53%
31-50 years old 31-505% % % 15.86%
51 years old and older 51ER A E % % 11.49%

By function RS 5
Technician RiTAE People A 22.68%
Sales and marketing SHE K& People A 23.26%
General administration —MRAITI People A 17.73%
Research and development ot 2% People A 7.93%

By geographical region = 85
Guangzhou &M % % 16.50%
Hefei A % % 17.44%
Shanghai fapis] % % 14.74%
Dongguan ] % % 9.62%
Others Hit % % 22.80%

3 Employee turnover rate in each category = number of employees in that category 3 BHAEIRAE=-FRNZEREIRIAZ
who left during the year/number of employees in that category at end of year FERZERNETIAH
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Employee training performance indicator

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERHRE

BTHEIEMER

|
2023
Indicator B Unit By 2023 %
Total number of trained employees 48523 & T £§ People A 1,733
Employees training coverage* B TIFFIB & X % % 100%
By gender =MERIE D
Male s % % 74.73%
Female 28 % % 25.27%
By employee function REBREED
Technician SR IPN=| % % 42.99%
Sales and marketing SHE I B % % 12.41%
General administration —RRATIR % % 35.14%
Research and development ot 2% % % 9.46%
Hours of training per employee 8 T A¥ZFIFF &S Hour AN 5.22
By gender =MERIE D
Male S Hour AN 6.29
Female z Hour N 2.05
By employee function RETBEEE S
Technician BMAR Hour AN 9.80
Sales and marketing THE M i Hour AN 1.86
General administration —RAITIER Hour /NBE 1.66
Research and development o 8% Hour N 2.00
Occupational health and safety performance indicator BEREHZENIEE
]
2021 2022 2023
Indicator B Unit B 20218 2022%F  2023F
Number of working days lost
due to work-related injuries A T/EMIBRAMTEBE  Day | 294 780 575
Number of employees who
died on the job HAITHHETAH People A 0 0 0
Proportion of employees who
die on the job EHI T8 LAl % % 0% 0% 0%

Coverage rate of training for each category of employees = number of employees
of that category receiving training/total number of employees receiving training

Number of hours of training per employee per year for each category = total
number of hours of training for that category of employees/number of employees

in that category

4

5

BRI ETIRIBEBER-EZBINZERNET

AE BZIBIIE THRAR
BRFIBTEF AARIHR=-ZEHETER
Al NS B 2R B T AR
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Supplier performance indicator HEBENIEE
|

2023

Indicator B Unit By 2023F
Number of suppliers HEFHE Unit EQ 3,327

By geographical region i@ &l

Northern Region Bl i3] Unit ER 412
Eastern Central Region A R Unit EX 1,919
Southern Region A B [@ Unit ER 751
Western Region gzl Unit EX 245

Customer service and product responsibility performance

EEBRBRERBETERER

indicator
|
2023
Indicator BE Unit B 2023%F
Percentage of products recalled EfmEARELZEZEHR % %
due to health and safety iz [e1 t £
issues 0
Number of product and service g & RIGIEFHFEE Piece (s
complaints® 0
Anti-corruption performance indicator REFEMIEE
|
2023
Indicator BB Unit By 2023 %
Number of corruption lawsuits $f/A 7] & B TIREMIWE Piece 15
filed against the Company FBENBEISFARME
and its employees that have
been concluded 0

6 The number of product and service complaints refers to the number of incidents
in which the Group's customers were dissatisfied, complained, and canceled their

subscriptions.
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10 REPORT INDEX

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
—REEK

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

10 HE RS

Description

P

RE HERERHRE

Disclosure Sections

Subject Area A. Environmental

FTEHBARE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : BBy

General Disclosure Al

—BHEA

KPI'A1.1

KPI'AT.1

KPI'A1.2

KPI'A1.2

KPI'A1.3

KPI'AT.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI'A1.4

KPI'AT.5

KPI'A1.5
KPI'A1.6

KPI'A1.6

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ERIBEREEREEN  M/kKRTMEES - EEREZEEY
MELZH :
@ X &

(b) BTHEITABEATENRBEIERAOINER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PR IE SR AR R B B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (EE) RREE (BE2) R =R EEENE (LANES
B BE (WABESEN - BEREAE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

) & (mn

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FESEEEEDHESE CAMHE) R (WER) BE (e
iz ~ FIERMETHE) ©

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

EEH

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FrEAEESEEYHAEE CAEAE) X (WER) BE (MNEEEE
7 - SIERMETH) o

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
FATET IV BE R E B iR R B IESE L B IR ERER ) 5% -
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HlERIREERESEREYNIE - Mg
k%ibélt:b B IZATERENA) S5 -

AP ET SLHYRRE B AR R A

6.2 Emission and Carbon
Reduction
6.3 Green Office

6.2 B BEFE Bk
635 BN

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
IRARE BEMBE
9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
IR EEEBE
9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

IR TEEBE MK

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table

R EBANR

6.6 Folangsi ESG Goals
6.6 BAETESG B 1%
6.4 Waste Reduction

Management

6.4 B IR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiE HERERME

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description
—REER
BRENIER ik

Disclosure Sections

REEM

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[EEA2 : ERER
General Disclosure A2 Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials.

— MR EEA2 BRUERER (BIFRER - K REAMRMEL) BIEER
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas

or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

KPI A2.1 RERESNEER REEER(NE - Joh) BFEE (LT ME
FTREFE) REE (AT ES B - BERMETE) ©
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).
KPI A2.2 BERKELEE (MASES B - §ERMEAE)
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

KPI A2.3 F AP RT S BV REIR 168 A em B AR M A i B5E Lk B AR PTEREREY P8 -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for

purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

KPI A2.4 it SR ERE R KR BRI BRI RE - AR PRET LA K e B 1R &
RIERE LB FAERIRA R o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

KPI A2.5 B RAABEMENEE (ABESE) R (ER) §EES ML
2o

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3 : RERRARER
General Disclosure A3 Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the

environment and natural resources.

—RIREA3 BIRET AB IR R RANERERERNTENIRE

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI A3.1 MR EBEBHRREMRAERNEAZERCEKNEREATE
HTTE

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

6.3 Green Office

634k B A
9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

IR TEBE MK

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
R T BAEMK
6.6 Folangsi ESG Goals

6.615EAHTESG B 12
6.2 Green Office

628K B

9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

oRASETE BAMK

6.2 Emission and Carbon
Reduction

6.3 Green Office

6.2 M BEFEAX
634K B A

6.2 Emission and Carbon
Reduction

6.3 Green Office

6.2 BEFE A

634 B



Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs
—REER

BRERER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Description

Ei:pus

BiE HERERME

Disclosure Sections

REEM

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EEA4 : RIZEt

General Disclosure A4

—RRIEFEA4

KPI'A4.1

KPI' A4.1

Subject Area B. Social
FTEHEBME

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRIMEHER LA S HBETAEEXENEARBEBEED
R e

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
HMBERRAIGESHETAEEXENERRGHBEE - REYH
118 -

Employment and Labour Practices

BREREBESR
Aspect B1: Employment
fEEB : Bl

General Disclosure B1

— R IR FEB

KPI'B1.1

KPI'B1.1

KPI'B1.2

KPI'B1.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BHHM LR  BERE  LESE  RH - FERE - 2T

b~ RIBAR A K E 57348 Ko 4@ ey

@ BHE: &

(b) BTFHETARERTENBBEEZRMADINER

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-

time), age group and geographical region.

IR ERAR (SR FRE) - FRER MitEE 5

g

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

B I

IR - FieER MR E DR E TIRAKLE -

6.5 Addressing Climate
Change

6.5 YR IRE L

6.5 Addressing Climate
Change

6.5 EERIRE L

8.1 Caring for Employees

(o]
-
el
pii
H

9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

IR T EEMER

9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

IR TEEEMEK
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE HERER®RSE

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

EBE - —REER
BREVER

Description

Ei:pus

Disclosure Sections

REEM

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2: RERERE

General Disclosure B2

— R I EEB2

KPI'B2.1

KPI'B2.1
KPI'B2.2

KPI'B2.2
KPI'B2.3

KPI'B2.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

BEAREZE2TIEFRERRABE TREBEEEN

@ BE: &k

(b) BFHETARGERTENBBEERMAOINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the reporting year.

BE=ZF (BREERFE) SFEAITHMHABRILE -

Lost days due to work injury.

EITHELATIERE -
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

ROR PR B R R F R L 216 - ARBBRITRESRTA -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : BERE

General Disclosure B3

—RR % FEB3
KPI B3.1

KPI B3.1

KPI'B3.2

KPI B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRI B TE1T TR E M A R BBV BUR - #HINES) -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

BRI RBTHEM (NESREEE  PREEE) FHNXIELR
DL e

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

RIERIRETERAED - FRETTKE IR TIIRE -

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

8.1 Caring for Employees

SIEET

Ji
m

\

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
IRABETE SR
9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
IRABETE SRR
8.1 Caring for Employees

eyl

el
il

\

BIHMEET

8.1 Caring for Employees

BIBEET
9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

oRASETE BAMK

9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

M T BANK



Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

EBE - —REER
BREVER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Description

Ei:pus

RE HERERHRE

Disclosure Sections

REEM

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[BTB4 : & T#R|

General Disclosure B4

—RE I FER4

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.1
KPI B4.2
KPI B4.2

Operating Practices

EEER

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI EE Telsabilss T

@ %R

(o) BFHBETARGEAZENRBERZNADINER

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.

AR S B E AR EA R R E T ROASIA T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

R IE RIS E R A ISR P8R -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EHEB5 : HEHEERE

General Disclosure B5

—RRIXFEBS
KPI B5.1

KPI'B5.1

KPI'B5.2

KPI'B5.2

KPI'B5.3

KPI'B5.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.
ERHREENRE A G RBREBUR o

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i@ DN EREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

G AR MERHNED - mENTEBEMNNHEREE - XA
RABBERNITRERTA -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
H A R R (R R R B EIRE A RIR KAt SRR ES - AKEH
WITREERETE

—EF-=

8.1 Caring for Employees

(o]
-
S
el
i
H

8.1 Caring for Employees

BIBEET
8.1 Caring for Employees
BIEEET

7.2 Supplier Management

72t R E R

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
ORABETE SR

7.2 Supplier Management

72t e E R

7.2 Supplier Management

72 ERE 2
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Aspects, General

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE HERER®RSE

Disclosures and KPIs Description Disclosure Sections
BE - - —REER
BRERER Ei:pud WEEH
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 7.2 Supplier Management
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
KPI B5.4 it EREHEEREEZBRRER KRGO ED - LAEREER 72HEHER

TREERITE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[ETB6 : EME

General Disclosure B6

— R EEB6

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.1
KPI B6.2

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.4
KPI B6.5

KPI B6.5

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

FEFMREERMRENERELZS BES  REABLEEUR
R ER -
@ BXE: R

(b) EFHBETABERZENEBEERRIINER -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

BEENDEXEMERTRAL 2 REFEEHRMAERENE DL
Number of products and service related complaints received and how

they are dealt with.

BN EmRMRENIRFEE AREHTIE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.

Fii it B 4 N RS B EE R RO B A1)

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

S BRTERIENEREKIERT
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

REEEERNRERLBERE - ARBBRITRESRTE -
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5.2 Risk Management and
Internal Control

7.1 Focusing on Service
Quality

7.3 Privacy and
Information Security
5.2\ B B 1R B A AP
7EERBRE
73RMEEER R

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table
ORI E EEMEK

9 Key Quantitative
Performance Table

7.1 Focusing on Service
Quality

ORABETE SR
7EERBRE

5.4 Protection of
Intellectual Property
Rights

54 FBE REIRTE

7.1 Focusing on Service
Quality
7EERBRE

7.3 Privacy and
Information Security
73BMNEESRE



Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls

EBE - —REER
BREVER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Description

i

RE HERERHRE

Disclosure Sections

REEM

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BHEB7 : RES

General Disclosure B7

—RR % FERY

KPI'B7.1

KPI'B7.1
KPI'B7.2
KPI'B7.2
KPI'B7.3

KPI'B7.3

Community

HE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

@ % &

(b) BFHETARGEATZENBBEZNADINER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAEETAIEETRETEBENE THARGVEE
NERAMER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

Faut g rE e R B MAE T - A RABBEBAT RER X ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

MulREERE TRENREFE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure B8

—RR % FEBS

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.1
KPI B8.2

KPI B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.
BHENHE2EARTHREEMELETENBREAER IHEER
R NEOBER -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

FIEREE (KA  RREE  STHFKR@F - Xt 8BF) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIgBEMBMER (NS EXFR) -

5.2 Risk Management and
Internal Control

5.3 Integrity Management

5.2 B\ B TR B R
S53FRZRER

9 Key Quantitative

Performance Table

oRASETE BAMK

5.2 Risk Management and
Internal Control

5.2 3B B 1B B A BRI
5.3 Integrity Management
SIFREHE

8.2 Community

Engagement

82 B[R

8.2 Community
Engagement
82 B R
8.2 Community
Engagement

82 B4R

—=EF=
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A% BEM R &

ZXE RSB
EEREREREBEITIN
Kt —EE2718

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of FOLANGSI CO., LTD
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FOLANGSI CO.,
LTD (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 168
to 275, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certificate Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
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EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the

matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

RRETER

Existence of Intralogistics equipment

ERSAYRRE

At at 31 December 2023, the Group held the self-owned and
leased intralogistics equipment with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,749.7 million, representing 55.6%
of total assets of the Group.

20235 12H31H - ESEEAERRENARK1,74978
BLNBEAREASSAMRRE 16 BEEELEENS55.6% °

In order to meet the customers' need of intralogistics equipment,
the Group established a service network to manage a number
of equipment and the majority of equipment are in the sites of
Group's customers.

iR B P EENYIR
ERANBRE  KREHR

RENFTR - BERERIIRFEELE A
REBULR BEEEERPHSH -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHERE

FREITER

REBERMANEXHE - BREFSESBMAEF
RAMENGAMBEHRRTREZNEE - I
MEEZGESPBRER IR EZEHE R K RE
HEER MIERUFETREEFERER -
BAPYE T E - FREEFDRNAMEEAHE
BB ARE R

BPEKRET T ARE [ ZBRELE 76 P15
WRAAFENET] BoMINEE  BRESE
LRRES FRMEENET - it - HMAE
SAIEBIEATRER - WEHHRFIERS M
WRPNERBREBLR R NG - RPMNT
B EF (BRERRE T ERMRRNERF)
WER  RERMYBEHRESPBERRMEREY
ERRREHTER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANAEERARESSHE

Our procedures in relation to existence of intralogistics
equipment included the follows:

BHBEBERSAYMAREBOETEFEEATEA

Conducting the internal control testing on the intralogistics
equipment management system and internal control
processes;

IS AR REERRZR R AEERIRFFEAN
A

BRI

Obtaining the external confirmations from the sampled
customers to verify the quantity and specifications of
intralogistics equipment leased.

RIS FHINIHER - X EHESAYIRRER
HE IR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEERE

EY:

Key audit matter

HEFNER

We identified existence of intralogistics equipment as a key audit
matter because of the higher assessed risks due to the massive
number of the equipment, the significant balance of intralogistics
equipment, and very large number of locations in which the
equipment was held.

HRREBEEX  HAMRREBHBRELDG RREFHLE
HEBZEBHEIM ARG - MBI ERSAIRRERE
RRARETTEIE -

The related disclosures of intralogistics equipment are included

in notes 13 and 14(a) to the financial statements.

SR RR BB RERNY B REME13R14() °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANBANAREREFNER

Performing physical inspection of the intralogistics
equipment on a sampling basis;
HIZNYIRREETT B RS

checking the relevant accounting records of intralogistics
equipment on sampling basis, including purchase
contracts, invoices, payment vouchers, and bank
statements, registration certificates and mortgage
registration records; and
MERESAYRRENEES LS BERES
) BR - NEE  ROTEE BB RERELE
B R

performing the data analysis on the operating data of the
intralogistics equipment management system, to identify
the unusual items and making inquiry with management
for the reasons on the items identified.
HENYRRBEERFRNETERETEEIN - U
BAIRFHEBYMEREBESAZERZZHAENRA -



EY:

Key audit matter

HEFNER

Impairment of long-term non-financial assets

REFEREERE

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount of
the Group's long-term non-financial assets is approximately
RMB2,180.2 million, representing 69.3% of total assets.
202312831 - EXEERAFEHEENLERELR
AR#21802B8 7T  1HHEEBEMG69.3% °

The carrying values of these assets are reviewed annually by
management for potential indicators of impairment. For assets
where such indicators exist, management performs detailed
impairment reviews, taking into account, inter alia, the impact of
revenue assumptions and technical factors which may affect the
expected remaining useful lives and carrying value of the assets.
ZERENRAEREEEGFLETIE  UEERERF
ERETR - WEETEAEIR - BEEETAENRER
it - B R (KR EE) B EERBRERAIERFH
KEREE BV AR M Bt AR E -

We identified the impairment assessment of long-term non-
financial assets as a key audit matter because the assessment
can involve a significant degree of management judgement and
estimates in determining the key assumptions such as expected
revenue levels;

BN R EHAIES R E R ERT (70 B MR R R (TR A K
)R ATRE S RIS IZE B IR E HET R MR - R A8 A
BRI ER RER B FIA

The significant judgements and estimates and related disclosures
of these long-term non-financial assets are included in notes 3,
13, 14(a) and 15 to the financial statements.

ZE RIS BB E N B A F R E RAB R B B S B R
RMTE3 13 a) k15 e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANBANAREREFNER

Our audit procedures for the impairment assessment of long-
term non-financial assets included the following:
B RAFESREEMNRMENEPIETNERTEFBENT

RIF :

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies and the discount rates used
by the Group in determining the recoverable amounts
of each cash-generating unit (the “CGU") to which these
assets relate;

FREMOANBEEERHHRMYE BSEEREEZ
EEERENSReELESU (ReEEEFBALL]) HATK
B & RRRS {5 FR B9 7908 S 3T 3R R A TR A

evaluating the underlying data used in the management’s
cash flow projection on the future revenues and operating
results by comparing to the financial performance of each
CGU during the year ended 31 December 2023;

BB BREE2023F12A31BILFESRSEEENHN
MRS - AHBEERHARRBARELEEFLR S
2 TEURI 8 R 0 4H B 2%

evaluating the management'’s assumptions of growth rates
of each CGU by examining the business development
plans and historical annual growth rate of each CGU; and

BAREEKZREANBLEREELEMNBEFER
R AGSEEBHRESELSBAEERELHBER

&

checking the mathematical accuracy of the computation
supporting the value in use model used by management.

A EREERBOEREEEEENE i g
1 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEERE

EY:

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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FEREEMNEMMER

EAREEAHEMEHEE - KiER R
EERENHER  BREEEA B EERER
R EETRE -

BAHGAMBRENEEL TRERME
o BT TEZEEMERBEBREMTEAL

BT o

maRMEEaMBERROBET - HPNEE
ERBEEMER  EUBRET  EREMEN
ERRGEEVBRRARMERTBRETAT
BOBAFEEAEERE AT FEERER
PR EMIER - ERRMTHITHIIE - 1
REMBAEMERFEEARERRA - FAM
AMEZEE - HEHE - BHIVRBERSRS °

EERAESMBHRRARENER

BERAMEFAAERBEE M AGEME
BEMBREENRBFAERRGIORERE
RAUAEEMPENERASUBRE  YHERR
RESEVBERROBEIFERRFRLHE
RMEHHEAFERAVFEHNAREFEE -

ERESEEVBHRERE - BE/REFAEN
i BEREFALENRES  LEFRBRT
REABSELLABNER  URERAFHE
RERESHER - KF BERREFARR
85 BERE KRIEBLYRIEHMREEE -

BERREZEERZBEEMYT  AARE
B ESENIHBREBIE -



EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHERE

BB E R e MR RRARE
MEE

BPMER  RUGAMBERREERES T
ERRNEENERMERHERHERIEAE
RE XHABRERMELNZBEEI RS - &
iR BT (EREBE) RS - Rt ZIAR
EHEEMBEAN - AT ERARENATA
EAEMALA FRARERMEE -

AERELSSKENKRE  BIERERRE
BEEAETHEFERX —EABBRTFER
MR o HMABL AN SRR ERR S| - 1
REERNEREENELRRAEZEER
ERBEAVBREAELORERR - BIF
AR ERA BAREE K o

ERBEEBRTENETEANBRESD - KM
BRTHERAE R TERXREEE - &M
I

BRI AR EFERBERMERGER
BRRGFEERFEROAR - Rt RHATT
BREFARHELRER  ARERR
RMEENRTEE  FARMAEANE
e mNERTRESRER BE EE
BR - EREL - SOEBERAERESZ
£ Bt ReEHBRAFRMERNEAE
BERENAEEREHRMERNNE
REFHRH R o

TR EE ST AR ) R BRAE ] - PARRET IR X

EENTREENESEF - BEEMALIE
4 BEEBEARNENNAREERSR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEERE

EY:

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.
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EY:

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20 March 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHERE

BRERNBZZBERIER  SHARMEH
EEMBYMENRBEREFR  XRMMER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SReRRRkEMEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR¥T AREET T
REVENUE PN 5 1,371,805 1,194,209
Cost of sales SHE AR (954,406) (832,545)
Gross profit EF 417,399 361,664
Other income and gains H AU A R iz 5 6,322 6,276
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (91,099) (86,072)
Administrative expenses EIEER (169,492) (156,858)
Impairment losses on financial assets SEEERMEERZX 7 (2,442) (4.178)
Other expenses HiEHA (45,194) (2,750)
Finance costs B % & A 6 (85,102) (83,609)
Share of profits of associates FE(REE = A R FE 16 241 948
PROFIT BEFORE TAX i A0 7 7 30,633 35,421
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe (BH) 10 587 (20)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRE 31,220 35,401
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAERZEHE 31,220 35,401
FOR THE YEAR
Profit and total comprehensive income SRR LA BHANEREE
attributable to: Wes4azs
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZEWN 31,220 35,401
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BEERAARNSREF
TO THE COMPANY (Restated)
(#eEi)
Basic and diluted EARREE 12 RMBO0.09 RMBO.11
AR¥0.097T AR¥O0.117T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

eI R

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR¥T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 13 1,092,855 856,533
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 14(a) 1,079,423 1,049,320
Intangible assets mEEE 15 7,882 8,684
Investments in associates REEE RN R HIRE 16 10,802 10,561
Deposits TR 19 104,551 96,507
Deferred tax assets EREFT1S T & B 24 5,756 4,831
Total non-current assets kRBEEST 2,301,269 2,026,436
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 91,010 84,502
Trade and bills receivables E S ERIE K e W E g 18 373,964 294,037
Prepayments, deposits and other TEfFIE - e R EM 19 107,640 106,027
receivables FEYGRIA
Restricted deposits IR B R 20 73,128 30,850
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 20 200,760 120,638
Total current assets REBEES 846,502 636,054
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and bills payables B 5 M 5E R E R IR 21 306,670 262,560
Other payables and accruals Hib N FIE R ESHE A 22 161,834 112,853
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTERITERREAMEK 23 648,005 528,022
other borrowings
Tax payable ER M E 781 =
Total current liabilities REBBEEE 1,117,290 903,435
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFEE (270,788) (267,381)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAEBEE 2,030,481 1,759,055
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2023 2022
2023 F 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR¥T T AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FFERITER R EAMER 23 934,853 839,165
other borrowings
Other payables and accruals H fth FET 5RE R FERT B A 22 18,257 19,777
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTBHEE 582 652
Total non-current liabilities kARBEaEST 953,692 859,594
NET ASSETS FEE 1,076,789 899,461
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners EENAREHEE A
of the Company B A
Share capital N 25 87,006 83,972
Reserves e 26 989,783 815,489
Total equity EEAE 1,076,789 899,461
Hou Zekuan Ma Li
REE BE
Director Director
EE E=a
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
"f‘n’i%?;,%

n‘/-ﬁ

Bk

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

Statutory
Share Share Capital surplus  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits equity

EERER
BEA  ROEE EAAE AR HEENE  ERAH
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
it AR%Trn ARETR ARETR AR®Tn ARETrn ARETxn

(note 25)  (note25)  (note 26)  (note 26)

(Hiat25)  (Wit25)  (Bat26)  (Kfit26)
At 1 January 2022 R202%F1 A18 83,972 545,274 512 23,380 210,922 864,060
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - 35,401 35,401
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve  EEZ AT BHARE - - - 2,400 (2,400) S
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31R 83,972 545,274* 512% 25,780* 243,923* 899,461
At 1 January 2023 R203%1818 83972 545274 512 25780 243923 899461
Profit for the year FAHE - - - - 31,220 31,220

Issuance of ordinary shares relating S EAARZEE ([ER

to initial public offering (‘IPO") ARBE]) BILTER 25 3,034 156,279 - - = 159,313
Share issue expenses RinETHE 25 - (13,205) - - - (13,205)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BB A TF B ATE - - - 2,882 (2,882) -
At 31 December 2023 #203%12A318 87006 688,348" S12¢ 28662 272061 1076789

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB989,783,000

(2022: RMB815,489,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ZEHERE BRI

815,489,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/_ﬁAiﬁﬁﬂlbgﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E ARBT T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHELEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before tax: HATFDE 30,633 35,421
Adjustments for: BLATIRE % :
Interest income FEMA 5 (2,002) (1,945)
Share of profits from associates JE {5 B 2 X T 16 (241) (948)
Fair value gain of financial assets at AAREEERHEZS 5
fair value through profit or loss FFAEHEEN SR EE
WA EEWE (93) (892)
Finance costs IS ER 6 85,102 83,609
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE 7
plant and equipment 209,164 211,155
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 7 228,671 209,516
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 7 1,596 1,888
Foreign exchange gains, net bE X e F 58 7 (1,177) -
Impairment of trade receivables H 5 W GRIE R A 7 2,442 4178
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRTFRARKNERE 7 41 -
Gain on disposal of property, BEMX  BEKEERE 7
plant and equipment (288) (118)
Gain on remeasurement of an associate EIE—XBELQRE 5
to acquisition-date fair value WiE BB A EER N - (1,435)
553,848 540,429
Increase in inventories FE®EN (6,508) (14,676)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 FEWRIE I FE U SR HRIE N (82,369) (28,083)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TETFIE - e R EM
other receivables FE WS R IE S A (9,657) (18,472)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 FE 1S 5K I8 R FE T R HRIE N 44,110 27,109
Increase in other payables and accruals H fth FEAS FRIE R FERT B AR IS AN 47,834 14,991
Increase in restricted deposits PR 77 5k 00 (42,278) -
Cash generated from operations REEANE S 504,980 521,298
Interest received B U F & 2,002 1,945
Income tax paid B AEH - (1,051)
Net cash flows from operating activities BEEDEENRENEFE 506,982 522,192

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BENGEREI R HEMR AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 #Z=2023F 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B =E ARBT T ARBT T
Net cash flows from operating activities KEERBEANBSREFE 506,982 522,192
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHEENRESHRE
Acquisition of items of property, BEVE BER
plant and equipment ®iEIEE (253,556) (220,767)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEMF  BEKEE
property, plant and equipment IH B TS 5008 577 320
Additions to intangible assets BEEERNE (794) (1,304)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BENUAAEEF=AHE
through profit or loss AFAEHBEENCREE 40,093 (650,000)
Proceeds of disposal of financial assets at BEUAAEBEFEAR
fair value through profit or loss BEEt A B AEEN
TRIEEMMSTIE (40,000) 650,892
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—R T2 27 - (4,200)
Capital injection in associates Bl /NI = - (1,109)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFSMABRSREFE (253,680) (226,168)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEEfTABRSRE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares RERARBEEETEER 25
relating to initial public offering FR8 3R 159,313 -
Share issue expenses IR EEATHI (30,231) =
New bank loans and other borrowings IR IRITE R R EMERK 321,944 246,101
Repayment of bank loans and BERRITERREAER
other borrowings (203,981) (213,430)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMKOEELES (330,787) (307,245)
Interest paid BAFLE (91,454) (88,974)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEEFTAB S REF5 (175,196) (363,548)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND HRE&RREESZSEYFEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS Om4) 78,106 (67,524)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUReIREZEY
of the year 120,638 188,162
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERZBHFE - FE 2,016 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRRERACEEY
OF THE YEAR 200,760 120,638
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND ~ RERBSEBMUARDAT
CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and bank balances as stated in the RerE B ARR R R 20
consolidated statements of financial FERERERYELN
position and the consolidated W& RIBITHEH
statements of cash flows 200,760 120,638
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE R ERR M

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1 AEIREEER

FOLANGSI CO.,, LTD (the “Company") is a company established in the BMERREROBRAR ([ARF]) A—
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") with limited liability. The registered KNP EARERME([FE])KZHER
office of the Company is located at No. 999, Yayun Avenue, Shiqi Town, AEl e ARAIMAMPRERSTEERE
Panyu District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, PRC. &N T 7 R [ A Uk $E 0 8 KB 99955k ©
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred REA > RARIKREFRAF (I AE
to as the “Group") were mainly engaged in the provision of intralogistics B FEXSRESAMRZE RS
equipment subscription services (including leases of equipment), (BEXEHRS)  RESZEESCRBUR
provision of maintenance and repair services and sales of intralogistics SRR R B HE -

equipment and parts.

Information about subsidiaries EBFATRINER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RRABEBFRAIRFEAT :

Nominal value

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable
Company name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
TEMRL/ EMtd BRTEERE/
NRER REXHH HEMRAEE BEREARNESER L TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE &
Foshan Folangsi Forklift Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese RMB520,000 100% - Provision of intralogistics
(‘BILTIHIAT REER AR Mainland equipment subscription

services, maintenance and
repair services, and sale of
intralogistics equipment and

parts
I T RRRA T R & hE /R E A AR¥520,0007T 100% - REGRMIRRET BRS
ARAF HEBERBEARSRDR
REREIHE
Guangzhou Pengze Machinery PRC/Chinese RMB500,000 100% - Overseas trading of parts of
Equipment Co,, Ltd. Mainland intralogistics equipment
(BN =R EER DA
BEMBSEH R hE /R E A AR ¥500,0007T 100% - BAMRRBRIGENE S
BRAFN
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1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

1 REAIREEER (&

BRTARNER (&)

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable
Company name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR e ERTEERE
NEER REXHH HEMRAEE BERARANEREEIL  TEXHK
Direct Indirect
HE &

Shenyang Tianshun Toyota Forklift PRC/Chinese RMB5,000,000 = 100% Provision of intralogistics
Sales Co,, Ltd. Mainland equipment subscription
(BHXIELHNEHE services, maintenance and
BRAF" repair services, and sale of

intralogistics equipment and
parts

BGRIEE A X EHE B/ E R AR¥5,0000007C - 100% RRAUHAMIRRER ARS -
AR R EERBARSE AR

R R HE

Anhui Folangsi Machinery Co,, Ltd. PRC/Chinese RMB60,000,000 100% - Installation, transformation and
(*Anhui Folangsi’, Mainland repair of special equipment
"REGAEERER AR

TR HHARAR HE/mER  ARM60000,0007 100% - BFERBHRE  WERERE
(IR RRAHT 1) *

Hefei Langyun 10T Technology PRC/Chinese RMB10,000,000 100% - Software development and
Co,, Ltd. Mainland internet of things (10T")
(BREAEERRERAR" technical services

BIEAZMBRI HE/HmER  ARE10000,0007 100% - B RE R (s )
ARAT Bt R s

Hefei Langhui New Energy PRC/Chinese RMB20,000,000 100% - Research and development of
Technology Co,, Ltd. Mainland emerging energy technologies
(BIEAEFERREERA and manufacture and sale of
al’)* battery and parts

BERSHERRE HE/HER  ARS20000,0007 100% - HERRRIHEARE LR
ARAT e EREE

* These companies were established in the PRC in the form of domestic
enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), principally
affected the results for the year of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

* ZERRUABEENEAERBEKL -

ERIIBARREZ(TEE]) AREAE
BEFENEEAEAZENAREFRA °
EXZRR JHEMFARNFESHEH
RIRBNITE

—E =44 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

175



176

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except

when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB270.8 million. The Directors consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operation
and meets its financial obligation as and when they all due in the
foreseeable future after taking into account, inter alia, the historical
operating performance and the unutilised borrowing facilities of the
Group amounting to RMB1,449.3 million for the next twelve months

from the date of this report.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group for

the year ended 31 December 2023 on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of

the investee).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to

be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 17
BB HREERE 175
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

Insurance Contracts

RIREH

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEEERIE 1R RBEEVBRE BRI

HEREBBAE 25 (IBFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BEGETERIZE 8 ((BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BESFERE 1258 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12
ARG ERIE 1298 (BFTA)

BTG A E S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Group has
disclosed the material accounting policy information in note 2
to the financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation of

any items in the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. Since the Group’s approach and policy
align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact

on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(0

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the
scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that
it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments had no impact on the Group's financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 /nternational Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for
the affected entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known or
reasonably estimable information of their exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did
not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the

amendments did not have any impact to the Group.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have

been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. BFEEGE)
2.3 BEMEERERNEEMBR
HER
AEE AR R EHEREF R T
51/ B 45180 140 R 2 48 5 3T % B

The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, BMEED - NREBIERZZLEE]

when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BREMBEREENFE 105K
BEGTERIE285% (EFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
ERMEREERF 165% (EFTAK)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERE 1R (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1

A ERIE 15 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

BEEERIE7HR K
EBMBEREREAFE 75 BFTAR)

Amendments to HKAS 21

AT ERIE 2198 (BFTA)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

BB WS LA LR - BARES
SRS RE LR () -

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venturée®

REEZHABEN A A SRR EEL E)TE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
ERHENHER E
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)"#
R ESER LB RE ([ 20205 EFTAR]) 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)"#
M B RAR B FE BB A ([ 20225 EFTAR]) 1
Supplier Finance Arrangements'

REBHHBEZTE

Lack of Exchangeability?
RZ A 4 1>

T 20241 A1 B2 B RIAHF S

S
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 2 FR2025F 1 A1 B Z &AM EE S
AR
*  No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption > oAWK B EEAFERE - AT
4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, 4 ER2020F(ERTAN k2022 FERT A HY
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements TE BUHEBRESSH[MBHRE

— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding

wording with no change in conclusion

ME7 — ERALHESREREEK
R EHRER D EETTER - AR
—HERIAE - MAdwm T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with early application permitted.
An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. BEBER(E)
24 EREFHE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets

under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting

policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates. Dividend from associates is recognised as a reduction

from the carrying amount of the investments.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other case, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is

accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held

for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are

measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a

substantive process that together significantly contribute to the

ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes

the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously

held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value

and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in

profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of

the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the

cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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E_ER - REBEEAABENENEBEANAER (AEXBER) HEEREAENGERN
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable
F=ER

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, and non-current assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the

smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the

function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in

the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the

other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same

third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of the

post-employment benefit plan;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and

location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.1%
11.3% to 22.5%

Over the shorter of the

Intralogistics equipment
Leasehold improvements

lease term and 33'/3%
Motor vehicles 19.0%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 33'/3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year/period the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.

Intralogistics equipment included in the property, plant and
equipment is transferred to inventories at its carrying amount
when it ceases to be rented and becomes held for sale in ordinary

activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life

are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Technical know-how

Purchased technology know-how is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life of 10 years, which is determined by the
expected usage period after considering the technical obsolescence

and estimates of useful lives of similar assets.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of 3 years, which is determined by the expected usage period after
considering the technical obsolescence and estimates of useful

lives of similar assets.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the estimated useful life. Otherwise, the right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms, and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Office premises 1.5 to 7 years
Intralogistics equipment 3 to 8 years

Leasehold land 50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. When the Group obtains ownership
of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term,
upon exercising purchase options, the carrying amount of the
relevant right-of-use assets are transferred to property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate), a change in the

lease term or a change in assessment of an option to purchase

the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest-bearing

bank loans and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office premises and intralogistics
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a stand-alone selling price basis. Revenue
from operating lease is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as revenue from operating lease. Contingent rents or variable
lease payments are recognised as revenue in the period in which

they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as
a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition

exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies

set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset (debt instrument) to be classified
and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the

date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
the equity investments are also recognised as other income in profit

or loss when the right of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual

terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group generally considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. The Group has
rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default based on
reasonable and supportable information, including the Group's
credit risk control practices and the historical recovery rate of
financial assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account

any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which

apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs
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Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition but that are

not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated

credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., customer
type). The Group classifies its customers into categories A, B, C
based on the account management models and calculates the ECLs
of trade receivables in these categories. The account management
model mainly considers the likelihood of credit loss, customer
behavior, and payment patterns, all of which determine the loss

patterns. The categories of trade receivable are as follows:
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Category A Key account customers in the PRC, who (i) subscribed 50 units or more in that particular year, or (ii)
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(one unit or more) from the Group in that particular year under the intralogistics equipment subscription
services business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial

liabilities at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and interest-

bearing bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation

is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable
value is based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated

costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and held for the purpose of

meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
periods, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, with

certain exceptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be

entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the

variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant

financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Intralogistics equipment subscription services

Intralogistics equipment subscription services represented
one-stop services for a full-cycle management on intralogistics
equipment, covering the entire life-cycle of equipment from

procurement, utilisation, maintenance and repair.

The Group provides one-stop services bundled together
with the lease of intralogistics equipment to the customers.
The intralogistics equipment subscription services are
comprised of two performance obligations: 1) the operating
lease of intralogistics equipment, which is accounted for in
accordance with the policies set out for “Leases” above under
HKFRS 16; and 2) the stand-ready comprehensive services
packages (“Comprehensive Services”), including equipment
management, vehicle route planning, quick vehicle dispatch,
maintenance arrangement, as well as real-time equipment
status supervision. The stand-alone selling price of the
operating lease and the Comprehensive Services underlying,
which are capable of being distinct and separately identifiable,
is determined at contract inception. The Group estimates the
stand-alone selling price regarding Comprehensive Services
using adjusted market assessment approach. In the absence
of the directly-observable market data for the stand-alone
selling price regarding the operating lease, the Group will
estimate the stand-alone selling price of operating lease as the
difference between the total transaction price and the stand-

alone selling price of the Comprehensive Services.

The nature of the Group’'s Comprehensive Services is a single
performance obligation under the Services contract to stand-
ready to provide an unspecified quantity of services each day
throughout the contract period. Revenue from Comprehensive

Services is recognised evenly over the contract period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

(0

Maintenance and repair services

Maintenance and repair services mainly include one-off repair
services and a services plan for a fixed services period. The
Group issue invoices either on project basis for one-off repair
services, or on monthly basis for services plans with valid
contract periods covering equipment specified in relevant

agreements.

Revenue from stand-ready maintenance and repair services is

recognised evenly over the contract period.

Except for revenue from stand-ready maintenance and repair
services, the Group recognises revenue from maintenance and
repair services over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the services, because
the Group creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs. The Directors assessed the
stage of completion based on the proportion of the costs
incurred for the maintenance and repair services (i.e., direct
labour costs incurred, cost of materials and other miscellaneous
costs directly attributable to these services) performed to
date relative to the estimated total costs to complete the

satisfaction of these services.

Sales of intralogistics equipment and parts

Revenue from the sale of intralogistics equipment and parts
is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customers, generally on receipt of the

industrial products by customers.

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts the

estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to

the customer).

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Chinese
Mainland are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute 5% of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement

or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Allocation of the transaction price to operating lease and the
Comprehensive Services for intralogistics equipment subscription

Services

The Group has entered into contracts with customers for intralogistics
equipment subscription services that contain operating lease and
Comprehensive Services. For such contracts, significant assessments
and interpretations are required to determine the appropriate method
to allocate the transaction prices among the operating lease and
the Comprehensive Services. The Group estimates the stand-alone
selling price regarding Comprehensive Services using adjusted market
assessment approach. In the absence of the directly-observable market
data for the stand-alone selling price regarding the operating lease,
the Group will estimate the stand-alone selling price of operating lease
as the difference between the total transaction price and the stand-
alone selling price of the Comprehensive Services. The Group applies
significant judgement to determine the appropriateness of such method
given the specific circumstances, based on, inter alia, the availability of
information and historical transaction/pricing history and observable

market data.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimated useful life and residual value of property, plant
and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and
residual value for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and also
considers technical or commercial obsolescence of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. The management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are expected to
be shorter than previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned. Changes
in these estimations may have a material impact on the results of the

Group.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix, or other applicable approaches, to
calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type), and initially based on the
Group's historical observed default rates, supplemented by relevant
external information, as appropriate. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
specific group of customers, the corresponding historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates

are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Impairment of long term non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
long term non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. These non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indications that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not
in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the

subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is not organised into business
units based on their services and products and only has one reportable

operating segment.

The information reported to the Directors, who are the chief operating
decision makers, for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance does not contain discrete operating segment financial
information and the Directors reviewed the financial results of the
Group as a whole. Therefore, no further information about the operating

segment is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

4

RepIER (&

EER
(a) KREIEBEFHIKA
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

PRC i 1,184,278 1,061,721
Overseas* TN [ * 187,527 132,488
Total revenue FEU N 1,371,805 1,194,209

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the

customers.

* The Group exported its products to customers located in overseas
countries, mainly in Asia, Europe, North and South America and
Australia.

(b) Non-current assets

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC (other

than Hong Kong) as at the end of 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Information about major customers

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers
under common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's

revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

5 WA - Hilg A R UES

AEBBWADHTAT ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®T T ARETT

Intralogistics equipment subscription services BN E] A BR % 766,811 738,001
Maintenance and repair services HEEAEBIRTS 185,818 140,987
Sales of intralogistics equipment and parts BN B REHEE 419,176 315,221
Total revenue BN 1,371,805 1,194,209
Analysis into: R RFIDHT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHIRA 778,651 619,482
Revenue from operating leases (included in R EWA Gt ASRNYR

intralogistics equipment subscription services) REBETRR) 593,154 574,727
Total revenue FAUTA 1,371,805 1,194,209

—E =44 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

215



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5
Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

WA - B AR WS (&)
BEFEHRA
(@) ZHUAZH

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Types of goods or services EmmE R ER
Intralogistics equipment subscription services 32 ¥ s3] A RS
(excluding operating leases) (TEELEHE) 173,657 163,274
Maintenance and repair services HEEEIRTE 185,818 140,987
Sales of intralogistics equipment and parts BN RS 419,176 315,221
Total revenue from contracts with customers ZF & #JUA 4258 778,651 619,482
Geographical markets & W5
PRC G 591,124 486,994
Overseas* SN [ * 187,527 132,488
Total revenue from contracts with customers ZF & #JUA 4258 778,651 619,482
Timing of revenue recognition WA T 2R R
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—NEBERNE @ 419,176 315,221
Services transferred over time R — BRI AER A RIS 359,475 304,261
Total revenue from contracts with customers ZF & #JUA 4258 778,651 619,482

* The Group exported its products to customers located in overseas
countries, mainly in Asia, Europe, North and South America and
Australia.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from

performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

5 WA - Bl AR WS (&
BEFEHWA (&)
(@) ZHFUAEK (&)

TRFIINHERNFAGHARBE
RBEHRNEEITREOEERRE
RE AT &S IR AR

2023 2022
2023 F 20224F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Revenue recognised that was included in R EEBITAEL
contract liabilities at the beginning of the BEMEERUA
reporting period:
Sales of intralogistics equipment and parts BRI EREHFHE 14,559 8,972

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is

summarised below:

Intralogistics equipment subscription services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and short-term advances are normally required before
rendering the services. The services under intralogistics equipment
subscription services are mainly for periods of one to four years,
and were billed periodically. The Group's trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit period is

generally one to three months.

(b) BHIEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)
Intralogistics equipment subscription services (continued)

The amounts of the transaction prices allocated to remaining

obligations (unsatisfied or partially satisfied) as at 31 December are

WA - EER AR W (&
BEFEHWA (&)
(b) BAEE (&)

BRAY R EE IR ()

PEER12A31 BOFBE T (RETT
READEIT) IR HERESEAOT ¢

as follows:

2023 2022
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREETT

Amounts expected to be recognised as TEETERAMARNESE

revenue:

Within one year —&R 108,837 97,698
One to two years —EWF 43,778 35,982
Two to three years ME= 17,345 13,497
Three to four years =ZENF 4,200 4,859
Total st 174,160 152,036

Maintenance and repair services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within one to three months

upon the completion of services.

Sales of intralogistics equipment and parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the receipts of the
intralogistics equipment and parts and payment is generally due
with one month, extending up to three months for key customers,

after the receipts of the intralogistics equipment and parts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5

WA - HtBA R WS (&

Other income and gains H AU A R 2
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Interest income A EWA 2,002 1,945
Government grants* IR #83 B 1,821 1,547
Foreign exchange differences, net P = FRFRE 1,177 -
Rental income HEWA 659 =
Fair value gain of financial assets at NAARBENEEHEZEH:TA
fair value through profit or loss EHBEENEREED
NAEEYS 93 892
Gain on remeasurement of an associate B E—RKEE AR EIE
to acquisition-date fair value (note 27) HEARA R EENRE
(Htit27) - 1,435
Others HAtb 570 457
Total 5t 6,322 6,276

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these

% 5 BRI 478 B A R AR AR R AT e B A

government grants. FIE o
6 FINANCE COSTS 6 MBEAR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERAITET
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREET T
Interest on bank loans RITE T B 16,840 16,309
Interest on other borrowings H b & 51 A1 2 8,354 10,738
Interest on lease liabilities (note (14b)) HEB BB (KaE4b)) 66,260 61,927
Total interest expense on financial liabilities SRAEN SRS RS 91,454 88,974
Less: Interest capitalised B EAREFE (6,352) (5,365)
Total #aEt 85,102 83,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 BEIFIE

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEERATFBEENR (GTA) A TS

TEIRESL
2023 2022
2023 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E ARET T ARBT T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 449,175 348,919
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment” ME - BB RRETE 13 209,164 211,155
Depreciation of right-of-use assets” FREEENE 14(a) 228,671 209,516
Lease payments not included in the EHESERARF AR
measurement of lease liabilities HERRK 14(c) 1,007 7,707
Amortisation of intangible assets G EE Y 15 1,596 1,888
Research and development costs™ EER 42,175 39,652
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 Bl 5 B 3,000 =
Listing expenses™ EmAE 39,189 -
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAFZ (TEE
directors’ and supervisors’ s mEE K
remunerations in note 8) EEEETE)
Wages and salaries ITERF® 193,087 193,156
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTBI R
(defined contribution schemes) (REHFETE)) 29,545 21,990
Total FEE 222,632 215,146
Foreign exchange differences, net™ M R R R (1,177) 2,377
Impairment of trade receivables Z 5 EUBGRIERE 18 2,442 4,178
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary™ BE—MFRARAEE 41 -
Gains on disposals of property, plantand B &% * BE MEEH
equipment™ Wezs" (288) (118)
Gain on remeasurement of an associate ~ EFFTE— KB LA A EIWE
to acquisition-date fair value™ HEA AR EENRE™ 5 - (1,435)
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7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

7 T%ﬂu @ (&)

ME - BEEREBARERBEENE D

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets is included in “Cost of sales, “Selling and distribution expenses” and

“Administrative expenses”in profit or loss, respectively.

The amounts are included in "Administrative expenses”in profit or loss.

The net foreign exchange gain and foreign exchange loss are included in
‘other income” and “other expense”in profit or loss, respectively.

The amounts are included in “Other income” in profit or loss.

The amounts are included in “Other expenses”in profit or loss.

8 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

RFF Bz [HERS ] [#HERDH

ERIKIEEERA] -

FZEFREDFGABRETO[ERER ] -

PE St Wean 3 BRI BB LB T 0 Rl ET AR A
M TR R EMER] -

ZEFRTIFE ABmRE [EMBA] -

ZEFRIFTA BT [ EMER] -

EE  BETBABRES

A

BRI EMRA - BB D REHIFE383(1)()
) OBROEARRA (BEEEEMNTE
B RPIE A BEENEERESTRAR

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as REEHFTMAOT
follows:
Group
AEH
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFT
Fee we 185 180
Other emoluments: Hupe :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYEA 3,376 3,577
Pension scheme contributions RIREET IR 140 184
Subtotal NEt 3,516 3,761
Total fees and other emoluments e REAmM e 25 3,701 3,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

8 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8 EE ERTHAEBRES
SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) B (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RAFEEENBIERNTESHHRS
year were as follows: IR
2023 2022
2023 F 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT

Mr. Chiang Edward @ FIE @ 45 B
Dr. Fan Xia REBL 60 60
Mr. Wang Chuanbang @ FEBELE 45 _
Ms. Zhang Jie ® RRZ 15 60
Mr. Song Xiaoning R/NESLHE® 20 60
Total #BET 185 180
Notes: PHEE
(@) Mr. Chiang Edward and Mr. Wang Chuanbang were appointed as @) BEMEEREEBLER2023F4A8
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 3 April 2023. 3SHEZERADRABIUINITES -
(b) Ms. Zhang Jie and Mr. Song Xiaoning retired as independent non- (b) ?ﬁff%?i&??d\@?ﬁiﬁﬂlJE@ZOB@3
executive directors on 3 March 2023 and 3 April 2023, respectively. A3H %2023 4 A3 BEHEB L IEAIT
Bxo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

8 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 8 EX BeITHAEBKRES
SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) E2ai] (,%"5”_
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and the (b) MITESE  FHTEERESTT
chief executive BAE
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
benefits in kind contributions remuneration
E2 =1 BiRE
REYER sHEIHRR F2 Fokcl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T

2023 20234
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Hou Zekuan BERGE 1,079 35 1,114
Mr. Hou Zebing® BEIEE 1,055 35 1,090
Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan SERERT LA 778 35 813
Ms. Ma Li EEzt 464 35 499
Subtotal /NEF 3,376 140 3,516
Non-executive directors: EHITES -
Mr. Zhu Yingchun KRDFLE - - -
Mr. Shu Xiaowu /IR E = = =
Subtotal /INET - - -
Total FEE 3,376 140 3,516

—E =44 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

8 DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8 EE BeETHABRES
SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) M (=)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and the (b) BIITEE - IPTEERESIT
chief executive (continued) BAB (&)
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
benefits in kind contributions remuneration
e - R RIRE
REWER FTEI R HhN4azE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBET T ARBTT

2022 20224
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Hou Zekuan BEELE 900 34 934
Mr. Hou Zebing® BEIEE 876 34 910
Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan jdi=3 ol 646 34 680
Ms. Ma Li 5 459 34 493
Subtotal NEt 2,881 136 3,017
Non-executive directors: JEHITES -
Mr. Zhu Yingchun KRDFLE - - -
Mr. Shu Xiaowu /s = = -
Subtotal INEE - - -
Total #Et 2,881 136 3,017
Mr. Hou Zebing is also the general manager (chief executive) of the T BREEEAENAARRABLEE (KT
Company. BAR) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

8 BEE BRETBAERES

SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) Ff (&)
(c) Supervisors () EE
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
benefits in kind contributions remuneration
E 2 =11

REYEFN RBASFEMHIN 20 Pk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥T AR®T

Year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ2023%F12H3101t

FE

Ms. Li Xiaolan =N e 301 29 330
Mr. Zhang Xiaolong SRNEESE A - - -
Mr. He Xiaocheng BN AE 316 29 345
617 58 675

Year ended 31 December 2022 # ZE2022F12H31H1E

FE

Ms. Li Xiaolan =N eann 307 24 331
Mr. Zhang Xiaolong SR/NBESEAE = = =
Mr. He Xiaocheng BN EAE 389 24 413
696 48 744

There was no arrangement under which a Director, Supervisor and

the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration R EREEAHFN 2 ZHE °

during the year.

RERALEESE  EFXRSTRABREX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

9 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9 AEREHESR

The five highest paid employees during the year included two Directors RAFE  hEGa T EEREMEBES
(2022: two Directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note (20224 : MBES) - HFBMFBEEHR L

8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three MHEES c RANFE - 8T =4 (20224 -
(2022: three) highest paid employees who are neither a Director nor =R)EayEE (BEHIIEARAEETR

chief executive of the Company are as follows: = TBRAER) MEBEFBOT

2023 2022

2023 F 20224F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He o R NEYET 3,437 5,295

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T BB 192 172

Total HEt 3,629 5,467
The number of non-director, non-chief executive and non-supervisor TN TR TIHEERNIEES « EZESTT
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BABRFEERSFEEAZDT :

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAZ
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TT ARETT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 1 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7L % 3,500,0007%8 7T - -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 78 7T 2 4,000,000/ 7T - 1
Total st 3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 INCOME TAX

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

10 FriS#i

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREET T

Current BNEA 408 598
Deferred tax (note 24) EIEFTIS T (KTt 24) (995) (578)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fris®i (E%), &R (587) 20

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are

domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and the respective
regulations (the “CIT Law"), the Company and the subsidiaries which
operates in Chinese Mainland are subject to corporate income tax at
a rate of 25% on the taxable income unless those are subject to tax

exemption set out below.

The Company is qualified as an “High and New Technology Enterprise”
and therefore was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for
the years from 2022 to 2024. This qualification is subject to review by the

relevant tax authority of the PRC every three years.

Except for Anhui Folangsi, other subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are
qualified as “Small and Micro Enterprises” and therefore were entitled to

a preferential income tax rate of 5% to 10% during the year.

REBARAREEKE R R LM R 48
LEREREEERMELAIMENNBR
EREEHMEN

RIBHBEREMRETOERBRB G ([R2%
FERUE]D - ARE RAESBE AL L
FRRIESLERT TSN B EME
B o M SRR R R U B ER SI ©

RARIERERRFHEMEZE] - R
202F E 2024 FZR15%MERMBHE o
ZEAMRES =FHPEABREBIIE
IR o

B BTSN  REERRBEREM T
ARABERIIMIEE] AEREFAZT
H5%E10%HEEMEHE o

N

R
~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

10 INCOME TAX (continued)

10

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at

the statutory tax rate for the PRC where the operations of the Group

are substantially based to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Frig®t (&

BRASETIELEMENTED
TS E W A& AR B AT A B AR

REB
SR

A BRERREAELNAERERD

HERWOT ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Profit before tax Tt Al A 30,633 35,421
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) R EE25% (20224F : 25%)
ETHEMBIE 7,658 8,855
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or enacted 4 FE&A M E BB
by local authority BIEB=x (2,718) (3,846)
Additional tax deduction for qualified research SERAEERNMGHR
and development expenses (6,347) (4,833)
Income not subject to tax BAERBIUA - 357)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRIMHER 820 367
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BAECEARIEEE - (166)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAREEERTEGTERN
HIA H (587) 20
11 DIVIDENDS 1 RE

No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company during the

year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
337,911,483 (2022: 335,886,816 (restated)) in issue during the year after
adjusting for the Subdivision defined as below, on 10 November 2023

(the “ Listing Date”).

On the Listing date, the Company subdivided each authorized issued
and unissued ordinary share of a par value of RMB1.00 in the Company
into four ordinary shares of a par value of RMB0.25 each pursuant to the
resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company on 21 April 2023
(the “Subdivision”). The weighted average number of ordinary shares has
been adjusted for the effect of the Subdivision for the year ended 31
December 2022.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented for the year for a dilution as the Group had no potentially

dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

12 ARAEBEREEAREER

25

FREANENSEIENRK2023F11 710
H(TEMBH]) BBRARAREREEREE
AR FERFEREHFMA (TERTX) AR
BHFERNEEET7337,911,4830% (20224 -
335,886,816/% (AL &l ) ) EimAR & Mt F 15
HErHE o

REWTAE  ARARREARARFRER
20234 A21 HBBHVRER - BAREE
REEARE1.00TTHAE B BT RAEST
L@ AR TR A EARK0.25TTH
L@k ([HFA]) - BE 20228128318 1E
FE - TRARMETFHHERIFANZE
{EHFAZE -

HRARENFALBE BT EEREE
B MU EREREFE2I N ERER
BNSEIELEEHE -

BERERBNNFETER :

2023 2022
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKETTT
(Restated)
(g =)
Earnings EZR
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders FEERAAREEREEA
of the company: B FE - 31,220 35,401
Number of shares
RHOEE
2023 2022
2023 2022
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in  F A E 317 MARINHE
issue during the year T2 337,911,483 335,886,816
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A RR M

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13 9% - BERRE

Furniture,
Intralogistics Leasehold Motor  fixturesand  Construction
Buildings  equipment improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BR HE 2 BHE
BF R L RE  HEERZE EBIR -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR¥Tn AR%Tz ARETR ARETn ARETR
31 December 2023 2023F128318
At 1 January 2023: R2023E1A18
Cost KA 241,039 1,220,494 14,170 23,177 23,445 39942 1,562,267
Accumulated depreciation 23thE (4569)  (665,508) (10,683) (13,209) (11,765) = (705,734)
Net carrying amount REFE 236,470 554,986 3,487 9,968 11,680 39,942 856,533
At 1 January 2023, net of R2023E1 418 -
accumulated depreciation MR2FHE 236,470 554,986 3,487 9,968 11,680 39,942 856,533
Additions AE - 248,891 3,644 2,465 1,816 61,453 318,269
Disposal RE - - - (183) (106) - (289)
Exercise of purchase options of TERERNIR
leased intralogistics equipment XENEEEEE
(note 14(3)) (i 14) - 169,721 - - - - 169,721
Transfer to inventories BRERE - (42,215) = - - - (42,215)
Transfer to construction in progress ~ BEAZERETE - (16,834) - - - 16,834 -
Transfer from construction BREATRTE
in progress 99,371 14,529 - - - (113,900) -
Depreciation provided during the year  ERzHEHE (9,491)  (189,452) (3,152) (3,233) (3,836) = (209,164)
At 31 December 2023, net of R2023%128318
accumulated depreciation MR Z5HE 326,350 739,626 3,979 9,017 9,554 4329 1,092,855
At 31 December 2023; R2023F12A8318 ¢
Cost A 340,410 1,443,928 17,813 24,842 24,535 4329 1,855,857
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (140600  (704,302) (13,834) (15,825) (14,981) - (763,002)
Net carrying amount REFE 326,350 739,626 3,979 9,017 9,554 4329 1,092,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

13 ¥% - BERRE (&)

Furniture,
Intralogistics Leasehold Motor  fixturesand  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total
HR HE & EE
BF vkl ESR "B KERJE W ERIR @it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETRT AREBTT ARETR ARET:
31 December 2022 20226124310
At 1 January 2022: RonE1A18 130,766 1,142,532 11,805 21,906 15,898 71,021 1,393,928
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE - (555,160) (7,936) (12,744) (9399) - (585,239)
Net carrying amount REFE 130,766 587,372 3,869 9,162 6,499 71,021 808,689
At 1 January 2022, net of #0251 818
accumulated depreciation MR 2iHE 130,766 587,372 3869 9,162 6,499 71,021 808,689
Additions AE 4369 177,084 2,365 3,584 7818 73,624 268,844
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RFRA
(note 27) (fiit27) - - - - 4 - 4
Disposal RE - - - (170) (32) - (202)
Exercise of purchase options of TERERNIRR
leased intralogistics equipment MEEEEE
(note 14(3)) (Hiti4e) - 30455 - - - 30455
Transfer to inventories BEERE - (40,142) - - - - (40,142)
Transfer to construction in progress ~ EHZERETIE - (10,113) = = = 10,113 =
Transfer from construction BRBRTRIR
in progress 105,904 8911 - - (114815) -
Depreciation provided during the year  FPsHEHT & (4,569) (198582) (2,747) (2,608) (2,649) - (211,155)
At 31 December 2022, net of #202%12R318
accumulated depreciation R EsiE 236470 554986 3487 9,968 11,680 39,942 856,533
At 31 December 2022: ®202%12R318 :
Cost P 241,039 1,220,494 14,170 23177 23445 39942 1,562,267
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (4,569) (665,508) (10,683) (13,209) (11,765) - (705,734)
Net carrying amount BEFE 236470 554,986 3487 9,968 11,680 39942 856,533

Notes: BT E -

(@) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain of the Group's and Company's (@ M2023F K20229F12A318 @ REFE
intralogistics equipment with net carrying amounts of approximately DRl BH AR 384,578,000t R ARHE
RMB384,578,000 and RMB281,782,000 were pledged to secure bank loans 281,782,000 7T MY A58 [ KN A )35 T 45 9 4)
and other borrowings granted to the Group, respectively (note 23 (ii)). MREEEANERR T AEENIRTER

Ko E AR (B EE23(i) ©

(b) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fully-depreciated items of property, (b) $2023F K2022%F12A318 - BEEED
plant and equipment with the gross carrying amounts of RMB30,344,000 and Bl B AR #30,344,0007T & A R ¥ 27,712,000
RMB27,712,000 were still in use, respectively. TTREEITEYE BERXEEB HERE

A e
(©) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had not obtained ownership () F2023F &2022F12A318  AKEE

certificates of certain buildings with net carrying amounts of RMB8,347,000
and RMB104,240,000, respectively.

EFED R AARYES347,000 T R AR
104,240,000 7T B9 & THEF 4 R EUS BT G 8

&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

14 LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various office premises and
intralogistics equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with lease periods
of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. Leases of office premises generally have lease
terms between 1.5 and 7 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from

assigning and subleasing the leased office premises outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

14 FHE

REBEEREEA

AEEFBERRELENEEARRINER
SAMRRENEESLD - REEB S
SOFEMBEE LB R —RERNK -
BE#TREZET A SRR EFERS
K MAGHEENERRISE7TFAE -
—RmE  ARERBRHSEENOH QS
FrEER DEEREEIN

@) RAEEE

7 o B e 5 PR EE BB T R R
EENEBNT

Office Intralogistics Leasehold
premises  equipment land Total
BN
WA 5 P YRR HELT i At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTRT ARBTR AR®BTR
As at 1 January 2022 2022461 A1H 15,311 926,290 35,723 977,324
Additions NE 30,519 281,448 = 311,967
Transfer to property, plant and HEBEEYE - HER
equipment (note 13) A (Kt 13) - (30,455) = (30,455)
Depreciation charge nEER (13,002) (195,763) (751) (209,516)
As at 31 December 2022 and R2022F 128318 K
1 January 2023 20231 A1H 32,828 981,520 34,972 1,049,320
Additions = 15,690 412,805 - 428,495
Transfer to property, plant and HEBEEYE - HE R
equipment (note 13) A (Kt 13) - (169,721) - (169,721)
Depreciation charge mEER (13,402) (214,518) (751) (228,671)
As at 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 35,116 1,010,086 34,221 1,079,423
Note: MfzE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the leasehold land of the Group
were pledged to secure bank loans and other borrowings granted to the

Group, respectively (note 23(ii)).
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14 LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings) and the movements during

the year are as follows:

14 HE (&

REEERERA (H)
(b) HERME

HEAE (FFAGBRITREMET)

MREENRNAFENZESHINT

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBETT

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BRERAEE 786,102 781,380

New leases s 428,495 311,967
Accretion of interest recognised during FRERONEIEE

the year 66,260 61,927

Payments (BN (397,047) (369,172)

Carrying amount at 31 December RK12A31 BREREE 883,810 786,102

Analysed into: BTRHIDHT -
Current portion TEENEL 402,579 353,908
Non-current portion ERBNEL S 481,231 432,194

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 34 to the

financial statement.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

HEBENIBMBERD T RER T

HAMRE34

(c) RIEz AERHEHEBHH £

leases are as follows: BT -
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBT T
Interest on lease liabilities HESENE 66,260 61,927
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENTESRH 228,671 209,516
Expense relating to short-term leases B HHERENRS 1,007 7,707
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIERERNB SRR 295,938 279,150
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

14 LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

All intralogistics equipment included in property, plant and equipment
is available for lease. The lease of the Group represented the operating
lease in its services contracts under intralogistics equipment subscription
services, which is allocated based on the residual method to estimate
the stand-alone selling price for the operating lease after deducting the
total revenue derived from the intralogistics equipment subscription
services by the allocated revenue in Comprehensive Services, details of

which are disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statement.

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating lease with

its tenants are as follows:

14 HE (&

REEESHBEA

AR BERRKEBENMBESZAMRR
BEAANES - ARENBEERRES
AR R R B IR TSN EL IR TS & A A H) &
LHE  EAMRRETBREELN
BBAT RO EEZGEE RBOHKRAR -
ERBEAGAEEHENBLEE  H
FIEWEN KM 24

R2023%F12A318 @ RIEEBE AT
HEERE - RSB AR E RS R
BRIRMAE AT ¢

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Within one year —FKN 371,752 343,899
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 149,532 126,658
After two years but within three years MEEE=FRA 59,243 47,508
After three years but within four years = FRENFEAN 14,340 17,102
Total e 594,867 535,167
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

15 EEE

Technical
Software know-how Total
B EEHM st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR®TRx AR%®TrRx
31 December 2023 7M2023F12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 74202341 81 B KA AN
amortisation kR 252N 3,683 5,001 8,684
Additions NE 794 - 794
Amortisation provided during the year FNETIREH (1,055) (541) (1,596)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F 12 A31H 3,422 4,460 7,882
At 31 December 2023: 20238128318
Cost [N 8,714 5,406 14,120
Accumulated amortisation Rt (5,292) (946) (6,238)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,422 4,460 7,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

15 BILEE (&)

Technical
Software know-how Total
;i BHE i @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETTT ARBTT ARETT
31 December 2022 2022%F12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 74202241 1 B KA AN
amortisation kR 252N 3,862 = 3,862
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27) WE—RT A8 (Haz27) = 5,406 5,406
Additions NE 1,304 - 1,304
Amortisation provided during the year FAFHEE (1,483) (405) (1,888)
At 31 December 2022 M2022F12 H31H 3,683 5,001 8,684
At 31 December 2022: 2022612 4318 ¢
Cost B AR 7,920 5,406 13,326
Accumulated amortisation KAt (4,237) (405) (4,642)
Net carrying amount BRE A 3,683 5,001 8,684
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16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

16 REEENRINRE

2023 2022

2023F 20224F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AR®ETTT

Share of net assets EIEEERE 10,802 10,561

Particulars of the associates are as follows: PSR RFEBAT ¢
Percentage
Particulars Place of of ownership
of issued registration interest to
Name shares held and business the Group Principal activity

FEERT EEa1ipe AEEEMGTE

=L R FE = 35014 EERESL FEEK

Ferretto Intelligent Equipment Ordinary shares Shanghai, PRC 28.50%  Manufacture and sale of
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ("Ferretto intralogistics equipment
Intelligent’, “FB I /Z & 88 %1
(E®AERRAE"

REEERERE (8) iRk RE 28.50% SRR RS RIHE
BRAR([FHREERE])

Hefei Langxun Intelligent Ordinary shares Hefei, PRC 27.74%  Manufacture and sale of
Equipment Co,, Ltd. intelligent equipment
("Hefei Langxun’, & AEBALES &8
RiBBER QA" (note)

SEMAEEREBEERAT (& Rk A AE 27.74% BpeRBRE NG

AEBASR 1) (BT EE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group invested RMB1,100,000 in
Hefei Langxun, holding approximately 28% equity interest in Hefei Langxun, with
a significant influence over it. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has paid all
considerations.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group's associates were not individually
material at the end of 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's

16 REE ARINIRE (&)
B sE
HZE2022F12A31BIEFE - AEERAEHR
B ARE1,100,0007T  #HHE HL)28%H) AXHE -
AHETEERFE SN - R2022%F12A31H * &
SEEEHE -

EFRA - REEN2003F 20225 FRAOBE
AR AERFEABEAT -

TRAAREE S R BNELYTEER

associates:
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Share of the associates’ profit for the year FEARER S A R EAFE 241 948
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income FE(LEE AR 2 AW ERE 241 948
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEBREBE A TIRENRERE

investments in the associates 10,802 10,561

‘<

17 INVENTORIES 17 #&
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Finished goods BUAK

91,010 84,502
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 EZRINHRIERERRE

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR®ET T

Trade receivables B 5 WA 359,289 287,434
Bills receivable FEM R 34,913 25,645
394,202 313,079

Less: Impairment B ORE (20,238) (19,042)
Net carrying amount BREFE 373,964 294,037

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except
for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
The credit period is generally one to three months. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivable are non-interest-

bearing.

The fair values of trade and bills receivables as at the end of reporting
period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts due to

their relatively short maturity terms.

AEBEEFHENESGRERNARES
T EBRESEERFEFEANNR - EH
H—RR—Z=EA  BR2EFPHERS
ERRBE » NEB B EHE RN E &R
BRSBTS - WRAEAEERPIIA
HEARREERE - SREEET PR
MNEHAES AEEE S RKFIAEKRE
TRAMNEFER  SUBESAERARE
oo REEIW R EE HERFHIBERE
BEMERYKEMBEREREE - B5
FEYKRBARTE R °

BRI MR AHEE  ESRKHIER

EUZENBSHRRNAABERELN
FERREEARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is

18 EZBWHREAREBRRE (&)
5 5 WO B R R TR S R

as follows:

KR BB RN B KR BB A AR D 17 40

T

2023 2022

2023 20225

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AREET T

One to three months —Z={@A 276,177 242,481
Four to six months MZEREA 64,856 36,987
Six to twelve months NET{EA 16,643 10,788
Over one year —FE 16,288 3,781
Total HEt 373,964 294,037

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

B 5 REWGIRRRERKBEEFINT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AREET T

At beginning of year F9) 19,042 15,915
Impairment losses, net (note 7) REBKFR (ME7) 2,442 4178
Amount written off as uncollectible B5 71 BT L Bl S ) 2 5B (1,246) (1,051)
At end of the year FR 20,238 19,042

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a

provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based on days

past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss

patterns (i.e., customer type). The Group classifies its customers into

categories A, B, and C based on their business models. The calculation

reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money

and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the

reporting date about past events, current condition and forecasts of

future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off

if they are past due for more than three years and are not subject to

enforcement activity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment on bills receivable is measured as 12-month expected credit
losses. The expected credit losses for bills receivable are minimal since
the settlement were made from creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables using provision matrixes:

At 31 December 2023

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 EZ BTN BKWRE (&

U Z 35 B0 R E R 1 2 (6 A A HE g kAt
2 -BAREREEEHEERFEETH
EHORERITEITEE - BUR2023F K
2022512 A31 B EKREENTEHRERA
e TN

FHAEERARBERETENESEK
HRENERRAREREINDT

7A2023%F12H31H

Category A A#
Past due
B
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
BA 1R 1 E Ast
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEAR(E 1B K 2 (%) 0.0 2.5 100.0 0.2
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #RBRMEE (AR TIT) 74,733 6,177 - 80,910
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHERELR (ARETT) 2 155 = 157
Category B B#
Past due
eIt
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
BNHA 1A 10 E et
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEHAE 1B R R (%) 3.0 11.0 100.0 7.4
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #RBRMEIE (AR T T) 223,180 31,250 9,365 263,795
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) A ERBEXR(ARBTT) 6,644 3,442 9,365 19,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

18 EZ BTN BKWRE (&

Category C Cc#
Past due
B
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
B 1FE R 1FEUE Bt
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEEA{E FR1B KK (%) 0.6 2.4 100.0 4.3
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #2BREE (AR®E T L) 13,063 1,000 521 14,584
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TEAEABXR (ARBTT) 85 24 521 630
Total Fob
Past due
B
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
BHA 1R 1FE AEt
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEAR{E 1B K 2 (%) 2.2 9.4 100 5.6
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #RBREE (AR T IT) 310,976 38,427 9,886 359,289
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHERELR (ARETT) 6,731 3,621 9,886 20,238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2022

18 EZ BTN BKWRE (&

7A2022%12H31H

Category A A#
Past due
21 HA
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
BN ER 1 BAA T A E #Et
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEAR(E 1B K 2 (%) 0.6 2.5 100.0 0.6
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #RBREE (AR T IT) 63,438 610 = 64,048
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHERELR (ARETT) 401 15 = 416
Category B B#
Past due
B
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
BNHA 1E AR = FEEy
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEHA{E R 1B R R (%) 3.5 124 100.0 8.6
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #RBRMEE (AR T T) 183,605 21,732 9,138 214,475
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEERBER (ARETT) 6,516 2,689 9,138 18,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

18 EZBNFEREBWRE (&)

Category C Cc#
Past due
8 HA
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
I 1F AR T E #Et
Expected credit loss rate (%) TE BR{E FA 18K X (%) 0.2 3.0 100.0 3.2
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #2BRE{E (AR®E T L) 7,675 1,001 235 8,911
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEAEABR (ARBTT) 18 30 235 283
Total Vb
Past due
21 HA
Less than Over
Current 1 year 1 year Total
BNER 1 BAA T A E #aEt
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEAR{E 1B K 2 (%) 2.7 1.7 100.0 6.6
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #RBREE (AR T IT) 254,718 23,343 9,373 287,434
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHERELR (ARETT) 6,935 2,734 9,373 19,042

The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted by certain
banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Notes") to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade and other payables due to such suppliers (the

“Endorsement”).

The Endorsed Notes had a maturity from one to six months as at the
end of years. In accordance with the Negotiable Instruments Law of
the People’s Republic of China (" ZE A REFMBIEHEE") and relevant
discounting arrangements with certain banks in the PRC, the holders of
the Endorsed Notes have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC

banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18 ESZENRIEBERERSRE (Z)
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially BEEZRA AEBEREBRAMLSEET
all risks and rewards relating to certain Endorsed Notes. Accordingly, the KEEZEREFEORBMRE - At - &
Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the derecognised SEEERIEERRILEREREENME
notes receivable. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's BREE  REAEERNKLERZENS
Continuing Involvement in the derecognised notes is equal to their BLENGSEBEERRENEERERE - &
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the ERE AEBRKRIERAZRFES R
Group's Continuing Involvement in the derecognised notes are not B AREBEILTERK °
significant.

For the rest of the Endorsed Notes, the Directors believe that the Group MEEEZBRBRI S - HRESE
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include default EAEENRS Ej{ﬂ ?D#E@)ﬂ BEAR
risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and accordingly, the Group HAZEREEZRNENRAR  HAEE
continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Notes. HEBERACEEZRBENMBEREME - RE
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on E% - $§’%Iﬂﬁ< FRAKEERED
the use of the Endorsed Notes, including the sale, transfer or pledge of EREFR - BERERMEME=FHE
the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. EEEHEEERE -
The breakdown for the Group's Endorsed Notes during the year is RAFE « AEBMLEEZERRPAAE
summarised as follows: @
2023 2022
2023 F 20224F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Amounts of Endorsed Notes MEEZESE 45,237 40,700
Less: Amount of derecognition upon the W BERKIERER
Endorsement f ¥ (22,918) (21,779)
Endorsed bills receivable that have not been RAEAR IR B AR 2 2R Y
derecognised and not yet due (note 22) KEERWER (MH5E22) 22,319 18,921
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19 FANRIE - e R EHMmEWR
RECEIVABLES b= |

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Deposits EZe 113,977 105,007
Tax recoverable AU B 5K 78,815 82,903
Prepayments TR FRIE 18,082 13,261
Other receivables H A pE SR IE 1,317 1,363
212,191 202,534
Less: Current portion B mENER Y (107,640) (106,027)
Non-current portion IEmEN IS 104,551 96,507
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables Ll BEN R E E BT B mE
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts. A Ma e B EIRIEE R - R
As at the end of the reporting period, the loss allowance of the Group HSHRR AEBMBABRBELST AR
was assessed to be minimal. 1K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20 HERBESZEBYLURZR4E!

DEPOSITS EEN
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREET T
Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4E R 273,888 151,488
Less: Restricted bank deposits A R BIRITIFR (73,128) (30,850)
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEEY 200,760 120,638
Denominated into: ARG E¥EETE
RMB (note) AR (MizE) 143,478 151,488
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS") B (Exl) 130,410 =
273,888 151,488
Note: MfaE -

At the end of the reporting period, the RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and six
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
restricted deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

RB|EMER - AREATARLBAEME
B R - ARIR P B 3 A0 B B IR AR B IA R A
& SERMETERTE AKETEBEEL

TTINEEXBRITHEARBL B REMEE -

FRRITHR @ ENE A RITF XA EZZ BT
KERBA L - MHERERNERBNTF—AE

NEATE - BFAKEWAERSFRKME -

I 21 51 52 B TE BT S0 F R BRER A 2, o SRITAEER
Ko S BRI 77 AR A7 TR S I I R AR EE R

W HOERTT o
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31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

21 ESEARERENERE

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARET T

Trade payables B 5 HRIE 153,454 159,876
Bills payable R E 153,216 102,684
Total @t 306,670 262,560

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

EORMNREARENEERRERERE
REZBHNKREROTOT

2023 2022

2023 20224F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBT T

Within three months =®MAA 267,305 212,550
Three months to one year “@MAE—%F 33,839 42,644
Over one year —FLAE 5,526 7,366
Total #EEt 306,670 262,560

Trade payables to both third parties are non-interest-bearing. The trade
payables to third parties are normally settled on credit terms of one to

three months after the invoice date.
The fair values of trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting

period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts due to

their relatively short maturity terms.
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22 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

22 Hib RN RERETER

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Contract liabilities (note (i) arnar’m(WEEa) 10,489 14,559
Other payables (note (ii)) E e 5RE (B EG)) 102,774 70,255
Endorsed bills receivables that have not been AR IERER B M AR B
derecognised and not yet due (note 18) KEERWER (Mizk18) 22,319 18,921
Accruals FEETER 18,965 4,489
Salary and welfare payable B TE REF 19,300 14,845
Other tax payable H fth FE BT R 6,244 9,561
180,091 132,630
Less: Current portion W REER D (161,834) (112,853)
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 18,257 19,777
Notes: Bt EE
(i)  The balances of contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period () WMEFHERNEHNEBERIBEHEESAYR
represented the advance received from customers for sales of parts of RERGNBERESRIE -
intralogistics equipment.
(i)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and would be settled in a period (iy HaENRBEATE  WHERANT=@EA

ranging from three months to five years.

ERFNHMBANES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

23 INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER

23 TRRTERK EMER

BORROWINGS
2023 p0)]
WBE W0E
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB000
- EAC) e ARETT  ERHE iER  ARETR
Current ik
Current portion of long-term bank loans - secured ~ RERTEFHNRHTS ~ HEAE  LPR*+Margin 2024 79787 [PRtMargin 2023 60,003
LPR++EY 20045 PR+ WBE
Other borrowings - secured EtofEs - HER LPR+Margin 2024 165639  LPRMergin 2023 114111
LPR+EY 204 E LPReEE WBE
Lease liabilties (note 14(0)) FEEEHGRTO) LPR+Margin 204 402579 LPR+Margin 2023 353908
LPR+EY 2004% LPR+EE WBF
Total - current & -y 648,005 528002
Non-current Eil |
Bank loans - secured RTER - BER LPR+Margin ~ 2025-2029 263,719 [PRMargin 204209 278054
LPR+EY 20552 LPR+EE WHEZE
20295 0095
Other borrowings - secured AR - BER LPRsMargin 20252029 189,903  LPRMargin 20042025 18917
LPR+EY 205%E LPR+EE W4EZE
20295 056
Lease liabiltes (note 14(b) A GRATO) LPR+Margin ~ 2025-2029 481231 LPReMargin 204209 432,194
LPR+EE 2055E LPR+EE NHER
20295 0095
Total - non-current 5 - g 934,853 839,165
Total &t 1,582,858 1367187

* LPR stands for loan prime rate.
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23 INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

23 FHERITERREMER (&)

2023 2022
2023 % 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: FEERBIRITER -
Within one year or on demand —FAFIREK 79,787 60,003
In the second year F_F 86,119 60,387
In the third year to fifth years, inclusive F=FEFAF (BEEEMTE) 166,600 165,667
Beyond five years AFENUE 11,000 52,000
Subtotal NE 343,506 338,057
Other borrowings repayable: EEEAMBERR
Within one year or on demand —FERRIRE R 165,639 114,111
In the second year F_F 126,099 86,022
In the third year to fifth years, inclusive FoFEFAFT(REERMTE) 63,804 42,895
Subtotal N 355,542 243,028
Lease liabilities repayable: [EEEHERE
Within one year or on demand —FAFIRER 402,579 353,908
In the second year E_F 252,369 241,657
In the third year to fifth years, inclusive F=FEFAF (BEEHRWF) 228,172 190,121
Beyond five years AFENAE 690 416
Subtotal N 883,810 786,102
Total G 1,582,858 1,367,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

23 INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i)  All interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings are denominated in

RMB.

(i) As at 31 December 2023, the leasehold land of RMB34,221,000 and property,
plant and equipment of RMB384,578,000 were pledged as securities for
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (2022: the leasehold land
of RMB34,972,000 and property, plant and equipment of RMB281,782,000).

(iii) The Group's total facilities for bank and other borrowings amounted to
RMB3,032,161,000 and RMB2,235,911,000 of which RMB1,582,858,000 and
RMB1,367,187,000 had been utilised as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

respectively.

(iv) Al interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings bear interest at the
floating interest rate of LPR plus margin.
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23 FHERITERREMER (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

A BRITEFRREMETIGAARES
fB-

K2023F 128318 BELHARE
34,221,000 R W% « BEREEBEARE
384,578,0007T (20224 : E LW AR
34,972,000t k% - BEREKEARKE
281,782,0007T) EEIFEAT BRITER K
HAbfE AR R o

R2023F %2022 128318 A"&E
RITREMERNBRELESIABAR
#3,032,161,0007T & AR ¥2,235,911,000
gL+ Hh AR#1,582,858,0007T & A R #&
1,367,187,000 L E #EF °

FrART B RITER R EMERRERTHR
EMEMNEREZBFEFE



24 DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

24 IEEFTBH

I

BEFSRAEEREERFRAZE BRI

EEFREHERE

20234

Fair value
adjustments arising

from acquisition of

subsidiaries
KT AREEN
AREERR
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2023 2023F1 A1 H 652
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year FANFTABEAIELESH
(note 10) (Ps¥10) 70
Deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2023 202312 A31 HRELE
Frieias 582
2022 20224
Fair value

adjustments arising

from acquisition of

subsidiaries

Wi F A RIEE AR

NAEBEFE

RMB'000

ARETT

At 1 January 2022 202241 A1 -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27) WiE—MF o aE (FsE27) 705
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year FANTABRHIRLEEH

(note 10) (K&E10) (53)

Deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2022 72022512 A31 B AIRE
e atE 652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

24 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets

2023

24 IEIEFRBH (&)
RIEFTBREE

2023

Tax losses

available for

offsetting
against
future
taxable Impairment
profits provision Total
A A A K 85
RIRFERRBL
FI
BEER WERE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TRT AR%¥®TR AR®TxR
At 1 January 2023 202351 A1H - 4,831 4,831
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FRFTAEBZEN
the year (note 10) EIEFTS R (BEsE10) 740 184 925
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2023 72023F 12 A31HAY
RIEFTS T E & 740 5,015 5,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

24 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24 EEFBH (&
Deferred tax assets (continued) BERSHERE (#)
2022 20224
Tax losses
available for
offsetting
against
future
taxable Impairment
profits provision Total
Al AR
AEH
MEE B HaET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H - 4,306 4,306
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FRFTAEBZEN
the year (note 10) EIEFTSH (KMEsE10) - 525 525
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 12022812 A31HAY
RIEPTISTEE - 4,831 4,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 R
Shares & 13
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET
348,022,816 (2022: 83,971,704) ordinary shares 348,022,816 /% (20224F : 83,971,704 %)
with par value of RMB0.25 each FREEARE0.257T (20224 :
(2022: RMB1.00 each) SFREABEARE1.007T) HEBEE 87,006 83,972

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

AR

ARASHERBENT :

Number of
shares in Share Share
issue capital premium Total
BT
RGHEE &S IR a8 e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTRT AR®BTR
At 1 January 2022, 720221 H1H

31 December 2022 and 2022512 A31B K&

1 January 2023 20231 H1H 83,971,704 83,972 545,274 629,246
Share split (note (a)) A& ¥4l (BE5E(a)) 251,915,112 - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares B RAREEET

relating to IPO (note (b)) E@AR (K sE(b)) 12,136,000 3,034 156,279 159,313
Share issue expenses & EEfTRI - - (13,205) (13,205)
At 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 H31H 348,022,816 87,006 688,348 775,354

Notes:

(@) On the Listing Date, the Company subdivided each authorised issued and
unissued ordinary share of a par value of RMB1.00 in the Company into four
ordinary shares of a par value of RMB0.25 each, resulting in the increase of
the number of shares in issue of 251,915,112.

(b) In connection with the IPO, 12,136,000 ordinary shares of a par value of
RMBO.25 each were issued at a price of HK$14.28 per share at a total cash
consideration, before deducting the underwriting fees and commissions
and other estimated listing expenses, of approximately HK$173,302,000

(approximately RMB159,313,000).
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GEX

()

REMBH  AARKARRESREBAR
B1 00 TLHISATE B 37T AR BT E AR A0
BUBRSEREEARK2S THE B @ &
BB BTN EE $#1251,915,1128% ©

MEXARBEEMS © 12,136,000 F™E
BARK025 T EBREIZER1428% T
BT - RS BREH A173,302,0007%
JC () AR%159,313,00070) * ANKEHEE
RARAEAREMMAET ETRX -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statements of

changes in equity on page 274 of the financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium account represents the amount paid by shareholders

for capital injection in excess of the par value of the shares issued.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the share of capital

contributions of the Group's associates.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of association
of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is required to
appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as determined under the
Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles
of association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve may be used
either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase the share capital
of the Company and subsidiaries provided that the reserve balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the Company and subsidiaries. The reserve cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

26 f#1E

AEBRAEERBAFENRESRER
HEBER IR MERERE 274 TIER A RE
mEEFRPR -

IR RE
BB ) L 4R 3R 95 B L B B AT IR 05
BT S 30 -

BEXRE

AEBERREEARERBEANLEN
8 o

EEBBRAE

BB E R RDE R BB F 2 AR
RAER AREARTPESER - &
10%HBRBEF B FEREEATRHBATE -
HERNEEBRETHES0%FMER o RIEE
B EERRAREN AR ERATEE T
BRHI - AE RSB ATER ARG EKE
BIENMARB R TARMBA (BEEEA
BESTBLRAQE RF AR ZEMER
B125%) o NFENA] AR EFR T B #AIMY
A% - B MERBEEREDIK ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

27 BUSINESS COMBINATION

In March 2022, the Group acquired 70% of the equity interest in Hefei
Langyun at a consideration of RMB4,200,000 from an independent
third party. Before the acquisition, the Company held 30% of the equity
interest in Heifei Langyun and it was an associate of the Company.
After the aforesaid acquisition, Hefei Langyun became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Hefei Langyun is a software and information
services company established in the PRC with limited liability. The fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary acquired

as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

27 (%56t

R2022%F38 AEBE—RBIE=

WEAIERZEN70%E @ HEAARE
4,200,0007T ° PRUSEERT - RARIFE S IEEA
E30%BkEEEBARAHE AR o R Lt
W% ERAZRAREENZETFA
Al AEMAER KNP BEK I HEF R
EERBARARF o RUHE B HKIENT
RAIMAHFIEERABBEHNALBEAT ¢

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
MUEBRERE
DAREE

Notes RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KREE 13 44
Technical know-how i N7 15 5,406
Inventories g 652
Trade receivables 2 5 EWGRIA 529
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIR - Re REMERGRIE 314
Other payables and accruals Hib R IEREE A (240)
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFMEHARE 25 (705)
Total identifiable net assets at acquisition date RUHE B BRI R sk R & E4E 6,000
Fair value of consideration which is satisfied by: A TP REZ A HEHAAEE

Cash Re 4,200
Fair value of 30% equity interest in Hefei Langyun (note) S IERAE 30% R EH A R EE (MiEE) 1,800
Total consideration g 6,000

ote GEE

The Group recognised a gain of RMB1,435,000 related to the remeasurement of
the pre-existing 30% equity interest to the fair value on the acquisition date in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

27 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 27 ¥ 86t (&

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the WEFARINRSRESTOT
subsidiary is as follows:

RMB’000
AR®T T
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in AFAAREEBAARSRENE S K
cash flows used in investing activities ReSEYRL TR 4,200
Since the acquisition, Hefei Langyun contributed RMB1,433,000 to the BUBELAZKR » NEBE E2022F12A31H
Group's revenue and a net profit of RMB505,000 to the consolidated IEFEBRAFR AR,433,0007T REZE
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022. Had the Bmh AR¥S505,000 K FFERE S
combination taken place at 1 January 2022, the revenue and profit of EBAE o &R 2022F1 A1 B#EST -
the Group would have been RMB1,196,079,000 and RMB36,080,000, AIAEBHNRARFBEES B AARE
respectively. 1,196,079,0007T & A R #636,080,000 7T °
28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 28 ZER&RMB KM
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EXFBEERS
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group B E2023F &2022F12H31B1EF
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets of RMB428,495,000 B AEENFEREEEFRSARE
and RMB311,967,000, respectively, with the same amounts of lease DRl AR #428,495,0007T & AR ¥
liabilities, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office 311,967,0007C + A EH BB AE K5
premises and intralogistics equipment. AR BN E L AR SN
E81E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(b) REZEBFEEESH
Interest-bearing

bank loans and

other borrowing

STREITER
REAfER
RMB’000
AR®T T
2023 20234
At 1 January 2023 20231 H1H 1,367,187
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRELH (304,278)
New leases g 428,495
Interest expenses MERE 91,454
At 31 December 2023 202312 H31H 1,582,858
2022 20225
At 1 January 2022 MH2022F1A1H 1,329,794
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE (363,548)
New leases Mg 311,967
Interest expenses FEFHX 88,974
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F 12 A31H 1,367,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated

statements of cash flows is as follows:

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

() MERERLAE
SAGARSRERNBERS KD

EEELT
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

With operating activities KRR 1,007 7,707
With financing activities BEEE 397,047 369,172
Total HET 398,054 376,879

29 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings,

which are secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 23 to

the financial statements.

30 COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of each of

the reporting period:

290 EEEH

AEEFSRITEFREMER (AREHE
BEFEER) OFBHNTBRERME23 -

30 H&IE
B RS EIRR - A EEA N T A AR -

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETE

Contracted, but not provided for EEFOMEE S
Construction in progress EETE 25,899 37,697
Purchase of intralogistics equipment BB ISR 20,000 =
45,899 37,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 31 BB AR Z R &R

The Directors of the Company are of the view that the following parties/

companies are related parties that had material transactions or balances

with the Group during the year.

(a) Name and relationship of related parties

Name

neE/ E8

ARBEERR  ATER /RAEAREKF
EEAEBBEEARZRAERNEHTT -

(a) BEEETS BREKEAME

Relationship
e

Mr. Hou Zekuan

RERRE

Mr. Hou Zebing

EEERE

Mr. Qian Xiaoxuan

B

Ms. Ma Li

SExt

Mr. Zhu Yingchun

ROERE

Mr. Shu Xiaowu

N

Mr. Zhou Limin

BERREE

Mr. Yang Qingyuan

BETEE

Mr. Pan Fei

EIER AL

Guangdong Santouliubi Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Santouliubi”)

BR=BREESMEERLF ([=EAE])

Ferretto Intelligent

HREEEE

Hefei Langxun

&AL
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An executive Director of the Company

ARERTESE

An executive Director of the Company

AREHTESE

An executive Director of the Company

ARERTES

An executive Director of the Company

ARERTES

A non-executive Director of the Company

AREFNITES

A non-executive Director of the Company

ARFFRITES

Key management personnel of the Group

AEETZEEAR

Key management personnel of the Group

AEEFEERASR

Key management personnel of the Group

REETEEREASR

Company significantly influenced by Mr. Zhu Yingchun,
a non-executive Director of the Company

RARAGFMTER RDEREEATENRA

Associate of the Company

ZA/NE] L) /N

Associate of the Company

ZAUNS ;) N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

(b) Significant related party transactions during the year
were as follows:

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

31 BB AR R s (&)

(b) REENERBHRLIRZMOT :

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®BTE

Associates: /N I

Sales of intralogistics equipment and parts SHE S AR s R Bt 325 16

Purchases of intralogistics equipment and parts §E B35 MWD ek 1 S B 1 - 72
Total s 325 88
Companies significantly influenced by XEEEHEE

key management: E-WN-7Z - 1-0UNCIlE

Provision of intralogistics equipment RIS AR ER] B RS

subscription services 2,399 2,225

The Directors consider that the purchases and sales of intralogistics
equipment and parts and provision of intralogistics equipment
subscription services with related parties were made according
to the prices and conditions similar to those offered to the other

customers or those offered by the other suppliers of the Group.

EERAEABINEEREEESRN
7 AR A BB DA R R 155 9 0 R
R AIRTE R 5 T R E [ K AR 2 P
RUEMIAEEE M ERHREMANA
EHERRARIETT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

The outstanding balances with related parties as at the end of the
reporting period only included the trade receivables and payables
with the Group's associates and companies significantly influenced

by key management, details of which are disclosed as follows:

31 BB AR R s (&)

(c) EREARET MYAREBLEER

AR 5 I 8 R B2 BR B 77 1O RAEE A R
ERREAEEBERARMITIRE
BEBATZENRANE S EKNIEA
REMNFIR - RFFERENT

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Associates: BRE A
Trade receivables Z 5 REWGKRIA 96 -
Trade payables BN IE 281 134
Companies significantly influenced by XEEEEE
key management: BAFERNRNT
Trade receivables Z 5 REWRIA 136 27

The balances with related parties were unsecured, interest-free and

settled on terms of one to two months.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

Details of the compensation of key management personnel of the

Group are disclosed as follows:

HEARE T AR AEIER - 28 IR
—EMEAMHREE -

d) AREEZEEEASHH

AEEXTEREBRABNHMNFER

=N
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEWEARN 5,096 4511
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEI R 223 205
Total 15 5,319 4716
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY N2 EMIBESE
Both the financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at the end of the AEERREHERNEeREERABEY
reporting period were measured at amortised cost and their carrying BHHEKATE  BREERT :

amounts are as follows:

Financial assets cREE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Trade and bills receivables & 5 FEWGRIE R FEN = 1R 373,964 294,037

Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and T ATEfTFKIE ~ & &
other receivables HEMERRIEN SR E E 115,294 106,370
Restricted deposits Z PR H 77 5K 73,128 30,850
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEED 200,760 120,638
Total #aEt 763,146 551,895

Financial liabilities TRAE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR¥EFTT
Trade and bills payables B Z RN R ENRIR 306,670 262,560
Financial liabilities included in other payables and FT A E M E T IR &

accruals BT ERNERBE 144,058 93,665
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings FTERITER R EMER 1,582,858 1,367,187
Total ey 2,033,586 1,723,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

33 FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 33
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

THMTANAABERAAE
BERER

AEESRTANKERERAAEBEGRE
BRAAEBESEREERIN AT

Carrying amounts Fair values
AREE DAEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20224 20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR AR&%T:x
Financial assets ctREE
Deposits, non-current Ze GERE) 104,551 96,507 90,096 83,566
Financial liabilities cREE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FHERTERREMER
other borrowing (other than lease (HEERERIN) (FERE)
liabilities), non-current 453,622 406,971 453,622 406,971
Other payable and accruals, H b e 58 R ERT &
non-current (3Emh) 18,257 19,777 14,784 15,857
Total faat 471,879 426,748 468,406 422,828

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted deposits, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (current), trade
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
(current), interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (current),
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables (non-current), financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals (non-current) and the non-current interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's own non-
performance risk for financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables (non-current), and interest-bearing loans and
other borrowings (non-current) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were

assessed to be insignificant, respectively.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the Board of Directors.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the

chief financial officer.

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings, restricted deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables and trade and

other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks

and they are summarised below.

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

BEMTENAIABERAIAE

STAEMNRIE  RekHEMERFIENS
BMEE GERE) « s AEMEMNKIERE
SAEANeREE GERE) AR ERST
ERREAMERGERD) AR EBE DL
FR#E B B OURFR - (5 R B K& eR T 2 HA &Y
PR &) T B B Al A 15 89 51 % BE 3R 78 HA R 2R 3R
enEFTHE  c AASBEGF AEMNFIE - &
e REMEBURENCREE (FERE) &
STEERREMER (GERE) B & TE
AR MBI AR BEZIN2023FR
2022F 12 A3 BH A EATERX ©

AEBUMBHAPBEERE  AEEE
EMITEAREBEAENBRNER - &
BREBEANEFUBERESSER -
REREAH  BHEONT BT ANE
BEY VYEEHEMANIRE A
& AEKERVHEEHRIE -

BHEREEBERBXK

AEENTESRT AR RRITER
REMER  XREFFAARRE KRS
EZEY - EUERMIANTIEZEANZRAE
SENZEEEEED - AKEEEZER
HeBgRELAMEMEREERARE -
PIERE 5 F E Al e R IR IA R B 5 R H A
FERI A o

AEBEEMTAEANTIERARAMER
B ERRARNMEBERRE - AARER
SEMEREEESEZFRR (R TXH
at) BB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34 MIEREREBERBEK (&

AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with a floating interest

rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in RMB interest rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate

borrowings).

GRS

AEBHEBOTSHN XSS AKEBER
SERFERITEREE °

TRAAEMEEMEERET TENIBR
TAKBNBATNBEHAREH G2
REEBNGRE CEBYEFRERNTE) -

Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)

in basis points  in profit before tax

HEhsm BLATR G,
(R) Om2)
RMB’000
AR®ET T
2023 20234
RMB AR #E 100 (15,829)
RMB AR (100) 15,829
2022 20224
RMB AR 100 (13,672)
RMB AR (100) 13,672
Credit risk = ARk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34 BIERMEEEERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BARBRFERE
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TRINTIRI12A3THERAEEERER
credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on (FBERBHER  BRIFESHHTIHKE
past due information unless other information is available without undue RIRK NS BN A BB H AL B R AR FR
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. SN ERE 2 RMERARBREARA -
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. b e AemEENEREE -
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A EH
ERAX 2HBEMERARA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—RR FRR E (37 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL ARBTR ARMTR ARBTT AR®TR

Trade receivables* B 5 IR - - 359,289 359,289
Bills receivable B Z & 34,913 - - - 34,913
Financial assets included in AR - Ef Rl

prepayments, other receivables HEREMEENSREE

and other assets

— Normal** —EE* 115,294 - - - 115,294
Restricted deposits XBHFR

~ Not yet past due — HRBEH 73,128 - - = 73,128
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL ZEN

— Not yet past due — WARRH 200,760 = = = 200,760
Total @t 424,095 - - 359,289 783,384
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31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

34 BiIEREEEEREE (£Z)

BAEBS R F PR (F)
7"2022%12H31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLS
12{8 A TEH
IHEEPS > HESERAX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-EER FBR F=RER  BhE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Trade receivables* g 5 Elzrar = - = 287,434 287,434
Bills receivable e 25,645 - - - 25,645
Financial assets included in STABNRE - HfhfEk
prepayments, other receivables HEREMEENSREE
and other assets
- Normal* —EE* 106,370 - - - 106,370
Restricted deposits XRS5
— Not yet past due — WARBH 30,850 - - - 30,850
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEN
— Not yet past due — HARBEH 120,638 - - = 120638
Total wEt 283,503 = = 287,434 570,937

credit risk is disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

*%

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix and exposure to

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the

credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk

arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet

its liquidity requirements. The Group finances its working capital

requirements through a combination of funds generated from

operations and alternative funding resources from equity and debt.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of

each of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

At 31 December 2023

34 iIBEREEEERKE (&

TRENE LR

AEEEERBATHREREREEN
RRERBALER - AEEEBEEN
BES U RS RERE S IR R
HEEELBR -

AEBTHEBEERREREREREGHR
BN B BERAT -

720235 12A31H

2023
0BE
On  Lessthan 1to2 2t03 3t05 Over5

demand 1year years years years years Total

BEX -ER -Z@RE WEZE ZEEE  BENE @it

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Group AR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%Tr AR%Tn ARMTR ARETn

Trade and bl payables BARMNFERENTE 13583 293,087 - - - - 306670
Financial liabilities included in other payables ~ sf AR BN FIA R &S

and accruals BRmeRAR - 125802 5,465 3,531 9,260 - 144,058

Lease liabilities HEBR - 493145 308754 175940 96,19 690 1,074,725

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SERTRE DB
(excluding lease liabilites) (PEERESR) - 836 233559 130,039 115566 1122 762,122
Total & 13583 1,183,869 547,778 309510 221,022 11,812 2,287,574
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31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34 IERAREERERBEK(Z)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TENE R (F)
At 31 December 2022 720229128318
2022
2004
On Less than 1t02 2103 3105 Over 5
demand 1 year years years years years Total

REX  —FR -E@MF  MEZF ZERf  RFUNLE Lh)
RMB0OO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMB0OO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB000

Group PSS ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Trade and bills payables BARNTARENRE 23080 239,480 = = = = 262,560
Financialliabilities included in other payables st AR A R &S
and accruals ERNSRERE - 73,888 5,963 3650 10,164 - 93665
Lease liabilties HEAR - 440766 297,507 165,206 61395 434 965,308
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SRRTRAMER
(excluding lease liabilites) (PEfEREERE) - 204968 166,989 122,507 107,950 53904 656,318
Total o 23,080 959,102 470459 291,363 179509 54338 1977851
Capital management BEREE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to NEBEAEENTIEEEAREAEER
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to MIFERERE N REFEENERNE X -
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and N FHEEBLEERSBEEE -

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it NEFESREHERNERE - I3t &5 5 0 &
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics B RMEEEENRRIESIELE A - 54
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the B ABRERNERE  AEBEREAEMKR
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to RIRBEARE SR - MREREE AN )3
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally THREMD - REBDZFRINEBHEINHE
imposed capital requirements. In the opinion of the directors, the Group NETFHL - EERE  NEBN2023F
had operation profits and unutilised facilities of approximately RMB1,449.3 NANBHEELEEFERARBARELDA
million as at 31 December 2023. Capital risk is not significant for the Group Ri#E1,4493 B8 T - BEARBE ANERM
and measurement of capital management is not a tool currently used in the SWAEKXR BRAIBEARAKEENANILE
internal management reporting procedures of Group. BRERFPFERAERESIBE -
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated NEBEFHBERL REEEEN » R ER
based on total interest bearing borrowings as of the end of each year BB ESERNTEERBEBRUEER
divided by total equity as of the same date. The gearing ratios as at the HRERERETE - HERSHEROER
end of the reporting periods were as follows: bR -
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARETE

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AT EERTT R EMER 1,582,858 1,367,187
Equity attributable to owners of the parent SFBREARHE ANER 1,076,789 899,461
Gearing ratio = e 147.0% 152.0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35 AR A BARR K
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at NN B P HR 45 HA RS R 9 B FS A SR R B R an
the end of the reporting period is as follows: T:
2023 2022
2023 % 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE

Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB R 885,326 701,759
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,058,858 1,027,876
Intangible assets E\EE 3,422 3,683
Investments in subsidiaries RFREHIRE 91,086 71,985
Investments in associates REEE RN AR E 10,802 10,561

Deposits Ee 104,551 96,507
Deferred tax assets BEFTSTHEE 4,159 2,627
Total non-current assets EMBEEA 2,158,204 1,914,998
CURRENT ASSETS REEE

Inventories IEAS 88,069 75,737
Trade and bills receivables B 5 MWk TE & R E R 336,800 266,573
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTFIA © 2e R EMERGRIE 91,249 89,847
Restricted deposits SR B 7R 73,128 30,850
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 198,832 106,541

Total current assets MENEEART 788,078 569,548
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Trade and bills payables B 5 e FRIE R ER R R 297,601 250,460
Other payables and accruals H fth FE FRIE R FERT B A 113,696 86,310
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings ATERITER R EAMIEK 608,133 497,138
Tax payable ERTE 639 =
Total current liabilities nBBEEF 1,020,069 833,908
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (231,991) (264,360)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERABEMR 1,926,213 1,650,638
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31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

35 RR B BARREK (&

COMPANY (continued)
2023 2022
20234 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERENEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings FTRRITERREAER 847,441 745,268
Other payables and accruals Hib N FIERESER 18,256 19,777
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEEF 865,697 765,045
NET ASSETS BEE 1,060,516 885,593
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the Company SFBERARNAHEE ANER
Share capital %N 87,006 83,972
Reserves (note) 1 (FEE) 973,510 801,621
Total equity A 1,060,516 885,593

Hou Zekuan

RER
Director

EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

e MERRME

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

35 RR B BRI K ()

COMPANY (continued)
Note: Bt EE
NS 27t N
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARFIERER AT
Statutory
Share Capital surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
R
B EE ERfif BHLE ea) a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR N Eo AR®TR
Balance at 1 January 2022 R02%1 A1 BB &R 545274 512 23380 207583 776,109
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - 24912 24912
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BETETRRNE - - 2400 (2400) =
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R00E1NANBRABEIA1R 545,274 512 25,780 230,055 801,621
Profit for the year EAFIE - - - 28815 28,815
Issuance of ordinary shares relating to IPO AERAHEERTLAR 156,279 = = = 156,279
Share issue expenses OS5 (13,205) - - = (13,205)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BETETRBNE - - 2,882 (2,882) -
At 31 December 2023 RNBENANA 688,348 512 28,662 255,988 973,510

36 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 20 March 2024.

36 AR
RS MABEET SN 202453 20 B #ET

BT -
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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, the following expressions have the meanings set out RAFERERN - BRXESEMEI - TIFH

below unless the context otherwise requires:

ACM”
[RERBFRE ]
“Allotment Results
Announcement”
[BeEBERAE
"Articles” or "Articles of
Association”

(B2 AEIEE]

"Audit Committee”

[BEEg]

"Auditors”

K2 Gl

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

(=g

328"
[B2B]

“China” or "the PRC"

(B

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

FEHUTEE :

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
June 14, 2024
RAFER2024F6 A14 8 (28 0) BTN EERAF RS

the announcement of offer price and allotment results of the Company dated
November 9, 2023
RATAEA2023F 1 AR B EEREHERASE

the articles of association of our Company adopted on April 21, 2023 with effect

on the Listing Date, as amended from time to time

ARTEIFR2023F4 A 21 BIERHWH E7 HERAERN R ER (ETEFERT)

the audit committee of the Board

EExgER%EY

Ernst & Young
KGR RS

board of directors of the Company

ZAUNCIE- 5

business-to-business
EHPE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing

Rules

AR BRI EEC B —FBATE B E R <P R

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purposes of this annual report,
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China and Taiwan

REARKME  BARFEEREMS - TREEE - FEARKFBIRFIR R
TR K &=



i

FSE=Eiol |

“Company” or “our Company” or

"the Company”

VNN Ec

"

“Controlling Shareholder(s)

[ AR AR o}

"

“Director(s)

(&%) 15
“Forklift”
[X& ] 15

"Global Offering”

[BIREE 18

"o "o

"Group’, “our Group”, “the Group’,

o

"we”, "us”, or “our”

[ZREE 3P o}

DEFINITIONS

China Insights Industry Consultancy Limited, a market research and consulting
company, which is an independent third party

NREEERZRN (LB BRARF  —KNSEMRALERRE  RBIFE=)

FOLANGSI CO., LTD (M 82 BAHTAR 19 B FR A R) (formerly known as Guangzhou
Folangsi Machinery Co., Ltd. (B /M3 BAET#4% A BR A 7)), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on December 5, 2007 which was converted into
a joint stock company with limited liability on November 25, 2016 and listed on
the Stock Exchange on November 10, 2023 (Stock code: 2499)

BN GERAER A (D B PR A ) (AIAE B M BBRAHT BB PR A R]) - —FM20074F 12 B
SHEFRBEGFMAIAERAE - K2016511 A25 ASH ARG BR A& KK
2023F 11 A 10 BEERE A PR BT (AR 5%« 2499)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and in the context of this
annual report, refers to the controlling shareholders of our Company, namely Mr.
Hou Zekuan, Mr. Hou Zebing and Guangzhou Daze

AR FTHRAETHRERBRAFEREMS - BARAERER (BIFRER
ik REEREREMNER)

director(s) of the Company

ARRES

an industrial equipment with a metal fork platform attached to its front that can
be used to lift heavy loads by inserting the fork platform under cargo, pallets,

or machines for moving them or placing them in warehouses, production sites,
distribution centers and other scenarios

—REIERE HAHEXESEXS  AIBBKXSEARY - FERSHs
THREAEY  AEEERE - £ERS  REROFNEMSR THRBIME
L)

an offering of 12,136,000 H Shares, comprising a final Hong Kong public offering of
1,213,600 H Shares and a final international public offering of 10,922,400 H Shares
HE2¥E12,136,0000KHAY - BIRIZ2EE 1,213,600 HRHREEEAREE
RIR 23510922400 IRHAR BV AR ARBIBR AR B E

the Company and all of its subsidiaries, or any one of them as the context may

require

ARRIREMAFRABSERNEMRERERTA—RAF
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Guangzhou Daze”

[EMEE]

“H Share(s)"

[HAZ

"HKFRS”

(BT BREER )

"Hong Kong”
(&8

“Hong Kong dollars” or "HK dollars”
or "HK$" or "HK cents”

[T )=k E]

“Intralogistics equipment”

5 RiRa]

“oT”

EzEEEN

“Latest Practicable Date”

[EERATTHH

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

Guangzhou Daze Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (EMNEZRE S
BHEEREE)), alimited partnership established under the laws of the PRC on
August 16, 2011 and one of the Controlling Shareholders
BENEZREEGBEE(ARAER)  —RN2011F8A 16 AIRIEF BIARK L
WAERE B ERIERIRER 2 —

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with
a nominal value of RMB0.25 each, subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars
and listed on the Stock Exchange
RAFREAHEREEARB025TTHIFIN EHINE LB - WETRELE
F WP P BT

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

BRMBREER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRITTRER

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BRI - BEEEEEK

an industrial machinery used to replace intensive labor in mechanical work, such as
carrying, moving, sorting, and stacking of cargo and heavy loads, in manufacturing
plants, logistics parks, warehouses, airports, ports, and other similar worksites
—EIERE ARERERILLE  JINERETR WiERE - B - #
% BASRAUTESMIRE - BB - DBRUASSEREY R EMSZRMIEE

internet of things, the network of physical objects that are embedded with sensors,
software, and other technologies for the purpose of connecting and exchanging
data with other devices and systems over the internet

WIS - IR AERRES B REMBENONYEEREE BB HAEE MR
B RASEE IR BREIE

April 16, 2024, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this
annual report for ascertaining certain information contained herein

202454 H16 B > AIRFERE TR RETETAEE TENNKRERT
fTHE



“Listing Date”

[ £ A8

“Listing Rules”

[ LAl

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Mr. Hou Zekuan”

[RRLE]

“Mr. Hou Zebing”

[ ]

“Model Code”

&% Al

“Prospectus”

[HER =

“Reporting Period”

[#REH)

“RMB"
[ARE ]

“Share(s)"

[Pfn ]

DEFINITIONS

November 10, 2023, the date on which the H Shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange

2023F 11 108 » RABIHBRAEB AT EH A B EA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended,

supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

B PR s E AR R (R ARHERT « MR RAE M T N )

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operate in parallel with the GEM of the Stock
Exchange

B PEER R T 5 (MR IEEE™ 5) » B R 5 PrGEM B BB BT 1T3E 1E

Mr. Hou Zekuan (&2 &), an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and a

Controlling Shareholder

REREL  WITES  EERNEBRER

Mr. Hou Zebing (fE}2 ), an executive Director, general manager (chief executive)

and a Controlling Shareholder

RELEE HITES  BKE (BSTHAR) RIFEBRER

the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
FTRAIMERCIPAE EMBEITAEFETEFRXHNELESTE

the prospectus of the Company dated October 31, 2023
RARBEIA2023F 10 A31 BHBRER

the year ended December 31, 2023
HE2023F 128318 ILFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE  PEEEEY

ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of RMB0.25
each, including both Unlisted Shares and H Shares

RRRRADGREAEARKE2S TTHERR - B3I LHARD RHR
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Shareholder(s)”
(A& ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 22 A

“Supervisor(s)”

B2

“Supervisory Committee”

[EEFe ]
“Unlisted Shares”

[FE LT Rtn )

“U.S. dollars”, "USS" or “USD”

[%)

oy
(%]

FOLANGSI CO. LTD | BEMNGEREI R A AR AT

holder(s) of the Share(s)
BHEFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBARSMAER QT

member(s) of the Supervisory Committee

EFENE

the supervisory committee of the Company

ARRREEE

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMBO.25 each, which are not listed on any stock exchange

RABRAREGREEARE2STHERK - RAEEMBEFRSHM D

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
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per cent
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